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COMPANY PROFILE
ARG

China Oriented International Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
1871) is an investment holding company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands with limited liability. The Company’s shares
have been listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) since 24 October 2019.

We are a provider of driving training services based in
Zhumadian City, Henan province, the PRC. We engage in the
provision of driving training services through our two major
operating subsidiaries, namely Shun Da School and Tong Tai
School. Shun Da School is a qualified level Il driving school
established and commenced operation in 2012 which offers
driving training services for preparation for driving tests of
Small Vehicles. Tong Tai School is a qualified level | driving
school established and commenced operation in 2014 which
offers driving training services for preparation for driving tests
of both Large Vehicles and Small Vehicles.
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Dear Shareholders,

The year 2021 was a year with unexpected challenges.
Despite positive signs of economic rebound during the first
half of the year 2021, the overall economy of Henan province
for the second half of the year 2021 was adversely impacted
by sporadic outbreaks of Covid-19 cases, extreme weather
conditions and flooding. The entire driving training system
in Henan province was temporarily suspended during the
third quarter of the year 2021, affecting driving training and
testing of trainees. Meanwhile, there were regulatory changes
introduced by the PRC government relating to setting-up of
driving schools in the PRC which came into effect since the
third quarter of the year 2021, which lowered the threshold
for existing Small Vehicles driving schools to enter into the
field of providing Large Vehicles driving training services, thus
intensified the competition in the driving training services
market and putting pressure on Tong Tai School and Shun Da
School in adjusting course fees to capture and maintain market
shares. To overcome the challenging environment, we have in
response adopted the following strategies throughout the year
2021 to improve our business and operational performance:

1. Cross-region and cross-province enrolments and training
were restricted due to the impact of the epidemic. Setting
foot in the core market of Zhumadian City, we developed
the market to reach natural villages in order to set up
outlets and promotion points in all villages, and lay a solid
market foundation for further development in the core
market.

2. We strictly followed the epidemic prevention measures.
Entering or exiting our driving schools at any time of the
year requires QR code scanning, temperature testing
and nucleic acid test report within 48 hours, and we kept
traceable records of external visitors. We ensured that our
driving schools provide training in a save environment and
effectively prevent the occurrence of Covid-19 outbreaks.

3.  We have been actively searching for suitable lands for
potential targets of acquisitions and development into
new training fields. We have also acquired new training
vehicles and built ancillary facilities to improve our
operational capacity.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
EE ﬁ iﬁ = llrm

We adjusted our internal organisation structure to improve
the professional ability and management level of our
senior management, so as to facilitate better market
development and improve service level.

We adjusted our marketing strategy and expanded the
market scope, by stepping up our marketing effect
outside Henan province, with a focus on the market
penetration in Xinjiang, Hunan, Hainan and Zhejiang to
further improve our number of course enrolment. We
timely adjusted our policies in the epidemic inflicted areas
to recruit trainees under the premise of safe epidemic
prevention.

We actively participated in the skill competition for
motor vehicle driving instructors organised by the Henan
Provincial Department of Transportation, with two of our
driving training instructors entered the provincial team
for training. With the training base located at Tong Tai
School, our teaching standard was uplifted while our
teaching method was standardised at the same time.

Going forward to the year 2022, we will earnestly implement
the following strategies;

1.

With the established foothold at Zhumadian City, we
will extend to the surrounding areas. As the enrolment
network of Zhumadian City is being set up, we also
expand the scope of the market to the surrounding areas,
S0 as to ensure our leading position in the core market
and reduce the impact on enrolment due to sporadic
outbreaks of the epidemic.

We will continue to expand our operational capacity and
speed up relevant process to ensure profit as we need to
improve our course enrolment numbers in response to the
downward price adjustment for course fees.

Standardised instruction will be normalised to improve our
teaching quality and teaching results, thus increasing the
satisfaction of our regular customers, which in turn will
improve our market share and trainee enrolment.
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We will further step up our marketing and advertising
effort outside Henan province to gradually expand our
market scope and share in other PRC provinces and
regions. Emphasis is put on the development of the
markets outside the province with low passing rates on
tests, to achieve enrolments in these areas by providing
quality teaching methods and high passing rates.

We will also continue with our efforts on online enrolment.
As online enrolment is not restricted by space or time,
when complemented with offline market development,
online and offline interactions can be achieved and
enrolments can be accomplished in key areas.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEE @WK DN

BUSINESS REVIEW

We are a provider of driving training services based in
Zhumadian City, Henan province, the PRC. We engage in the
provision of driving training services through our two major
operating subsidiaries, namely Shun Da School and Tong Tai
School. Shun Da School is a qualified level Il driving school
established and commenced operation in 2012 which offers
driving training services for preparation for driving tests of
Small Vehicles. Tong Tai School is a qualified level | driving
school established and commenced operation in 2014 which
offers driving training services for preparation for driving tests
of both Large Vehicles and Small Vehicles.

Each of Tong Tai School and Shun Da School are currently
offering two types of driving training courses for our trainees,
namely standard courses and premium courses. Standard
courses are designed for trainees who wish to complete
only part of the minimum training hours requirements.
Trainees, who have enrolled in our standard courses, wish
to fulfil the minimum training hours requirements, or for other
reasons wish to have further training, may subscribe from
the respective school for additional training services on an
hourly basis. Premium courses offer to trainees driving training
for a number of training hours that is equal to the minimum
training hours requirements specified in the Driving Training
Curriculum. Our premium courses comprised holidays and
weekends courses, economy courses and VIP courses. Our
VIP courses for Large Vehicles provide different complimentary
supporting services including pick-up services and/or
accommodation services without additional charges.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2021, our overall
number of course enrolments and our overall number of
trainees attended our driving courses continued to improve.
We recorded an overall positive growth for both the total
number of course enrolment for, and the total number of
trainees attended on, our driving courses for the year ended
31 December 2021, as comparing to that for the year ended
31 December 2020. We attribute the overall improvement in
our business performance to the steady recovery of market
conditions in the PRC throughout the year 2021, the effect
of which was however partially offset by the occurrence of
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

extreme weather conditions and flooding, as well as the
sporadic outbreak of Covid-19 pandemic in Henan province
during the second half of the year 2021, which had temporarily
suspended the entire driving training system in Henan province
and has a negative impact on our business performance for the
second half of the year ended 31 December 2021.

Our total number of course enrolments for the year ended 31
December 2021 recorded an overall increase of 3.1% from
12,645 for the year ended 31 December 2020 to 13,040.

Both Tong Tai School and Shun Da School marked positive
growth in the overall number of course enrolments for the
year ended 31 December 2021, as comparing to that for the
year ended 31 December 2020. The total number of course
enrolments of Shun Da School amounted to 3,264 (the year
ended 31 December 2020: 2,993), representing an increase of
approximately 9.1%. The total number of course enrolments
of Tong Tai School amounted to 9,776 (the year ended 31
December 2020: 9,652), representing a slight increase of
approximately 1.3%.

The number of course enrolments for both Large Vehicles
and Small Vehicles also recorded an overall improvement.
For premium courses, we recorded a slight growth in the
number of course enrolments for premium courses of Large
Vehicles, with an increase of approximately 3.2% from 6,168
for the year ended 31 December 2020 to 6,365 for the year
ended 31 December 2021. However, the number of course
enrolments for premium courses of Small Vehicles decreased
by approximately 19.1% from 3,730 for the year ended 31
December 2020 to 3,018 for the year ended 31 December
2021. Meanwhile, for standard courses, we recorded a
decrease of approximately 26.8% in the number of course
enrolments for standard courses of Large Vehicles from 611
for the year ended 31 December 2020 to 447 for the year
ended 31 December 2021. On the other hand, the number
of course enrolments for standard courses of Small Vehicles
improved by approximately 50.3%, from 2,136 for the year
ended 31 December 2020 to 3,210 for the year ended 31
December 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEEEB WK D (&)

The following table sets out a breakdown of the number of TXR&F|HE2021F12A31HILFEZE
course enrolments for the year ended 31 December 2021, B Z AZRAAN - & [F202056F12 A318
together with the comparative figures for the year ended 31  |[FEE RN L& & F -

December 2020:

For the year ended 31 December

BZE12A31HLEE
2021 2020
20214 20204
Number of Number of
course course

enrolments % enrolments %

RERBEAY % RIZHAAH %
Tong Tai School BRER
Large vehicles K & 8

— Standard courses — RERE 447 3.4 611 4.8

— Premium courses — BRRE 6,365 48.8 6,168 48.8
Small Vehicles /NED B B

- Standard courses — IBERE 403 3.1 207 1.6

— Premium courses — BRRE 2,561 19.7 2,666 21.1
Shun Da School JIE 2 2 %
Small vehicles /N ES

- Standard courses — ZERE 2,807 21.5 1,929 15.3

— Premium courses — B RE 457 3.5 1,064 8.4

Total HBEt 13,040 100.0 12,645 100.0

Course ®E

Total standard courses RERZAG 3,657 28.0 2,747 21.7

Total premium courses = RRIE AT 9,383 72.0 9,898 78.3

Total HBEt 13,040 100.0 12,645 100.0
Driving school ERHER

Tong Tai School BERR 9,776 75.0 9,652 76.3

Shun Da School JIg 3 B AR 3,264 25.0 2,993 23.7

Total HBEt 13,040 100.0 12,645 100.0
Driving course ERFER

Large Vehicles RAEVEH 6,812 52.2 6,779 53.6

Small Vehicles /]NEY B 6,228 47.8 5,866 46.4

Total HBEt 13,040 100.0 12,645 100.0
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

We recorded an overall increase in the number of trainees
attended our driving course for the year ended 31 December
2021, but a slight decrease in total revenue for the year
ended 31 December 2021. The total number of trainees who
attended our driving courses for the year ended 31 December
2021 amounted to 15,183 (year ended 31 December 2020:
15,046), representing a slight increase of approximately
0.9%. The total revenue of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2021 amounted to approximately RMB67.2 million
(year ended 31 December 2020: approximately RMB68.0
million), representing a slight decrease of approximately 1.2%.
Our provision of driving training services for Large Vehicles
continued to be our primary source of revenue, accounting
for approximately 82.7% of our total revenue (year ended 31
December 2020: 78.6%). Revenue generated from premium
courses contributed to approximately 92.7% of our total
revenue (the year ended 31 December 2020: 94.3%).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEEEB WK D (&)

The following table sets out a breakdown of the number of TXR&Z|HE2021F12A31HILFEL
trainees attended our driving courses, as well as our revenue IR FIE SRR E B A B RIREHE
by types of vehicles and types of driving courses for the year %Y & BB iRIZ A | DU R A4 - &
ended 31 December 2021, together with the comparative [R# £2020F 12318 It FE LR K
figures for the year ended 31 December 2020: ¥

For the year ended 31 December

BZ12A31ALEE
2021 2020
20214 20204

Number of Number of

trainees trainees
attended = RMB’000 % attended RMB’000 %

22 il B2 mEs
EEAE AR¥ETR % BEAH ARETT %

Large vehicles ABERH

- Standard courses — RERE 548 1,266 1.9 441 1,426 2.1
— Premium courses — BiERE 8,111 53,985 80.4 6,307 51,625 76.0

- Additional training — BIMEI R N/A N/A
services TEH 264 0.4 THEA 343 0.5
Sub-total INET 8,659 55,515 82.7 6,748 53,394 78.6

Small Vehicles NEVE

- Standard courses — BERE 2,761 2,987 4.4 2,208 1,823 2.6
- Premium courses — BikRE 3,763 8,244 12.3 6,090 12,428 18.3

- Additional training — BIME I PR N/A N/A
services TEA 405 0.6 NEH 318 05
6,524 11,636 17.3 8,298 14,569 21.4
Total Bt 15,183 67,151 100.0 15,046 67,963 100.0
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FINANCIAL REVIEW

1.

Overview

Our overall financial performance for the year ended 31
December 2021 has worsened as comparing to that
for the year ended 31 December 2020. We recorded
a slight decline in total revenue by RMBO0.8 million (or
approximately 1.2%) from RMB68.0 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020 to RMB67.2 million for the
year ended 31 December 2021. Our gross profit has
decreased by RMB7.1 million (or approximately 23.9%)
from RMB29.8 million for the year ended 31 December
2020 to RMB22.7 million for the year ended 31 December
2021. Our gross profit margin has also decreased by
10.1 percentage points from 43.8% for the year ended
31 December 2020 to 33.7% for the year ended 31
December 2021.

We recorded the net loss attributable to the owners of
the Company of approximately RMB3.5 million for the
year ended 31 December 2021 as compared to the
net profit attributable to the owners of the Company
of approximately RMB6.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2020. We also recorded a net loss margin
attributable to the owners of the Company of 5.1% for the
year ended 31 December 2021 as compared to the net
profit margin attributable to the owners of the Company
of 10.0% for the year ended 31 December 2020. The
profit before income tax attributable to the owners of
the Company has decreased by RMB8.0 million (or
approximately 83.3%) from approximately RMB9.6 million
for the year ended 31 December 2020 to approximately
RMB1.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEERBS®wWE DM (&)

Revenue

Our revenue decreased slightly by approximately RMBO0.8
million (or approximately 1.2%) from RMB68.0 million for
the year ended 31 December 2020 to RMB67.2 million for
the year ended 31 December 2021. The slight decrease
was resulted from the combined effect of increase in
revenue generated from the provision of driving training
services for Large Vehicles of approximately RMB2.1
million, which was offset by the decrease in revenue
generated from the provision of driving training services
for Small Vehicles of approximately RMB2.9 million, which
was mainly attributable to the impact of downward price
adjustment to our course fees for driving courses for
both Large Vehicles and Small Vehicles in response to
(i) regulatory changes with effect from the third quarter
of the year 2021 relating to setting-up of driving schools
in the PRC, which had lowered the threshold for entry
into the industry and increased the number of competing
driving training service provider for Large Vehicles in the
PRC; and (ii) keen competition following the outbreak of
Covid-19 pandemic.

The revenue generated from the provision of driving
training services for Large Vehicles slightly increased by
approximately RMB2.1 million (or approximately 4.0%),
from approximately RMB53.4 million for the year ended
31 December 2020 to approximately RMB55.5 million for
the year ended 31 December 2021. The increase was
mainly attributable to the combined effect of the increase
in each of the number of trainees who attended our
driving courses of Large Vehicles and the actual number
of training hours of our trainees of Large Vehicles from
6,748 and 374,028, respectively, for the year ended
31 December 2020 to 8,659 and 486,813, for the year
ended 31 December 2021, respectively, the positive
effect of which on revenue was, however, offset by the
effect of the downward price adjustments to our course
fee for Large Vehicles throughout the year 2021, which
led to decrease in the average course fee per hour and
thus revenue.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

The revenue generated from the provision of driving
training services for Small Vehicles has decreased by
approximately RMB2.9 million (or approximately 20.1%),
from approximately RMB14.6 million for the year ended
31 December 2020 to approximately RMB11.6 million for
the year ended 31 December 2021. Such decrease was
mainly attributable to (i) the downward price adjustments
to our course fee throughout the year 2021 which led to
decrease in the average course fee per hour and thus
revenue and (i) the decrease in the number of trainees
who attended our driving courses of Small Vehicles
and the actual number of training hours of our trainees
of Small Vehicles from 8,298 and 203,420 for the year
ended 31 December 2020 to 6,524 and 171,742, for
the year ended 31 December 2021, respectively. The
decrease in both the number of trainees who attended our
driving courses of Small Vehicles and the actual number
of training hours of our trainees of Small Vehicles were
mainly due to the combined effect of the increase in the
number of trainees who attended our standard courses,
which is offset by the effect of the significant decrease in
the number of trainees attended our premium course.

Cost of services rendered

Our cost of services rendered mainly comprises (i)
employee benefit expenses paid to our driving instructors
and other supporting staff; (ii) depreciation on property,
plant and equipment and rights-of-use assets; and (iii)
fuel expenses. Our cost of services rendered increased by
approximately RMB6.3 million (or approximately 16.6%),
from approximately RMB38.2 million for the year ended
31 December 2020 to approximately RMB44.5 million for
the year ended 31 December 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEERBS®wWE DM (&)

Employee benefit expenses increased by approximately
RMBO0.9 million (or approximately 5.0%), from
approximately RMB17.2 million for the year ended 31
December 2020 to approximately RMB18.0 million for
the year ended 31 December 2021. The increase was
mainly attributable to the combined effect of the increase
in salaries paid to our driving instructors and other
supporting staff in line with the increase in the actual
number of training hours of our trainees, which was offset
by the decreased average salaries resulted from the
change in the calculation bases of salaries.

Our fuel expenses increased by approximately RMB3.5
million (or approximately 47.5%), from approximately
RMB7.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2020
to approximately RMB10.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2021, which was mainly attributable to the
increase in the actual number of training hours of our
trainees as well as the overall increase in the average unit
price of gasoline.

Our depreciation and amortisation charges increased by
approximately RMB1.7 million (or approximately 17.8%)
from approximately RMB9.3 million for the year ended
31 December 2020 to approximately RMB11.0 million for
the year ended 31 December 2021, which was mainly
attributable to the increase in depreciation charges for the
new training motor vehicles and the depreciation charges
of right-of-use assets for the new parcel of leased land
for our expansion of training field since second half of
the year 2020 and the depreciation charges for the office
equipment for our new computer software and monitoring
system of our training fields.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Gross profit and gross profit margin

Our overall gross profit from the provision of driving
training services decreased by approximately RMB7.1
million (or approximately 23.9%), from approximately
RMB29.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2020
to approximately RMB22.7 million for the year ended 31
December 2021. The decrease in our overall gross profit
is in line with the decrease in our total revenue. Our gross
profit margin from the provision of driving training services
also decreased by approximately 10.1 percentage
points from approximately 43.8% for the year ended 31
December 2020 to approximately 33.7% for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

Our gross profit for Large Vehicles decreased by
approximately RMB5.2 million (or approximately 19.9%),
from approximately RMB26.0 million for the year ended
31 December 2020 to approximately RMB20.8 million
for the year ended 31 December 2021. Our gross profit
margin from the provision of driving training services
for Large Vehicles decreased by approximately 11.2
percentage points from approximately 48.7% for the
year ended 31 December 2020 to approximately 37.5%
for the year ended 31 December 2021. The decrease
in both gross profit and gross profit margin was mainly
attributable to (i) the downward price adjustments to our
course fee for the driving courses of Large Vehicles in
response to (a) keen competition following the outbreak
of Covid-19 pandemic; and (b) regulatory changes with
effect from the third quarter of the year 2021 relating to
setting-up of a driving schools in the PRC, throughout
the year 2021 which had intensified competitions and
put pressure on Tong Tai School in adjusting course fees
eventually led to decrease in the average course fee per
hour in 2021; (ii) the increase in the fuel expenses due
to increase in the number of the trainees who attended
our driving training course and the increase in the actual
number of training hours of our trainees of Large Vehicles,
as well as the overall increase in the average unit price
of gasoline; and (iii) the increase in the depreciation and
amortization charges from the driving training services for
Large Vehicles.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEERBS®wWE DM (&)

Our gross profit for Small Vehicles decreased by
approximately RMB2.0 million (or approximately 51.4%),
from approximately RMB3.8 million for the year ended
31 December 2020 to approximately RMB1.9 million
for the year ended 31 December 2021. Our gross profit
margin from the provision of driving training services for
Small Vehicles also decreased by approximately 10.3
percentage points from approximately 26.2% for the
year ended 31 December 2020 to approximately 15.9%
for the year ended 31 December 2021. The decrease
in both gross profit and gross profit margin was mainly
attributable to (i) the decrease in our revenue for the
provision of driving training services for Small Vehicles,
which is attributable to the decrease in the total number
of trainees attended our driving courses for Small Vehicles
as well as the decrease in actual number of training
hours of our trainees of Small Vehicles, and (ii) the effect
of the downward price adjustments to our course fee
for the driving courses of Small Vehicles in response to
keen competition following the outbreak of Covid-19
pandemic, which led to decrease in the average course
fee per hour.

Other Income and losses, net

Our other income decreased by approximately RMB3.6
million (or approximately 58.1%), from approximately
RMB6.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2020
to approximately RMB2.6 million for the year ended 31
December 2021. The decrease was mainly attributable
to (i) the increase in value-added tax refund benefited
from the subsidy from local tax authority in face of the
outbreak of Covid-19 and (ii) the increase in income from
the provision of service for the issuance of certificate
of qualification validation for Large Vehicles, which was
offset by the effect of (i) the absence of the one-off
government grants for approximately RMB5.0 million
received by the Group in the second half of the year 2020
for the successful listing by the Company of its Shares
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and (ii) the
decrease in the written-back from the other payables
to our trainees withdrawn of enrolment over three years
during the year ended 31 December 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Selling and marketing expenses

Our selling and marketing expenses decreased by
approximately RMB1.0 million, (or approximately 24.6%),
from approximately RMB4.0 million for the year ended
31 December 2020 to approximately RMB3.0 million
for the year ended 31 December 2021. Such decrease
was mainly attributable to the decrease in marketing and
advertising expenses.

Administrative expenses

Our administrative expenses are stable and slightly
decreased by approximately RMBO0.2 million (or
approximately 1.0%) from approximately RMB16.9 million
for the year ended 31 December 2020 to approximately
RMB16.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Finance costs

Our finance costs are stable at approximately RMB3.9
million for the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

Income tax expense

Our income tax expense increased by approximately
RMB2.2 million (or approximately 79.6%), from
approximately RMB2.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2020 to approximately RMB5.1 million for
the year ended 31 December 2021, which was mainly
attributable to the combined effect of the increase in
deferred tax expense recognised for the temporary
difference in depreciation of property, plant and
equipment of approximately RMB3.1 million and revenue
recognition of approximately RMB1.8 million, respectively,
for the year ended 31 December 2021 as compared to
the deferred tax credited for the temporary difference
in depreciation of property, plant and equipment of
approximately RMBO0.3 million and revenue recognition
of approximately RMB1.2 million, respectively, for the
year ended 31 December 2020 which was offset by the
decrease in current income tax of approximately RMB1.5
million and an over-provision in prior year’s income tax
of approximately RMB2.6 million for the year ended 31
December 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEERBS®wWE DM (&)

10. (Loss)/profit and total comprehensive (loss)/income
for the year

As a result of the above factors, we recorded loss and
total comprehensive loss of approximately RMB3.5
million for the year ended 31 December 2021, as
compared to the profit and total comprehensive income
of approximately RMB6.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2020, which was mainly attributable to (i)
the lower gross profit margin of both Small and Large
Vehicles resulting from the downward price adjustment
to our course fee for the driving courses of both Large
Vehicles and Small Vehicles; (i) the increase in the actual
number of training hours of our trainees as well as the
overall increase in the average unit price of gasoline; (iii)
the overall decrease in other income and (iv) increase
in deferred tax expenses recognised for the temporary
difference on depreciation of property, plant and
equipment and revenue recognition. Accordingly, the net
loss margin attributable to the owners of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2021 was 5.1%, as
compared to the net profit margin attributable to the
owners of the Company of 10.0% for the year ended 31
December 2020.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
FUNDING

The Group’s bank balances and cash increased from
approximately RMB167.6 million as at 31 December 2020 to
approximately RMB175.2 million as at 31 December 2021,
which was mainly attributable to the increase in operating cash
flows.

As at 31 December 2021, the current assets of the Group
amounted to approximately RMB178.2 million, including
approximately RMB175.2 million in bank balances and
cash, and approximately RMB3.0 million in trade and other
receivables, deposits and prepayments. The current liabilities
of the Group amounted to approximately RMB84.4 million,
including approximately RMB17.2 million in trade and other
payables and accruals, approximately RMB30.5 million
in contract liabilities, approximately RMB3.1 million in tax
liabilities, approximately RMB32.8 million in borrowings
and approximately RMB1.0 million in lease liabilities. As at
31 December 2021, the current ratio of the Group, which
is equivalent to the current assets divided by the current
liabilities, was 2.11 (31 December 2020: 1.76).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2021, the gearing ratio of the Group,
which was calculated based on total debt, including all
interest-bearing loans and lease liabilities divided by total
equity, was approximately 0.21 times (31 December 2020:
0.19 times)

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2021, the Company’s total number of
issued Shares was 400,000,000 of HK$0.01 each. On 23
October 2019, the Company issued 100,000,000 ordinary
shares at HKD1.28 per offer share from the share offer.
The use of proceeds from the share offer was for business
expansion and general working capital.

MATERIAL INVESTMENTS, ACQUISITIONS
AND DISPOSALS

On 8 July 2021 (after trading hours of the Stock Exchange),
Tongtai Cultural (as the transferor) entered into an equity
transfer agreement with &F &R RKE S BR A F] (Suiping
Zhonghe Thermal Power Limited Company) (“Suiping
Zhonghe”) (as the transferee). Pursuant to the agreement,
Tongtai Cultural agreed to transfer 5% equity interest,
representing its entire equity interest in JAI A R EHR A A
(Henan Zhonghe Thermal Power Limited Company), to Suiping
Zhonghe at nil consideration. As at 8 July 2021, Tongtai
Cultural had not made any capital contribution in respect
of its 5% equity interest in Henan Zhonghe Thermal Power
Limited Company, or injected any assets in place of capital
contribution into Henan Zhonghe Thermal Power Limited
Company. As a result, there is no financial impact to the
Group’s consolidated financial statements. Details of the said
transfer were set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 8 July 2021. Other than the aforesaid, the Group had
not made any other material acquisitions and/or disposals
during the year ended 31 December 2021.

For further details in respect of the aforesaid transactions,
please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 2
September 2020, 10 September 2020 and 8 July 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEERBS®wWE DM (&)

BORROWINGS AND PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As of 31 December 2021, the Group had an aggregate
interest-bearing borrowings of approximately RMB41.8
million as compared to approximately RMB36.8 million as of
31 December 2020. The borrowings of RMB32.8 million are
repayable within one year and RMB9.0 million are repayable
within a period of more than one year but not exceeding two
years.

As of 31 December 2021, the Group’s borrowings of
approximately RMB41.8 million were at fixed interest rates.
As at 31 December 2021, the current portion and non-current
portion borrowings of the Group amounting to approximately
RMB32.8 million and approximately RMB9.0 million,
respectively. Bank borrowings of approximately RMB38.8
million were guaranteed and pledged by certain prepaid land
lease payments/rights-of-use assets, office buildings and the
operation rights of certain subsidiaries of the Group and a bank
borrowing of RMBG.0 million is unsecured and unguaranteed.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2021, our Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities or guarantees and no member of our
Group was involved in any claim, litigation or arbitration of
material importance and no claim, litigation or arbitration of
material importance is known to our Directors to be pending or
threatened against any member of our Group. Accordingly, no
provision for the contingent liabilities in respect of litigation is
necessary.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s exposure to foreign
currency risk related primarily to certain bank balances and
other payables denominated in HK$. The Group currently
does not have a foreign currency hedging policy. However,
the management monitors foreign currency exposure and will
consider hedging foreign currency exposure should the need
arises.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

As at 31 December 2021, we had 423 employees,
representing a slight decrease from that of 443 employees as
at 31 December 2020. The number of employees employed
by the Group varies from time to time depending on need.
Employees’ remuneration is determined in accordance
with prevailing industry practice and employees’ working
experiences and performance. The remuneration policy and
package of the Group’s employees are periodically reviewed.
As required by the PRC laws and regulations, the Company
participates in various employee social security plans for
its employees that are administered by local governments,
including among others, housing provident funds, pensions,
medical insurance, social insurance and unemployment
insurance.

Compensation of key executives of the Group is determined
by the Company’s remuneration committee which reviews
and recommends to the Board of Directors the executives’
compensation based on the Group’s performance and the
executives’ respective contributions to the Group.

The Company has also adopted a share option scheme. For
details, please refer to the section headed “Statutory and
General Information — D. Share Option Scheme” in Appendix
V to the Prospectus.

The total employees benefit expenses incurred by the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2021 was approximately
RMB23.1 million (for the year ended 31 December 2020:
approximately RMB21.2 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)
BEERBS®wWE DM (&)

The following table sets forth the total number of Directors and T~ & & 7|71 2021412 531 B iR B e 2 o
employees by function as at 31 December 2021: NESEkEBSBE

Number of % of

employees the total

EEAE HHAEESH

Function Bige
Directors 5% 6 1.4
Driving instructors Sy & 312 73.8
Sale and marketing HE R TiGHEE 31 7.3
Finance and accounting W ReEt 10 2.4
Teaching affair office A% B 20 4.7
Administration 1T 39 9.2
Vehicle management B E R 5 1.2
Total weE 423 100.0
SUBSEQUENT EVENTS HErEE

There are no material events subsequent to 31 December
2021 which would materially affect the operating and financial
performance of the Group as of the date of this report.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS

Apart from those disclosed in this annual report, there were no
material investments or additions of capital assets authorised
by the Board at the date of this annual report.

Please also refer to the paragraph headed “Use of Proceeds”
under the Report of the Directors below from pages 114 to 115
of this annual report for the expected source and allocation of
funding for the Groups’ material investment.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

For the year ended 31 December 2021, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any
listed securities of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

INTRODUCTION

The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance
report of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2021.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining a high corporate
governance standard to enhance the transparency,
accountability and corporate value of the Company and
safeguard the interests of the Shareholders. Since the Listing
Date, the Company has adopted the principles and code
provisions in the Corporate Governance Code as fundamental
guidelines for the corporate governance practices of the
Company. For the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Company has complied with all the code provisions as set
out in the Corporate Governance Code. The Company will
continue to review and monitor the corporate governance
practices of the Company to ensure compliance with the
Corporate Governance Code and maintain high standard of
corporate governance practices.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors on
terms no less exacting than the required standard set out in
the Model Code.

Having made specific enquiry of all the Directors, all the
Directors have confirmed that they had complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code regarding
securities transactions by the Directors and there have been
no incidents of non-compliance with the required standard set
out in the Model Code.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
EXRERHRE (&)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition of the Board

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprised
six Directors, including two executive Directors, one
non-executive Director and three independent non-executive
Directors as set out below:

Executive Directors
Mr. Qi Xiangzhong (Chairman)
Ms. Zhao Yuxia
(Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer)

Non-executive Director
Dr. Yeung Cheuk Kwong

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Chan Siu Wah

Mr. Cheng Chun Shing

Mr. Goh Teng Hwee

The biographies of the Directors are set out under the
section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management” from pages 98 to 108 of this annual
report. None of the Directors has any personal relationship
(including financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationships) with any other Directors or any chief executive of
the Company.

Meetings of the Board

The Corporate Governance Code states that meetings of the
board of directors of a listed issuer should be held at least four
times a year at approximately quarterly intervals.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, four Board
meetings were held. The Board will continue to make
arrangements for holding at least four meetings for every
subsequent year.

For the respective attendance of the Directors, please refer
to the paragraph headed “Attendance Record at Meetings of
the Board and Board Committees” below on page 38 of this
annual report.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The Corporate Governance Code stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual.

Accordingly, to ensure a balance of power and authority, the
positions of the Chairman and the chief executive officer are
held separately by Mr. Qi Xiangzhong and Ms. Zhao Yuxia
respectively, where Mr. Qi Xiangzhong as the Chairman
is responsible for major decision-making, overall strategic
planning and determining corporate policies and general
management of the Group, and Ms. Zhao Yuxia as the chief
executive officer is responsible for the overall management of
the business operation and financial planning of operations of
the Group.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board has
met with the requirements of Rules 3.10(1), Rule 3.10(2) and
Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules, relating to the appointment
of at least three independent non-executive directors,
representing at least one-third of the Board, and with at least
one possessing appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each of the independent non-executive Directors in respect
of their respective independence in accordance with the
independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. Accordingly, the Company considers each of them to be
independent.

Meetings with the Independent Non-Executive Directors

The Corporate Governance Code states that the chairman of
the board of directors of a listed issuer should hold meetings
with the independent non-executive directors at least annually
without the presence of other directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, one meeting
was held between the Chairman and the independent
non-executive Directors, with each of the independent
non-executive Directors present. The Chairman will continue to
make arrangements for holding at least one meeting with the
independent nonexecutive Directors for every subsequent year.
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Service Contracts and Letters of Appointment with
Directors

Each of the executive Directors (namely Mr. Qi Xiangzhong and
Ms. Zhao Yuxia) has entered into a service contract with the
Company in respect of his/her appointment as an executive
Director for an initial fixed term of three years commenced from
24 October 2019, unless and until terminated by the executive
Director or the Company by giving not less than three months’
notice in writing at any time during the initial term. Each of
the executive Directors is entitled to an annual emolument of
RMB240,000 for acting as an executive Director. Such annual
emolument may be reviewed annually after each year of service
during the term of the service contract by the Remuneration
Committee. Each of the executive Directors is also entitled to a
discretionary bonus, if so recommended by the Remuneration
Committee and approved by the Board, having regard to the
operating results of the Group and the individual performance
of the executive Director.

The non-executive Director (namely Dr. Yeung Cheuk
Kwong) has entered into a letter of appointment with the
Company for an initial fixed term of three years commenced
from 24 October 2019, unless and until terminated by the
non-executive Director or the Company by giving not less
than three months’ notice in writing at any time during the
initial term. The non-executive Director is entitled to an annual
emolument of RMB120,000 for acting as a non-executive
Director. Such annual salary may be reviewed annually
after each year of service during the term of the letter of
appointment by the Remuneration Committee.

Each of the independent non-executive Director (namely
Mr. Chan Siu Wah, Mr. Cheng Chun Shing and Mr. Goh
Teng Hwee) has entered into a letter of appointment with the
Company for an initial fixed term of three years commenced
from 24 October 2019, unless and until terminated by the
independent nonexecutive Director or the Company by giving
not less than three months’ notice in writing at any time during
the initial term. The independent non-executive Director is
entitled to an annual emolument of RMB120,000 for acting as
an independent non-executive Director. Such annual salary
may be reviewed annually after each year of service during
the term of the letter of appointment by the Remuneration
Committee.
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For further details of the emoluments of the Directors during
the year ended 31 December 2021, please refer to the
paragraph headed “Emoluments of Directors and Senior
Management” under the Report of the Directors on page 124
of this annual report, and Note 12 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESPONSIBILITIES, ACCOUNTABILITIES
AND CONTRIBUTIONS OF THE BOARD AND
MANAGEMENT

The Board assumes responsibility for, among other things,
the leadership and control of the Company and the business,
strategic decisions and financial performance of the Group.
Each of the Directors takes decisions objectively in the best
interests of the Company and is collectively responsible for
promoting the success of the Company by directing and
supervising its affairs.

To ensure a sound framework of responsibilities and
accountabilities, the Board is scheduled to meet for at least
four times a year. Between scheduled meetings, senior
management of the Group provides the Directors with
information on a timely basis on the activities and development
in the businesses of the Group and when required, additional
Board meetings are held. Alongside having meetings, the
Directors would also approve various matters by way of
passing written resolutions.

The Company Secretary would assist in preparing the agenda
for the Board meeting and ensure that all the applicable laws
and regulations regarding meetings of the Board, as well as
the Articles of Association are complied with. Minutes of the
meeting of the Board and Board Committees are kept by the
Company Secretary and are available to all the Directors for
inspection.

All the Directors have full and timely access to all the
information of the Company as well as the services and advice
from the Company Secretary and senior management. The
Directors may, upon request, seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances and at the Company’s
expenses, for discharging their duties to the Company.
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Each of the Directors would also disclose to the Company
details of other offices held by them and the Board regularly
reviews the contribution required from each Director to perform
his or her responsibilities to the Company.

The Board reserves its decision on all major matters relating
to policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal control
and risk management, material transactions (in particular
those that may involve conflict of interests), financial
information, appointment of Directors and other significant
operational matters of the Company. Responsibilities
relating to implementing decisions of the Board, directing
and co-ordinating the daily operation and management
of the Company are delegated by the Board to the senior
management.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Under the Corporate Governance Code, all directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills. Accordingly, each of
the Directors has received formal and comprehensive induction
tailor-made by the legal advisers of the Company as to Hong
Kong law on the first occasion of his or her appointment to
ensure full awareness of the responsibilities and obligations
as a Director under the Listing Rules and the relevant laws
and regulations. During the year ended 31 December 2021,
relevant reading materials, including regulatory updates,
seminar handouts and briefings, have also been provided
to the Directors for their reference and studying to ensure
compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices.

DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of possible legal action against its Directors and senior
officers.

Please also refer to the paragraph headed “Permitted
Indemnity Provision” under the Report of the Directors on
page 123 of this annual report for the permitted indemnity
provisions in force and in place under the Directors and officers
insurance.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is primarily responsible for determining the policy
for the corporate governance of the Company and performing
the corporate governance duties and functions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code, including, among other things,
reviewing the policies and practices of the Company on
corporate governance; reviewing and monitoring the training
and continuous professional development of Directors and
senior management; reviewing and monitoring the policies
and practices of the Company on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements; developing, reviewing and monitoring
the code of conduct applicable to employees and Directors;
and reviewing the Company’s compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report.

During the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date
of this annual report, the following work, among other things,
have been performed by the Board:

— directed the Board Committees to review the existing
policies and procedures of the Board and the Board
Committees;

— engaged Hong Kong legal advisers to provide corporate
secretarial and compliance services to the Company with
reference to the Listing Rules and other applicable laws
and regulations;

— engaged an external professional consultant to conduct
a review and further enhance the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group;

—  reviewed the level of compliance of the Company with the
Corporate Governance Code; and

— reviewed the disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

As an integral part of good corporate governance practices,
the Board had established three Board Committees on
19 September 2019, namely the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee, for
overseeing particular aspects of the affairs of the Group. Each
of these Board Committees comprises mostly independent
non-executive Directors who have been invited to serve
as members. The Board Committees are governed by the
respective terms of reference that are in compliance with
the applicable rules in Listing Rules and principles and code
provisions in the Corporate Governance Code and were
approved by the Board. The terms of reference of each of
the Board Committees are published on the websites of the
Company (www.china-oriented.com) and the Stock Exchange
(www.hkexnews.hk).

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of three members, namely Mr.
Cheng Chun Shing (as the chairman), Mr. Chan Siu Wah and
Mr. Goh Teng Hwee, all being independent non-executive
Directors. The duties of the Audit Committee include, among
other things, reviewing the consolidated financial statements
of the Group, overseeing financial reporting, financial
control, internal control and risk management systems of
the Group, and making recommendations to the Board on
the appointment and removal of the external auditor of the
Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, four meetings
of the Audit Committee were held. The Audit Committee
will continue to make arrangements for holding at least two
meetings for every subsequent year.

For the respective attendance of the members of the Audit
Committee, please refer to the paragraph headed “Attendance
Record at Meetings of the Board and Board Committees”
below on page 38 of this annual report.
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During the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date
of this annual report, the Audit Committee had performed,
among other things, the following work:

—  made recommendation to the Board in respect of change
in external auditor of the Company;

- reviewed and commented on the unaudited consolidated
financial statements for the six months ended 30 June
2021 and the interim report for the six months ended 30
June 2021;

—  reviewed and commented on the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2021 and the annual report for the year ended 31
December 2021;

— engaged and coordinated with an external professional
consultant to review the financial controls, internal control
and risk management systems of the Company;

- discussed and reviewed the need for an internal audit
function; and

— reviewed the financial and accounting policies and
practices of the Group.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the financial year ended
31 December 2021, including the accounting principles
and policies adopted by the Group, in conjunction with the
Company’s external auditor and recommended to the Board
the same for approval of the Shareholders at the AGM.

The Board agreed with the proposal of the Audit Committee
on the re-appointment of Moore Stephens CPA Limited as
the external auditor of the Company for the year ending 31
December 2022. The recommendation will be put forward for
the approval of the Shareholders at the forthcoming AGM.

For an analysis of remuneration in respect of audit services
provided by Moore Stephens CPA Limited during the year
ended 31 December 2021, please refer to the paragraph
headed “Auditor’s Remuneration” below on page 42 of this
annual report.
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For the review on the internal control and risk management
systems of the Company, please refer to the paragraph
headed “Risk Management and Internal Control System” below
from pages 38 to 40 of this annual report.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee consists of four members,
namely Mr. Qi Xiangzhong (as the chairman), Mr. Chan Siu
Wah, Mr. Cheng Chun Shing and Mr. Goh Teng Hwee. Save
for Mr. Qi Xiangzhong, who is an executive Director, all the
members of the Nomination Committee are independent
nonexecutive Directors. The duties of the Nomination
Committee include, among other things, reviewing the
structure, size and composition of the Board, establishing
and reviewing the policies and procedures on the selection,
appointment and reappointment of Directors, reviewing
the policy on diversity of the Board and assessing the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, one meeting of the
Nomination Committee was held. The Nomination Committee
will continue to make arrangements for holding at least one
meeting for every subsequent year.

For the respective attendance of the members of the
Nomination Committee, please refer to the paragraph headed
“Attendance Record at Meetings of the Board and Board
Committees” below on page 38 of this annual report.

During the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the
date of this annual report, the Nomination Committee had
performed, among other things, the following work:

—  reviewed the structure and composition (including skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board;

- reviewed the nomination policy on the identification,
selection, appointment and re-appointment of individual

as Directors and succession planning for Directors;

- made recommendations to the Board on the re-election of
Directors in the AGM;
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— reviewed the board diversity policy of the Company,
in particular the progress on achieving the measurable
objectives as set out in the policy; and

— assessed the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors and made recommendations to
the Board on their respective re-elections

Nomination Policy

The Nomination Committee has developed a nomination policy
which has been adopted by the Board on 27 March 2020. The
nomination policy is established with the aims of ensuring the
Board maintains a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the business
of the Group.

To assess and evaluate whether an individual candidate is
suitably qualified to be appointed as a Director, the Nomination
Committee shall take into account, among other things:

- the qualifications, skills, knowledge, ability and
experience of the individual candidate;

—  the potential time commitment and attention to perform
duties as a director under the Listing Rules and the
applicable laws and regulations;

—  the potential contributions that the individual candidate
can make to the diversity of the Board, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service;

- the personal ethics, integrity and reputation of the
individual candidate (and where appropriate, adequate
background checks and other verification processes shall
be conducted against the individual candidate);

—  the current structure, size and composition of the Board
and the Company’s corporate strategy;
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—  Board succession planning considerations and the long
term needs of the Company;

— (in case of a candidate for an independent non-executive
Director), the independence of such candidate with
reference to, among other things, the independence
criteria as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules; and
the guidance and requirements relating to independent
non-executive directors set out in the Corporate
Governance Code; and

— any other factors and matters as the Nomination
Committee may consider appropriate.

The Nomination Committee will review the nomination policy
at least annually and discuss any revisions and updates that
may be required, and recommend the same to the Board for
approval.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in supporting the attainment of its strategic
objectives and its sustainable development. In compliance with
Rule 13.92 of the Listing Rules, a policy concerning diversity
of the members of the Board were adopted by the Company
on 19 September 2019 and applied and reviewed by the
Nomination Committee at least annually.

In assessing the composition of the Board, the Nomination
Committee would take into account various measurable
objectives as set out in the board diversity policy, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments will
be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board.
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In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for
directorships, the Nomination Committee would consider
measurable objectives including the candidate’s character,
qualifications, experience, independence and other relevant
criteria necessary to complement the corporate strategy and
achieve board diversity, where appropriate, before making
recommendation to the Board. The ultimate decision will be
based on merits and contribution that the selected candidates
will bring to the Board.

The Nomination Committee will review the board diversity
policy at least annually and discuss any revisions and updates
that may be required, and recommend the same to the Board
for approval.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee consists of four members,
namely Mr. Chan Siu Wah (as the chairman), Mr. Qi
Xiangzhong, Mr. Cheng Chun Shing and Mr. Goh Teng Hwee.
Save for Mr. Qi Xiangzhong, who is an executive Director, all
the members of the Remuneration Committee are independent
nonexecutive Directors. The duties of the Remuneration
Committee include, among other things, reviewing and
approving the remuneration proposals of the management
with reference to the corporate goals and objectives of the
Board, reviewing the remuneration packages of individual
executive Directors and senior management and developing
policy and structure on remuneration of all directors and senior
management.

Pursuant to the Corporate Governance Code and under
the terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee,
the Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages
of individual executive Directors and senior management.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, one meeting of
the Remuneration Committee was held. The Remuneration
Committee will continue to make arrangements for holding at
least one meeting for every subsequent year.
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For the respective attendance of the members of the
Remuneration Committee, please refer to the paragraph
headed “Attendance Record at the Meetings of the Board and
Board Committees” below on page 38 of this annual report.

During the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the
date of this annual report, the Remuneration Committee had
performed, among other things, the following work:

reviewed the policy on the remuneration structure of all
Directors and senior management;

— assessed the performance of the executive Directors;

- reviewed and approved the remuneration proposals by
the management of the Group with reference to corporate
goals and objectives; and

- recommended on the remuneration packages of all
Directors for the financial year ending 31 December 2022.

Pursuant to the Corporate Governance Code, the
remuneration of the members of the senior management (other
than Directors) by band for the year ended 31 December 2021
is as follows:

s E

Remuneration band

EREFHEZEEXBEMNHFERR - &
SEAFRTINEBEEZTGNEFE
BggamnmEa] —&e-

REZ2021F12A3IB I FEREER
FHRHH FTHEZESEET (HEHb B
FE) LA I4E -

- BABEZEREHREEAB KM
RER R HUR

— HERTESEHRIR

— Z2BRARENAEE BAEEE
EBEEEMITHETIEE &

—  BEE2022F12A31B LI BFEE
FIEEEMHFMNFBREES -

BIBECEEATE  SREBAE(ES

BRAN) REBIE2021F12 4318 IEFEH
AR E DM

Number of individuals

AH

Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ %1,000,000/& 7T

For further details in respect of the emoluments of the Directors
and senior management for the year ended 31 December
2021, please refer to the paragraph headed “Emoluments of
Directors and Senior Management” under the Report of the
Directors on page 124 of this annual report and Note 12 of the
consolidated financial statement.
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Policy on the Remuneration of Directors and Senior
Management

The Remuneration Committee has developed a remuneration
policy which has been adopted by the Board on 27 March
2020. The remuneration policy of the Group is set on the
principles that the remuneration packages of executive
Directors and senior management of the Company should
be reviewed annually and determined by the Remuneration
Committee based on the duties, responsibilities of each
individual executive Director and senior management staff,
performance of the Group and the remuneration packages
paid by comparable companies in the same industry based
on the prevailing market conditions. No Director or any of his/
her associates should be involved in deciding his/her own
remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee will review the remuneration
policy at least annually and discuss any revisions and updates
that may be required, and recommend the same to the Board
for approval.
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ATTENDANCE RECORD AT MEETINGS OF
THE BOARD AND BOARD COMMITTEES

The attendance of each Director at Board and Board
Committees meetings of the Company, whether in person or
by means of electronic communication, is detailed in the table
below:

EEEgRESREEETENS
J# 5T 8%
EERRALBBE T BHS AL EE

AREERREFEARRANERY
TR

Attendance/number of meetings held
during the year ended 31 December 2021
REZ2021512A31A L EEHE BT EEHE

Audit Remuneration Nomination

Board Committee Committee Committee
Name of Director BEEHE EEe EBNRZET® FMZEEe REEZEE
Executive Directors YTEE
Mr. Qi Xiangzhong TR E 5/5 — 11 11
Ms. Zhao Yuxia HEEXTL 5/5 — — —
Non-executive Director FHTES
Dr. Yeung Cheuk Kwong BEAET 5/5 — — —
Independent non-executive Directors BYFHTES
Mr. Chan Siu Wah BRANESAE 5/5 4/4 1/1 1/1
Mr. Cheng Chun Shing HES A 5/5 4/4 1/1 1/1
Mr. Goh Teng Hwee RERTE 5/5 4/4 11 11

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL SYSTEM

The Board is primarily responsible for maintaining and
overseeing the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group on an on-going basis. Reviews on the systems
are conducted at least annually. The scope of review, which
is determined and recommended by the Audit Committee
and approved by the Board annually, covers all material
controls, including but not limited to financial, operational and
compliance controls; risk management functions; and the
adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff in
connection with the accounting and financial reporting function
of the Group and their training programmes and relevant
budget.
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The Board, having considered the nature of business and
the organisation structure of the Group, designed the risk
management and internal control systems with the aims of:

safeguarding the assets of the Group;

—  maintaining appropriate accounting records and financial
reporting;

— achieving efficiency of operations; and

— ensuring compliance with the Listing Rules and all other
applicable laws and regulations.

The risk management and internal control systems are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable
but not absolute assurance against material misstatement or
loss.

The Board has continued to engage an external professional
consultant to conduct a review and further enhance on the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group during the year ended 31 December
2021. The overall control environment of the Group, including,
among other things, the organisational structure of the Group,
the effectiveness of the Board and the Board Committees
and the division of responsibilities among the management
of the Group, were reviewed. An assessment of the principal
risks and uncertainties faced by the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2021 was also conducted by the
external professional consultant. The categories, extent,
consequences, seriousness, and probability of such risks and
uncertainties were identified in the assessment. The Board has
also assigned relevant person-in-charge to develop, implement
and review appropriate measures in connection with the
potential risks and uncertainties. The external professional
consultant is of the view that the current risk management
and internal control systems of the Group is effective and
adequate.
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The Corporate Governance Code provides that a listed issuer
should have an internal audit function. Currently, the Group
does not have an internal audit function. Having assessed the
scale, nature and complexity of the business of the Group,
the Board is of the view that it would be more cost effective
to appoint an external professional consultant to perform the
internal audit functions for the Group should the need arises.
The Board will continue to review the need for an internal audit
function on an annual basis.

To enhance the system of the Group on handling and
disseminating inside information, and to ensure timely and
accurate disclosure of such information pursuant to the
relevant provisions under the SFO and the Listing Rules, the
Group has also formulated and adopted an inside information
policy on 27 March 2020. Certain measures and procedures
that have been implemented are as follows:

— the Group conducts its affairs with close regard to the
disclosure requirement under the Listing Rules as well
as the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information”
published by the Securities and Futures Commission of
Hong Kong in June 2012;

—  the Group has strictly prohibited unauthorised use of
confidential or inside information; and

— the Group regularly reminds the Directors and the
employees about due compliance with all policies
regarding inside information, as well as keeps them
appraised of the latest regulatory updates.

The Board will review the inside information from time to time
and may made any amendments and/or modifications that it
deems necessary or desirable.

Overall, the Board is of the view that the current risk

management and internal control system is effective and
adequate.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a dividend policy on 27 March 2020.
Pursuant to the Dividend Policy, the Company may consider
whether to propose a dividend out of its distributable profits
and reserves and determine the amount of dividend by taking
into account the following factors, including but not limited to:

()  the general financial condition of the Group;
(i)  the earnings and cash flow of the Group;
(i) the expected working capital requirement of the Group;

(iv) the statutory fund reserve requirements of the operating
subsidiaries of the Group in the PRC; and

(v) any other factors that the Board deems relevant and
appropriate.

The payment of the dividend by the Company may be limited
under the financing agreements that the Group currently has
or that it may enter into in the future. It is also subject to any
restrictions under the Companies Act of the Cayman lIslands,
the laws of Hong Kong, the memorandum and articles of
association of the Company, and any other applicable laws
and regulations.

The Company does not have any predetermined dividend
distribution ratio. The Board will review the dividend policy
from time to time and may made any amendments and/or
modifications that it deems necessary or desirable. There is no
assurance that a dividend will be proposed or declared in any
particular amount for any specific period.

The dividend policy shall in no way constitute a legally-binding
commitment by the Company in respect of its future dividend
and/or in no way obligate the Company to declare a dividend
at any time or from time to time.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
TERERHRE (&)

BB BER

EE 2D MN2020F3A27TH A K B I
K-BREBREREX  ARAIAZEESR
WA HLSRFEAEEPIRIRKRE - I
EETRESHE KHEUATHEZRZ 81
BRER

() ANEBEOH—REBAR
(i) AEENHERDZFRSRE
(i) NEEFEHLEEAFTHK

(v) AEBERPEZZENBERRZE
EfRBEHR &

V) EFER/EEMEENTMNEM
S

ARAXMNHREATEEREAEEE
AIEARKRAETNLNBEHER
R-HENXINFEHERRE  BRA
5]~ AN A AR A AR KA AN AR B DA K
E ] At 8 A RIE R R o

ARBRBEEMEENBRE DB LG -
EFef T RmaI BB BER - XA sEfE
HER BV EH AT EMERT KX
2k - BIRRE ST EHMIEZ
KEMIAHFESBIRE -

B SRR AB AR AR 2 B 3 E R R
HUEBRR I AEGE R/ BT AR F]
BEBEEFMRRITREMRE

ARERZERERARE o —FT— —FFH

41



42

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
EXRERHRE (&)

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group engaged
Moore Stephens CPA Limited as the external auditor of
the Company and to hold office until the conclusion of the
forthcoming annual general meeting. The remuneration paid
or payable to Moore Stephens CPA Limited in respect of their
audit during the year ended 31 December 2021 is set out as
follows:

% 24 B B B

REE2021F12A31B I FE » AEE
FERESHEESHMELER QA
EBARRRIRIINEZEBM T THRERE
BITHRERBFASHERAL - REZE
2021F12A31BILFE  MAESFHE
IR ESARQRNZEE ek E
NHMeEHI T

RMB’000
ARET
Audit services — Annual audit ZHR®E — FEZY 750

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Tsang Chi Hon (“Mr. Tsang”), the Company Secretary,
plays an important role in supporting the Board by ensuring
good information flow within the Board and that the Board
policies and procedures are duly followed. To assist the
Board in functioning effectively and efficiently, the Company
Secretary reports to the Board through the Chairman and is
responsible for advising the Board on governance matters
and facilitates the induction and professional development of
Directors. All Directors may call upon the Company Secretary
for advice and assistance at any time in respect to their
duties and the effective operation of the Board and the Board
Committees.

To uphold good corporate governance and ensure compliance
with the Listing Rules and the applicable Hong Kong laws,
the Company also engages an external service provider to
assist the Company Secretary to discharge his duties as
the Company Secretary. Mr. Tsang is the primary corporate
contact person of the Company in respect of the engagement.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company

Secretary took no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS

The Company strives to provide ready, fair, regular and
timely disclosure of information that is material to the investor
community. Therefore, the Company works to maintain
an on-going dialogue with Shareholders and in particular,
through annual general meeting and other general meetings
or other proper means. The Chairman, all other members
of the Board including independent non-executive Directors
and the chairmen of all Board committees will attend the
forthcoming AGM to meet with the Shareholders and answer
their enquiries.

In addition, the Company has developed a shareholder
communication policy with the objective of maintaining
effective and timely dissemination of the Company’s
information to its Shareholders and the market, including
its financial performance, strategic goals and plans,
material developments and governance, in order to enable
Shareholders to exercise their rights in a timely and informed
manner, and to allow Shareholders and the investment
community to engage actively with the Company. During the
year ended 31 December 2021, Board has maintained and
regularly reviewed the policy in accordance with the Corporate
Governance Code to ensure its effectiveness. Reference has
also been made to the shareholders’ communication policy of
other listed issuers in Hong Kong to ensure the Company’s
shareholders’ communication policy is on par with market
standard.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
Convening an extraordinary general meeting

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association, an
extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”) may be convened by
the Board on requisition of Shareholder(s) holding not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company at the date
of deposit of the requisition.

The requisitionists must state the objects clearly in the
requisition, sign the requisition and deposit the same to the
Board or Company Secretary.

If the requisition is found to be proper and in order, the EGM
shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition.
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If the Board fails to proceed to convene such EGM within
21 days from the date of the deposit of the requisition, the
requisitionist(s) himself/herself/itself/themselves may proceed
to convene the EGM in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of failure
of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

Procedures to put forward enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries to the Board. Such
enquiries can be addressed to the Company Secretary in
writing by post to the Company’s principal place of business
in Hong Kong at Rooms 1508-1513, Nan Fung Tower, 88
Connaught Road Central, Central, Hong Kong or by email to
calvintsang@zmdttjx.cn.

Procedures to put forward proposals at shareholders’
meeting

Shareholders who wish to put forward proposals at general
meetings may achieve so by means of convening an EGM
following the procedures as set out in the paragraph above.
As regards to the procedures for shareholders to propose a
person for election as a Director, Shareholders may refer to
the “Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for
Election as a Director of the Company” which is available on
the website of the Company (www.china-oriented.com).

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company
dated 29 March 2022. The Board proposes to amend
the Articles of Association in order to (i) bring the Articles
of Association in line with the amendments made to the
applicable laws of the Cayman Islands and the Listing Rules,
in particular Appendix 3 to the Listing Rules regarding the
core shareholder protection standards which became effective
on 1 January 2022; (ii) incorporate certain consequential
and housekeeping amendments; and (iii) update and clarify
provisions where it is considered desirable. As such, the
Board proposes to adopt a new set of articles of association
in substitution for the Articles of Association (the “Proposed
Amendments”).
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The adoption of the Proposed Amendments is subject to the
approval of the shareholders of the Company by way of a
special resolution at a general meeting of the Company. An
explanation of the effect of the Proposed Amendments and
the full terms of the Proposed Amendments, together with the
notice of AGM and the proxy form has been despatched to the
Shareholders in the AGM Circular.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2021 which give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Group.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation
and information as are necessary to enable the Board to
carry out an informed assessment of the Company’s financial
statements, which are put to the Board for approval.

The Company has provided all members of the Board with
regular updates on the Company’s performance, positions and
prospects.

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, are not
aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement by the external auditor regarding its reporting
responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements of the
Company is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report from
pages 132 to 232 of this annual report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BRI HERERAHS

ABOUT THIS REPORT

This is the second Environmental, Social and Governance
Report (ESG Report) of China Oriented International Holdings
Limited (“the Company” or “China Oriented”) along with its
subsidiaries (collectively, “the Group” or “we”). Based on
the principles of openness and transparency, we report to
all stakeholders on the Group’s ESG performance in 2021
in a comprehensive and objective manner. For corporate
governance, please refer to the Corporate Governance Report
on pages 23 to 45 of the Annual Report.

The Board of Directors acknowledges its responsibility to
ensure the integrity and truthfulness of the report and confirms
that to the best of its knowledge, this report addresses all
material topics related to the Group and fairly presents the
Group’s ESG performance and environmental impacts. The
Board of Directors has reviewed and approved this report.

Reporting Standard

This report has been prepared in accordance with the ESG
Reporting Guide set out in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules of
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“HKEX”) and the
actual situation of the Group. Data is analysed and presented
such that a year-on-year comparison is easy for the reader.
During the preparation for this ESG Report, the Group has
applied the reporting principles stipulated in the ESG Reporting
Guide as follows:

° “Materiality” — The materiality assessment was conducted
to identify material issues, thereby adopting the confirmed
material issues as the focus for the preparation of the
ESG Report. The materiality of issues was reviewed and
confirmed by the Board and various departments. Please
refer to the sections headed “ldentification of Material
Topics” for further details.

o “Quantitative” — Supplementary notes are added along
with quantitative data disclosed in the ESG Report to
explain any standards, methodologies, and source
of conversion factors used during the calculation of
emissions and energy consumption.

o “Consistency” — The preparation approach of this ESG
Report was substantially consistent with the previous
year, and explanations were provided regarding data
with changes in the scope of disclosure and calculation
methodologies.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Reporting Period and Boundary

The reporting period is the fiscal year from 1 January to 31
December 2021. Unless otherwise specified, this report covers
operations of the driving training service of our two driving
schools, which are Shun Da School and Tong Tai School
located in Zhumadian City, Henan Province, China.

Feedback

This report is published in both Chinese and English. In
case of any discrepancy between the two versions, the
Chinese version shall prevail. We are committed to providing
more comprehensive and accurate ESG information to our
stakeholders and welcome your comments and suggestions
on this report. You may provide your valuable comments by
telephone or email:

Telephone: +852-53136535
Email: info@zmdttjx.cn

MESSAGE FROM CHAIRMAN

Dear stakeholders:

As a spokeperson for the Group, | hereby present the third
ESG Report to all stakeholders. | believe it was a hard time
to the world due to the outbreak of COVID-19, nevertheless,
the Group exerts the greatest effort and work hand-in-hand to
fight against the pandemic while fulfilling its corporate social
responsibility by assisting the society that suffers a setback
from pandemic. Corporate social responsibility is embedded
deeply into our business. A total of RMB270,000 is donated,
and volunteer works are conducted as a return to the society
via various social welfare activities. With actively donating of
goods, the stress on material shortage of the needy shall be
relieved. On the other hand, we recognize the looming crisis of
climate change. We have identified the potential climate risks
and developed mitigation plans accordingly.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RE -#H@RERARE (&)

People-oriented

To pave a way towards sustainable development, it is crucial
to ensure the retention and satisfaction of employees which
are the foundation of the Group. During the year, we carried
forward talent training from three aspects, including orientation
training, corporate training, and professional training. The
trainings are capable to refine the teaching and training level
of driving instructors and strengthen the professionalism of
employees meticulously, contributing to overall upgrade of the
Group’s operation. During the year, 393 employees received
training with a total training hour of 1,422 hours and a training
rate of 93.79% in overall. We also organized various employee
activities during the year to enhance the relationship among the
teams and promote their sense of belonging. During the year,
the Group has invested a total of RMB669,000 on employees’
welfare.

The Group prioritise employees’ occupational health and
safety at all times. Road safety inspections, safety education
and training seminars, safety education, and mental health
and emotion management activities are arranged regularly to
ensure correct driving practices, enhance employees’ safety
awareness, and promote consciousness of physical and
mental conditions. A vehicle management team is also set
up to regularly maintain, inspect and repair vehicles in order
to lower the risk of car accident. It is our conviction that with
well-managed health of employees and training vehicles, the
performance of the business operation can be taken to the
next level. During the year, we recorded a total of 327 training
hours for occupational safety and health training. Moreover,
mitigation plans are established to ensure the minimization of
physical risk that could threaten employees’ safety.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Giving Back to Society

During the year, the Group donated RMB270,000 to alleviate
the pressure on the society by participating social welfare
activities, such as Donate with Love, providing consolation
fee for poor households, and donating flood-fighting food in
Xinxiang and so on, with a total of 1,912.5 hours volunteer
working. In addition, vehicles are prepared to provide free
transportation to people suffering from serious flooding.
Simultaneously, volunteer training was offered to people in
need such that they could be equipped with ability to drive and
work.

Sustainability is a material issue with growing attention
around the globe. It has always been a significant part of the
Group’s business operation that accompanies with notable
environmental and social impacts. To attain the vision of
sustainable operation and fulfill stakeholders’ expectations,
we will keep on reviewing and revising the management,
policies and measures, and tracking of activities. The Group
is committed to endeavour better environmental and social
performances and create value in the coming future.

Qi Xiangzhong

Chairman and Executive Director

China Oriented International Holdings Limited
29 March 2022
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RE -#H@RERARE (&)

SUSTAINABILITY MANAGEMENT

Sustainability is the goal of the Group. Combining the concept
of sustainability and the Group’s development strategy, we
manage and supervise sustainability-related matters through
multi-department collaboration.

Sustainability Management Structure

The Board of Directors has the ultimate responsibility of
overseeing and setting out ESG management approach
and strategy for the Group with the assistance of various
departments. The sustainability-related matters of the Group
are handled by functional departments, including business
operations, logistics support, teaching affairs office, the office,
the vehicle management team, etc. The performance of each
department is reported to the Board of Directors on a regular
basis, and the Board of Directors continuously monitors
sustainability related information, such as trainee satisfaction
and energy consumption. The functional departments
also review the Group’s ESG performance through key
performance indicators (“KPIs”) from various ESG aspects, in
order to review progress made against ESG-related goals and
targets. By conducting regular materiality assessment, they
assist the Board of Directors to evaluate, prioritise and manage
material ESG-related issues. In the future, we will continue to
improve the sustainability management structure of the Group.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Identification of Material Topics

In order to understand the concerns of various stakeholders of
the Group and identify material topics that have a significant
impact on its operations, the Group has complied with
the “ESG Reporting Guide” of HKEx to conduct an online
survey to identify material topics through four steps, namely
Identification, Prioritisation, Verification and Review. The six
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material topics are “Customer health and safety”, “Product and
service quality”, “Occupational safety and health”, “Employee
training and development”, “Anti-corruption” and “Exhaust
emissions management”. During the year, after review, these
six material topics were found closely linked with the Group’s
operations.

We actively responded to concerns of stakeholders, disclosed — F 1f91& 1% [2] F& Tl 25 A0 B8 5 60 B8 )T 26 - &%
the Group’s performance and impact on material topics in MM FBEAEBNEE L EZENRE L
detail, and took corresponding measures to further improve &2 - W R F ANREIEREE EE — F 7%
the sustainability management during the year. EAREEMAFESEIE-

Prioritisation & =

4

Invited stakeholders and the management of the Group to participate
in an online survey to gauge their views on the significance of potential
material topics. Prioritised and confirmed the material topics based on
two dimensions, namely “singnificance of economic, environmental
and social impacts” and “influence on stakeholders’ assessments and
decision making”.

&) Identification

_‘=OQ =5

Commissioned a third-party independent
consultancy to conduct materiality
assessment of the Group by referring to
the HKEx Guide.
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Verification

MR

Review
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Reviewed possible improvements in the
materiality assessment process, and
identify areas for improvement.

El

The management of the Group closely monitored and confirmed the
assessment results of material topics, and they will be disclosed in this
report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RE -#H@RERARE (&)

Responding to Stakeholders’ Concerns B ER=AEBE S

The table below summarises the actions taken by the Group in R fI T X 48 45 7N &= B /£ M| 25 1B 78 7 8
respect of the topics that stakeholders concerned about during ;T FFAEREXEIITE) ©

the year.
Stakeholders Topics of concern Actions taken
MzZEERL MEEBHETIEE FrERER B9 1T B
Customers B Product and Service Quality | ® Detail the relevant regulations on the process of
EF EmkREEE appointment, training, and exams participation
®m Customer Health and Safety for trainees
BEFfEREZ SR AEEEENEI - BEXEIIRB2EZEAFRER
m Customer Satisfaction B ERRTE
EEREE ® Set up a supervision centre to manage the
m Customer Privacy Protection teaching work and the training progress
REBALRE SHEEPL  ERHREHBIEREEE
EE

B Train and assess driving instructors and logistics
personnel irregularly
TEHHERHRNEGABETEIIREZ

B Standardise trainee complaint procedures and
establish complaints management measures
RBZ2ERFNE  RUBERFERINE

B Conduct trainee satisfaction survey
MEZ2EMEEAE

B Take corresponding measures to improve service
quality at registration centre, training centre and
recruitment office
BRE\AP O - JERF O RBEID KB EE
HRARBEE

® Establish trainees’ personal information files and
assign special personnel to protect their privacy
RUBEAAGEHEE RABZABEER R
EZ2ENE

5 China Oriented International Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2021



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
R -HERERRE (A)

Stakeholders Actions taken

FrEREEY 1T B

Topics of concern

NERELTREIEE

AR

Employees B QOccupational Health and ® Establish internal talent management system
BT Safety BIUANBAS BRI E
BEREEL S Provide high-quality remuneration and benefits,

B Training and Development

= ol B B R

Employee Retention and
Benefits

B TiHE RER
Employee Communication
Channels

BETARRE

and salary adjustment plan
REBEHFEEH  URFHMARSE
Regular team building activities

TE ERAE A B PR 2 RS B

Regular employee trainings

TEHIETE TIEH

Set up various employee communication
channels and carry out improvement work based
on suggestions
RULBETERRE
1E

Prevent child and forced labour
HBETIRERGSEINTR

Identify health risks faced by employees and
implement preventive measures

w50l B T TH B A 2 BR [ B N 4R 1 P s B
Provide safety training and mental health
education
REIRMZEEIROBREHRS
Strengthen pandemic prevention and control
measures to ensure employee safety
MmEEENE REEIZ2

W EEREETREL

Suppliers
HrEm

Supplier Management

HERER

Pre-procurement supplier assessment
PREE ATt P AT 1
Annual supplier rating record

ETERRERT SRS

Shareholders and
investors

BREREE

Company Operation
NEEE

Corporate Governance
PEER

Risk Management

[ b & 12

Regular employee training
BT B Tl

Strengthen anti-corruption work

nsE e SEER T 4F

Compliance with laws and regulations

BTERER

AAFBBRZERERA o T —FER
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
R -#@REARE (K)

Stakeholders Topics of concern Actions taken
NEZEERL MEEBHETEE FrERER B9 1T B
Government B Company Operation B Require all employees to comply with laws and
B NAEE regulations
® Environmental Compliance EREBETETEEER
RRER ® The inspection team regularly checks the work
B Anti-corruption system and effectiveness of each department
REB every month regularly
BR/NMAE A E S S PI TEHIRE RARSUEST
wa

B Encourage employees to report violations
BEEIRBRERTA
B Establish relevant systems to regulate employee

behaviour
RIUBBTERBETITR
Communities B Education B Donate money and supplies to fight the pandemic
HE HE NERIE  BRED
. Poverty Alleviation ® Actively respond to the national call for poverty
*E alleviation and assist in poverty alleviation

BEREEBRXKESRE  HHREILE
® QOrganise activities to help with exams

HBELEZ LY
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

EMPLOYEE CARE

The overall quality of the training team is crucial to the Group’s
operational efficiency and service quality. The Group is
committed to creating a warm, harmonious, and humanised
working environment with room for employees’ growth and
striving to build a high-quality team of driving instructors.

Talent Management

We are committed to building a dynamic and competent
team. We strictly implement the employment standards,
recruitment methods, selection methods, trial requirements
and employment principles for new employees in accordance
with the relevant laws and regulations' and the Group’s internal
“Employment Management Methods”. At the end of each
year, each department determines employment needs for
the upcoming year and reports it to the office for recruitment
applications. We conduct recruitment through various
channels, such as internal referrals, government agencies
and public recruitment. The candidates are required to pass
at least one written test and two interviews before they are
eligible for appointment. New employees are subject to a
probation period of 1 to 6 months, and those who are excellent
performers may apply for formal offer, which is reviewed and
confirmed by the office and a formal labour contract is signed.

Remuneration and Benefits

Since employees are the greatest force for the Group’s
long-term development, the Group is committed to
maximizing employee satisfaction by providing them with
competitive remuneration. We have established a standardised
remuneration management system. Employees are not only
entitled to statutory benefits according to the law, such as
reasonable leave, five social insurances and one housing fund,
but also receive life insurance and other additional benefits
purchased by the Group for employees, such as free lunches,
staff dormitory and holiday benefits.

! Please refer to “Laws and Regulations” section for talent management
related laws and regulations
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In order to embrace the development of the Group, give
full play to the incentive role of remuneration and benefits,
and provide competitive remuneration and benefits for
employees, Tong Tai School updated its remuneration
management system during the year, which is relatively
closed, revolving, scientific, and reasonable. Tong Tai School
established a remuneration management committee with
the General Manager acting as the chairman, members of
which comprise of the Assistant General Manager, the Vice
President-in-charge, the Chief Financial Officer and the head
of the administration and human resources department.
Remuneration management committee is responsible for
reviewing the remuneration adjustment strategies and other
forms of incentives (such as year-end bonus, patent award,
innovation award, improvement proposal recommendation
award, etc.) proposed by the administration and human
resources department, as well as individual remuneration
adjustment, overall remuneration adjustment plans,
recommendations and exercising the right of determination.

Training and Development

The Group has formulated the “Employee Training
Management Policy” internally. Each department determines
the training needs according to its own business development
needs and the ability of the personnel for the position. The
training can be divided into internal and external training
according to the organisation. It can also be separated into
orientation training, corporate culture training and professional
skills training according to training objectives.
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e |ntroduction employees to
the basic information of the
Group, personal
performance evaluation
process, attendance
system, job responsibilities,
work regulations as well as
safety production system,
etc.

REINBAEENERE

R BABREZE -

HE - MABE - TER

ERE - RREEHESE

Development pathway,
strategic planning of the

Group, etc.
REEMERBE  BRSR
2%

Orientation

training

AR TIE
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B THEEIE R

e Help employees understand

the history of the Group,
development outlines and
strategies, goals,
recreational activities,
employee development
channels, etc.

EPET THAEER
[Esh - BRME R -
B SEEXLES
BTHREEE

Corporate culture
training

R esEI

BR -HERERHKSE (H)

Employee training category

e Top instructors training,
driving skill training
THEHREE - BEREY

=gl

Strengthen employees’
professional skills, such as
accounting, audit, statistics,
human resource
managemnet, sales,
networking, etc.

HEEHME TIREFHERKAE
KE - BINBEEE:
it Bt ANBERER
HE  BES

Professional
training

EEIEE
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™
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During the year, a total of 393 employees received training
with total 1,422 hours of training and a training rate of 93.79%.
For details of employee training data, please refer to the
“Performance Data Summary”.

Health and Safety

The Group has been providing driving training services for
many years with a certain scale and position in the industry
and is well aware of the occupational health and safety
risks faced by the . The Group attaches great importance to
physical and mental health and safety of the employees, and
strives to provide a healthy, safe, and comfortable working
environment for the employees, so as to ensure a smooth
running of teaching activities and daily operations under safe
and controllable conditions.

Road and vehicle safety

As a driving training service provider, road and vehicle safety
are the keys to safety at driving schools. We organise road
safety inspections once a month and require our drivers
to strictly comply with traffic regulations and safe driving
practices. We also arrange for driving instructors to participate
in safety education and training seminars on a regular basis.
In addition, the Group has set up a vehicle management team
to regularly maintain, inspect and repair vehicles. We also
requires driving instructors to consciously take care of vehicles
in daily teaching work, not to lend vehicles to personnel of
external units, and strictly record and manage each vehicle in
use to ensure the normal and safe use of training vehicles.

China Oriented International Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2021

FRNHRMAEBIBRE I EIEIN
Rl AR 422/ B BEERE
93.79% - HFAME TEIHEFZL2ER
[BERBEE|R -

BREHEZ2
AEBIREERBIRESF  EITE
NEAB—TFEMREFM AL - 7 7 5P 1E
JEmBRANBERERLEZRR - A&
EERANBEING L EFRHELE I
BhHREITRE—ERERE %2 &3
MTERE  UNREHHKREREMET
2 MGG TIERETHETH
MEBEELTE-

BEREFHLZ

ERERBIRGE BERLRERLE
EERZETIENRES - HME A HEE
—REREZERE  BREREERLE
SRBERME 2 BRBRERE - B
FRTASERHRS AL 2HEF
BEE N ARBERBEWMERE
EHHEHRE  RENEE BLEX
PREEAENHETFTEEER
W TESLEERGIIELAR  HE—
AEMEWMEBCHEER  REFIE
WMEEHEF KL 2EM -



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Safety Training

In order to enhance employees’ awareness of occupational
health and safety, enhance their ability to respond to safety
incidents and reduce the occurrence of occupational hazards
and accidents, we regularly organise various safety education
activities.

Tong Tai School has established a leading group for the
“Fire Warning Publicity and Education Month” to carry out
the publicity and education activities. The purpose of the
event was to reduce the possibility of fire accidents in driving
schools, improve the ability of disaster prevention and
enhance the fire safety awareness and self-rescue ability
of employees and trainees. In addition, we also carried out
various activities and training programs to enhance employees’
safety awareness, such as fire hazard investigation, fire safety
knowledge training and emergency evacuation drills. During
the year, we recorded a total of 327 hours of occupational
safety and health training.

BR -HERERHKSE (H)
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Safeguarding Employees’ Health RIESTESRERE

We are aware of the potential health risks of our driving F M TMH#HKE L Eh 8 T4 ¥ TIiF
instructors and other employees during their normal work and ~ HFE) A8 K IR IR FEEL G - W ST ¥ 5 Lk
Erps

have implemented certain protective measures against these A IEH T — FERIFHEE#E o
risks.

Health risks of employees
EIRERR

Driving instructors Other employees

BRHMm FHHET

Health Risk Health Risk
BERR REEE

Long-term fatigue can easily lead to Liver-Qi Back pain caused by long-term sitting and
stagnation (FF & & 45) standing
REPES HBEFRELS RS T BIRBRE R

Laryngitis caused by excessive use of the Working on the computer for a long time can
throat easily cause eye disease and eye fatigue
MERIEE (S F 3B 5| B MR A REEH EN S5 RAm - REIKS

Lumbar disc protrusion caused by long-term Using mouse for a long term can easily lead
work in the car to ankylosis
REAEE TS| 3R R %R RAGAES S SRR B

Long-term exposure to car exhaust may
cause lung disease and anemia

KRB TR R AT REER R - B

Protective Measures Protective Measures

B &R e B &g

Combine on-board and off-board teaching Encourage employees to move their cervical
HFHENME THELES spine, legs and wrists in real time

SENE TEREBEM - BREDFIF i
Provide tea and throat lozenges for driving
instructors Sit upright, drink plenty of water, and wash
BEUR B AR ZOKFIRME S A hands frequently

ImEAE - ZIEK - BT
Purchase accident insurance for driving
instructors

RYREBEBIING
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Mental Health Education

Driving training is a job that requires driving instructors with a
higher level of skills and mental quality. In addition to physical
health, mental health is also an integral part of occupational
health. Therefore, we conducted the science popularisation
lectures on mental health and emotion management during
the year. The science popularisation lecture mainly focused
on four major topics, namely, the definition of mental health,
the method of psychological adjustment, the state of mood
and how to do well in mood management, so that the driving
instructors can understand the basics of mental and mood
health, improve their mood management ability and benefit for
mental health.

BR -HERERHKSE (H)
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Employee Composition B THK

As of 31 December 2021, the Group had a total of 419 # ZE2021F 128310 + A& E X H419
employees, with 362 male employees, accounting for HETI BB T H362% & £)1H86% °
approximately 86%, 68% of the employees were between 30 68%#) 8 T & R30-50m 2 & A &
and 50 years old, and 4 management employees, accounting BB 4 A - (51% - FT A B TH M %
for 1% of total number of employees. All employees were HE - FR > KEBHE TREAXR A
located in China. During the year, the employee turnover rate  74.62% °

of the Group was 74.62%.

Gender Profile Age Profile
% Bl 2 e Fio
10%
14%
’ ’ 22% iy,
86% 68%
B Male 51t M Female Z 1% H<31 M31-50 m=>51

Functional Profile

B BE 2 5

‘l

1%

99%

M General employees
—fRET

B Management
ERE
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Turnover Rates by Gender

BMRE D AR ER

91 43%

II 13.73%

18.52%
/7

73.91%
48 00% I|

HERERRS (&)

B

Turnover Rates by Age

BEREDHHARE

81. 74%

62.06% 62.11%

Male B 14 Female ﬁ 4%
W 2020 M 2021

Employee Communication

We attach great importance to the quality of employees’ work
and therefore have established a comprehensive feedback
and communication system to actively listen to employees’
suggestions and opinions on the Group’s internal operations
and adjust operational measures to improve employees’
satisfaction. The Group has established an internal review
team for reasonable suggestions. If an unreasonable situation
is found in daily work, employees can report to the department
head every Friday, and the person-in-charge screens and
reports to the review team. The team reviews and approves
implementation of specific plans to improve internal operations
after discussion.

30-50

H2020 MW 2021

50
BETEE

BMEREIMNIFEE B —Ex
ENREBEBAE  BHRENE THA
SEAFEZNEEMER  EMmHAR
BEEREEURSEINMEE - ~%E

‘%ﬁéﬁk@%%%$ﬁ AEB B
THEARTETRERTAERANE
BREHRHEMEBEA BEAGERL

warE A d\ﬁﬁi“* &mﬁ%%ﬁﬁtﬁimiﬁi
B RAREANEE
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Employee Activities

During the year, the Group organized various employee
activities to enhance employees’ value, strengthen cohesion,
and promote employees’ well-being. In order to educate
employee the history of key revolutions and remember the
revolutionary martyrs in the country, the Group organized
a tour to visit the Revolutionary Museum of the Capital of
Hubei-Henan-Anhui Soviet Area in Xinyang during Ching Ming
Festival, so as to inherit the revolutionary spirit and be mindful
of contributing to the society.

i -

s il s e P
QAGIR TR een aensny RER

BETES

FA AEBEHEBZHEE TR AR
FTEITEE BRRRD RETRXK
B - RO EISEHEEEZEDE

SoMBEEEEGERN AEEEFH
AR A2 BIERS |3T b fk e & T &

g Y ER -

EARE MBS BB

Tour to the Revolutionary Museum of the Capital of Hubei-Henan-Anhui Soviet Area.

SBENEGHEENERENE -

Besides, the Group organized a mountaineering activity
at Chaya Mountain during the year. The Group aims to
promote both physical and mental health of employees
through mountaineering in a natural and scenic environment.
Throughout the activity, the employees helped out each other
and built a vibrant atmosphere in the team, strengthening their
relationship and cohesion.

g 1 S5 ]
ﬂﬂﬁ!*ﬁ EIF%EE;E'@]

tEAN - REBRFAERB T LE IS
B EEBAAEASEXNBEARET
Fl-fREEBETHOEE - ERBELD
o BTEMER 2&ETWENNE

BARE - ERT 8T 2EMNBEERER
j] o

A mountaineering activity organized at Chaya Mountain.

RIEGF LB EEES -
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In addition, a coaches vocational skills competition trial was
also held during the year. By conducting such theoretical
and practical competitions, driving instructors in the Group
can recognize their personal shortcoming and improve
vocational skills accordingly. By appreciating and learning
from each other’s special skills, they were able to contribute to
betterments of the training provided by the Group.

BR -HERERHKSE (H)

AN REBIRNFRRRBREBE
REEAE BERRZTERLEER
B REE R E B HUR AT AR
B EARIR - ARG BERKAE - &
BEARYEE B R IRIEE - b fIBE 5 fe
ExEANREMRENF -

The coaches vocational skills competition trial conducted to enhance driving instructors’ quality.
ETHREBAXTRGREANRBEBMEE -

Prohibition of Child Labour and Forced Labour

The Group strictly complies with national laws? and SA8000
standards and probihits child and forced labour. To ensure
compliance, all candidates are required to fill in the Group’s
“Entry Registration Form” and the personnel department
reviews their identity cards and health certificates. The office
staff checks whether the content filled is consistent with
the submitted certificates. If any problems are found, they
are rectified accordingly. In the event that child labour is
found to have been negligently employed, the child worker is
suspended immediately, and health checks are arranged after
which he/she is returned to his/her parents or guardian as soon
as possible. In addition, we maintain contact with the parents
or guardians of the child to ensure that the child will return to
the school for education.

2 Please refer to “Laws and Regulations” section for child labour and
forced labour-related laws and regulations

HBEIRBSET
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Compliance with laws

We strictly comply with laws and regulations and have
established effective policies and procedures to ensure
that the Group’s business is in compliance with laws and
regulations in all aspects. The management of the Group
closely monitors the latest regulatory developments and
provides necessary training to relevant personnel. During the
year, the Group was not aware of any non-compliance with
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Group relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunities,
anti-discrimination, other benefits and welfare, prevention
of child and forced labour, provision of a safe working
environment and protection of employees from occupational
hazards; and there were no cases of work-related fatalities or
occupational diseases or incidents of material penalties due to
violation of labour-related laws.

OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE

Compliance is essential for the Group’s smooth operations.
In order to continuously promote excellence in operations
and management, we have implemented various measures
in multiple aspects such as service quality, supply chain
management, information security and intellectual property
protection.

Service Quality

The Group is committed to continuously improve service
quality, trainee satisfaction, and strictly comply with
the laws and regulations® related to training services of
driving schools. To ensure compliance, we set out in the
“Management Approach of the Teaching Affairs Office” about
the relevant requirements for the process of pre-training,
training, and examination participation of trainees, and
clarify the responsibilities of each department to ensure
the implementation of professional and compliant teaching
services. Due to the Group’s business nature, disclosure on
product recall procedures and number of products recalled are
not applicable.

g Please refer to “Laws and Regulations” section for driving training
quality-related laws and regulations
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Teaching Quality Management HEEEEE

In order to ensure the quality of driving training, standardise AREERIEIEE @ RAKBT4H - U
teaching behaviours, and provide first-class teaching RAZSERMHE—AHHERE  HMR
services for trainees, we adhere to the training concept HI[LAA AKX - ISR OHIEE R -
of “people-oriented and warm service”, and continuously N 72 & P 20 HI| fE ERER - I o8 B8 B 2 4k
improve internal systems and policies, strengthen the team BEKEIE @ 2S5 EKFE -
management of driving instructors, and improve teaching level.

Internal policy
improvement

TERIBE

Management
of driving
instructors team

HREEHEE

Teaching affairs
disclosure

£ 6 YN

Establish and improve various rules and regulations of the Group to provide system
guarantee for effective management of teaching and training, and all tasks have
rules and laws to follow

BYREALBEZSERENE  AAREEMEEIIREHERE - SEIEHE
BEAME - BRAK

Set up a supervision centre, which is mainly responsible for the management of
instructors’ teaching arrangements and the situation of trainees

BUSHRVEET L TEABERHMBHBELHTHENZERTR

Strengthen the construction and assessment of instructors’ business ethics,
supervise and inspect coaches’ teaching conditions

SRICHMRB B BEREREZ R HHRHBBENETEE RS

Instructors must have the appropriate qualifications, and regularly review the
teaching level and business ethics, and publish the teaching quality rankings of the
instructors

HREFEBREES - W BEHRE NHBK T MR BEETTE - 2HH
RENHBEEHITER

We will not tolerate behaviours that harm the interests of trainees. Those who violate
business ethics will be punished or expelled from the driving school
HNBEZEFTZNTA  BTHE  HEERBEBEENAE  BR—E4LTH
FEBE 75 S IR

Implement the academic affairs, timely disclosing the issues and major issues that
instructors and trainees are concerned about
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In addition, we hold regular trainee seminars, administer
surveys and organise online exchanges to understand their
opinions and suggestions on training, education, teaching
and management services, and make timely adjustments to
continuously improve the level of teaching services.

Improve Trainee Satisfaction

The Board of Directors pays high attention to our trainees’
satisfaction, therefore closely monitors the complaints
handling and passing rate performance. The Group regulates
the complaint handling mechanism through the “Complaint
Management Methods” and the “Complaint Process” to
ensure that issues raised by the trainees can be responded
to and properly handled in a timely manner. Upon receipt of
complaints from trainees, the relevant employees solve the
problems of trainees timely in accordance with the principle of
“rapid, efficient and satisfactory” to improve their satisfaction.

o B BBATHEHREEREHRT
BERAERBLRIRE - THREB IS
NHEEHEREERREFEAMNERNZ
Fo U REBEHAE  TEHRAHER
TEIKE o

BAZBEREE
EXeREEREREMMER  FAite
BUREIRFRENBBERNRE - K
SEBBRFEERE) RRFRE)
MBI REEHF  BREEREANMN
BEELRERIOEY ZERE - EE W
NEERFELSR  HEIIEABKR
MRE -BR-mEINRALRKREES
ORI RITEEHNMEE °

Complaint handling process

RFEERRE
N Y
Analyse reasons Follow-up and summary
SRE BRI R A4
e Analyse the issues, confirm e The responsible department e Follow up the process

whether it is possible

DR EN - EREED

analyse the cause and
propose a solution

BARE BRSSPI TR FIR A LR e Summarise complaints to

HERIE T 2 improve service levels, and
e Determine the responsible reduce the occurence of

department e The supervisors approve the customers’ complaints

e e B (EERPT solution IR BT ETTRL - AR
TERERTREERR FHRTSAKE - WA B PR

EfEL
o J \ y

R IR B

To enhance trainees’ sense of identity, apart from training and
assessment of driving instructors and logistics staff from time
to time, the registration centre, training centre and recruitment
office of the Group have taken the required improvement
measures to improve service quality.
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e Adopt a reasonable division o
of labour, improve the
efficiency and quality of
registration work, and flexibly
arrange the examination time

Inform the examination
and appointment related
matters for trainees
REBET REFHEBLAN
HEEE

EREENT  BE#s
TEMEREES - BE%R Speed up problem

B AR ]

handling, and solve the

Calrify the refund system, trainees as soon as

reduce disputes due to possible

refunds \ MAFBRERE - =R
REREHE - R ER FROREB B RO B

& LR mAln

?"5_—’< Registration centre
7
%Y HEH

Training centre

AR AR L

Information Security and Intellectual Property Protection

The Group attaches great importance to information security
and intellectual property protection. To this end, the Group has
established relevant management procedures and systems
such as the “Security System” and the “Intellectual Property
Management System”. All employees are required to comply
with relevant systems, laws and regulations?, strictly control
internal management, ensure information security and protect
intellectual property rights.

We have set out in the “Security System” measures in
relation to the Group’s internal information such as financial
statements, payroll tables and market research reports,
requiring employees not to disclose major events and
important information of the Group. We strictly prohibit any
leakage of confidential documents, and effectively protect
internal information. The “Intellectual Property Management
System” provides guidance for the Group to manage
intellectual property related matters, effectively protect the
Group’s intellectual property rights from infringement, and
encourage employees’ enthusiasm for invention and creation.

& Please refer to “Laws and Regulations” section for intellectual property
rights-related laws and regulations

problems reported by the

BR -HERERHKSE (H)

* Make a return visit to the
trainees, and report the
return visit questions to
the training centre in time
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Recruitment office
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We organise relevant training activities to popularise the legal
knowledge of intellectual property to employees, and strictly
combat any infringement of intellectual property rights. We
encourage our employees to innovate and reward employees
who have made outstanding contributions to technology
transfer and intellectual property protection.

Privacy Protection

We attach great importance to protection of trainees’
personal information. The Group has set up separate personal
information files for all trainees, which are managed by special
personnel. In general, we seldom make personnel changes
except for special reasons to protect the privacy of trainees.
If reviewing is needful, the borrowing registration procedures
and the approval of the director of the training centre must be
completed before the access of the trainee information.

Anti-corruption

Business integrity is highly valued. The Group strictly abides
by the relevant national laws and regulations®, regulates the
behaviours of relevant functional departments and employees,
and prevents the occurrence of fraud. We have established a
series of internal anti-fraud systems and monitoring policies
that define non-compliance that may cause damage to the
Group’s economic interests, the purpose being to safeguard
the Group’s reputation and interests. We require each
employee to sign the “Corrupt Practices Commitment”, and
employees are required to ensure that disclosure of the
Group’s trade secrets and the use of trade secrets to make
profits for themselves or others is prohibited. They need to
strictly comply with national laws and the Group’s rules and
regulations and the promote individual private interests under
the guise of serving the public is prohibited.

In order to further strengthen the integrity of the Group and
supervision and management of school-level practices, we
have set up an inspection team system to regularly investigate
the working system and implementation of each department on
a monthly basis.

2 Please refer to “Laws and Regulations” section for anti-corruption
related laws and regulations
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In addition, the Group provides anti-corruption training to
enhance the employees’ awareness towards business ethic
and code of conduct. In December 2021, the Group has
organized and invited the Public Security Bureau of Suiping
County for an anti-fraud training, where 144 employees
participated.

BR -HERERHKSE (H)

o AREBREREEEI - e
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Anti-fraud training by the Public Security Bureau of Suiping County

BYHARRETREEEI

Whistleblowing mechanism

The Group has established an “Anti-fraud (Reporting) System”,
and we encourage employees to report violations, disciplinary
violations, illegality, fraud and acts that are detrimental to the
interests and image of the Group through various channels.
If the reported incident is verified after investigation, the
whistleblower is rewarded accordingly.

The inspection team, as a standing body for anti-fraud work
of the Group, is responsible for accepting complaints and
reports, formulating investigation plans, and conducting
relevant investigation. After the investigation, the inspection
team prepares an investigation report for the relevant
departments.

If the report finds the accusation wrong, punishment is
awarded to the whistle-blower according to the Group’s rules
and regulations, and the responsibility of the relevant person is
seriously investigated. For general complaints such as adverse
comments and unconscionable behaviours, the inspection
team should interview relevant personnel and give warning
reminders. For suspected illegality, we promptly transfer them
to the judicial authority for handling.
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Whistle-blowing and handling procedures

HHRR

f N[
The inspection team
accept and confirm

the information
} BR/METZE }
WHERERED

e Employees can report e Accept the reported

The inspection team
investigates the
reported issues
BER/NE
RAEEBRE

e Develop and implement

N f N
Penalise who violates
the regulations
or laws

>> EEEAREE
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* Interview persons involved

the cases to their information the investigation plan in noncompliance and
supervisors rank by rank BRBHRES HERAEH R HETAS issue warning
or?o the inspectioZteam WHH R RERITRE
g 8 - AT ERRE
directly ¢ Record reported content e Complete the AR HRTE
= : ROER kS investigation report and
i;ﬂﬁ%&ﬂ{%&&ﬂg& = re ort%o the & e Compensate for the
&R - M EERES P Group’s economic losses
/N ER R e Judgment of the type of maﬂalgement . or refund the economic
report: major report at the REATREVEREE benefits obtained
Group level, report from JHfZ B (24 L3 Y ) A 2 4
senior audit managers, S48 2k ok IR B H S AR RN
and general report ® Determine the solutions & @}Eﬂﬁ?&
HlErRRARA - KEEE RIERIEE B
i?jéﬁéiﬁ ° %ai:%@' B o Transfer suspected
ABERE - —RER offenders to judicial
authorities
KRB SHE AN BB
ZRDEHREARE
\ J \\ J \\ J
In addition, we have also established systems to protect Ut - B AP IRl E R | AE BIRE K I

the privacy and security of whistle-blowers by keeping their
personal information confidential and prohibiting any kind of
retaliation. The inspection team and the relevant departments
involved in the investigation keep the personal information
confidential, such as the name and phone number of the
whistle-blower and the contents of the report. When accepting
a report or verifying the situation with the whistle-blower,
it is ensured that the identity of the whistle-blower is not
exposed. The identity information of the whistle-blower is kept
strictly confidential when publicizing, reporting and awarding
the whistle-blower. We strictly prohibit any retaliation, and
those who violate the rules and disclose the information of
the whistle-blower or retaliate against the whistle-blower are
dismissed and the labour contract is terminated. Cases of any
violation of the law are transferred to the judicial authority.
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Supply Chain Management

Suppliers are our close partners and the foundation for us to
maintain a stable supply chain. The Group’s suppliers mainly
consist of fuel suppliers, suppliers for training and test vehicles,
suppliers for on-board equipment and monitoring equipment,
and suppliers for construction works. During the year, we had
a total of 12 suppliers.

Selection and evaluation of suppliers

The Group has formulated the “Supplier Evaluation Process”,
the “Procurement Management Measures” and other system
documents to regulate the procurement process and ensure
that the products and services provided by suppliers meet
our requirements. The Group selects suppliers based
on the cooperating principles of high-quality, low-price,
contract-emphasis, honesty and trustworthiness, effective
management and close range. Before procurement, we
evaluate suppliers through interviews, on-site visits, and
background checks, and record the evaluation information
in the “Supplier Information Survey Form”, which is reviewed
and approved by the director of the procurement department
before purchase.

BR -HERERHKSE (H)
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BRE -#HE8RERES (&

Credit status

FERR

Products
and services

EmR R

Cooperation
model

AfFEN

Market feedback
s R

In addition, we also conduct annual assessment on all 4N RGN E G EEGETEET
suppliers to ensure the quality of products and services
provided by them, which in turn ensures the quality and safety E £ @ EMFEAEBEY B LS

)

Supplier assessment criteria

HEEFAKRE

Litigation incident

AR

Inquiries, comparisons and bargains

AE - LENEE

Procurement amount

REREE

e Mortgage and pledge of assets
BEREWRR

e Visit suppliers’ plants or warehouses if necessary

WEEEFHER THRE E

e Payment methods

AR

Obtain the information from its cooperators about the cooperation model, shipments,
reputation, etc. if the supplier is an agency

AHEE SRR AEEENSFETREHERELINAFRA - LEE - FEF

of the Group’s training business.

Green procurement

To fulfill the aim of environmental sustainability in supply chain
management, procurement of eco-friendly products is given B #Z > H{GE A e R&E R FOIE R T
priority where possible and economically viable. The Group @@5‘&%@%%%% i c AEE-—HEHA
has been closely working with our suppliers to strengthen HERZZAE LR MBEFIHATF

ML R o

RERE

our sustainability portfolio and minimise risks throughout the &M &E RE S iélﬁﬁ'ﬁf [E] ¢t j& 58

supply chain and is committed to promoting sustainable and E’]}—L WA R ﬁt&fﬁafi

responsible operational standards. Despite that we consider E’]%@ i o %E?f%ﬁzﬁ’ﬁ R AR pE
the environmental impact on our supply chain is insignificant, #B¥IREFEEKNZEMTIEE B K’E
the Group prefers local suppliers whenever possible to reduce B {375 A] gEIE B AR (L jERg - 1A /)E;!i D&
carbon emissions from transportation and to support the local @ ZE 4 &R BE AR - 17 = 35 28 3 45 37
economy. During the year, all suppliers of the Group were A+ RNEB A HERFHARTEH -

located in China.

China Oriented International Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2021

fl - DAREOR(H FE 78 PR (10 22 o S AR 7%

SERM fhﬁﬁgfiq:'ﬂ']i& SRS Lk



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Compliance with laws

As mentioned in previous sections, we understand the
importance of compliance with laws and regulations and
have formulated corresponding prevention, supervision and
detection measures to ensure obeying laws and regulations
related to bribery, extortion, fraud and laundering. During
the year, the Group was not aware of any non-compliance
with laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the Group relating to advertising, privacy matters, health
and safety of services provided; nor was it aware of any
non-compliance with laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group relating to bribery, extortion,
fraud, and laundering; nor any concluded legal cases regarding
corrupt practices brought against the Group or our employees.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

We are committed to striking a balance between business
operations and environmental protection, contributing
to a greener environment through energy conservation
and emissions reduction. In the future, we will continue
to improve our environmental management approach,
optimise environmental performance and achieve sustainable
operations of the Group.
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Environmental Management

The Group recognizes its social corporate responsibility
in environmental protection and commits to promoting
responsible operation in its business. The Group has
established the Green Office Policy with an aim of creating
a green working environment and raising our employee’s
awareness. The policy focuses on relevant environmental
aspects to the Group’s business including energy saving
practices, paper-free office, water conservation, and
good indoor air quality. Also, the Group has established
Environmental Protection Policy to delegate the responsibility
of consumption monitoring and promotion to different
functional departments. We strictly abide by national
environmental laws and regulations®, continuously establish
and improve various energy conservation and environmental
protection systems and strive to reduce the impact of our
operations on the ecological environment. The environmental
management of the Group is led by the Chairman of the Board
of Directors, while the business department and the logistics
support department guide and supervise the relevant work
of the teaching affairs office, office, and vehicle management
room respectively, and report to the Board of Directors on
a regular basis. Due to the nature of the Group’s business,
we do not consume any packaging materials in our daily
operations, and the impact on the environment mainly comes
from fuel consumption and emissions of the vehicles.

& Please refer to “Laws and Regulations” section for environment-related
laws and regulations
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Organisational structure of environmental management
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For details of environmental data, please refer to the

“Performance Data Summary”.
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Resources Conservation
Energy Management

Energy consumption in the Group’s daily operations mainly
includes petrol, diesel (direct energy) and purchased electricity
(indirect energy). During the year, the Group’s total energy
consumption was 22,210.38 thousand kWh, with an energy
consumption intensity of 0.33 thousand kWh per thousand
RMB revenue. Among them, the direct energy consumption
was 20,841.79 thousand kWh, and indirect energy
consumption was 1,368.60 thousand kWh.

Greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emissions generated by the Group
include direct emissions from fuel combustion of vehicles
(Scope 1) and energy indirect emissions from the use of
electricity (Scope 2). During the year, the Group’s total GHG
emissions amounted to 4,757.00 tCO,e, which consisted of
3,878.19 tCO,e direct GHG emissions (Scope 1) and 878.81
tCO,e energy indirect GHG emissions (Scope 2).

Compared with prior year, the GHG emission generated from
the Group was higher than 2020. Both direct GHG emissions
(Scope 1) and indirect GHG emissions (Scope 2) was higher
as the Group had a larger energy consumption in diesel,
gasoline and purchased electricity during the year. The higher
energy consumption was mainly due to the increase in the
overall number of trainees who attended our driving course
of large vehicles and the actual number of training hours of
our trainees for the Group’s driving training service. As the
energy consumption varies with the business activities of the
Group’s vehicles, the Group targets to maintain the energy
consumption intensity and GHG emissions intensity not higher
than 5% of the level during the year (FY2021) in the coming 5
years. We aim to achieve such targets through the measures
below.

Fuel consumption of vehicles is a major component of the
Group’s energy consumption. We have adopted various
measures to save energy and improve efficiency. We carry out
training, publicity and education activities related to energy
conservation and emission reduction from time to time to
enhance the awareness of all employees and encourage
energy conservation and emission reduction in day-to-day
operations. At the same time, we strive to create a green,
environment-friendly, low-carbon and energy-saving office
environment, practice green office culture, start with details,
saving electricity and office supplies.
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BR -HERERHKSE (H)

Measures to conserve resource

BRERNER

Use customised versions of driving
school training vehicles

P& PR TE 1l B0 BE AR 15 )| 2

Restrict training vehicles from driving on the
road
PR I FRRTTHE

BEUEE

Use natural light to illuminate when sufficient
to avoid turning on electric |ights

AXFREEABARE  BRRMER

@ Turn off lights, computers and other
electrical appllances in time

Electricity saving NSRRI - BASSE R

BXAE

B ARk A 23 knocking off
) TR EMAKEERSDER
Water Check whether the faucets are closed
from time to time to avoid leaking water

TEHUE KRR BRR - @RIRK

\E Prioritise to use water saving appliances Check that all taps are fastened before

Repair or replace the valve in time

R EEHE T2 5 T HA R P

conservation
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Advocate paperless office, double-sided printing, or handing around the documents to
reduce paper use, and encouraging the use of renewable paper

RIEEARD - EEITESABRIX IR - AR - TR ER A BAR

8};; Use recyclable items such as refill pens, toner cartridges and rechargable batteries

ERAERACHE  BHENREE S EREANY R
Office supplies
saving Try to purchase environmentally friendly items
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Water Conservation B 1gkEIR

The Group is well aware that water shortage is an increasingly A& B /RA/KERE B A B 25 B I& 79 3k
serious challenge and therefore we have implemented a & ' HfIRNBEES séqﬂ,aﬁﬁz ES NG
series of water-saving measures in our daily operations and &5 WHBEEE TWEAE H o &
continue to cultivate employees’ awareness of the need for IR ¥ A = H /K BE B8 BE oR HH A AK]
water conservation. We post “Water Conservation” signs at & /R”k > WEKE THE FRE/KEDHE -
water taps in the office and require employees to turn off the F R » N & B #) 42 FF K & A17,043.00
water taps immediately after use. During the year, the total Wi  EKZEAE T TARE L ¥£5E
water consumption of the Group was 17,043.00 tonnes and  0.250f o 7 £ B I £ (T {a] /& BUE A KR
the water consumption intensity was 0.25 tonnes per thousand  FHIR & o

RMB revenue. The Group did not have any issue in sourcing

water fit for the purpose.
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The Group targets to maintain the water consumption intensity
at the level during the year (FY2021) in the coming 5 years to
ensure the effectiveness of the above water saving measures.

Emissions Management
Exhaust Emissions Management

The major exhaust emissions generated from the Group’s daily
operations are nitrogen oxides (NOx), sulphur oxides (SOx) and
particulate matter (PM) emitted from vehicles. During the year,
we generated 45.55 tonnes of nitrogen oxides, 0.03 tonnes
of sulphur oxides and 4.49 tonnes of particulate matter from
vehicle fuel consumption.

Exhaust emissions

BERHENE

Nitrogen Oxides (NOXx)
AREY

Sulphur Oxides (SOx)
maty

Particulate Matter (PM)
ST AT

We adopt a series of measures to reduce emissions and to
protect the ecological environment.
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Emission reduction measures

", BF 1 e

Formulate emission management rules and strictly manage
vehicle and canteen soot emissions to reduce the impact on the
environment

HEERERMA - BIRERERE RN - REREHR -
NESRENTE

Motor vehicles shall undergo annual inspections in accordance
with regulations to ensure that emissions meet national

requirements

BRI EEITF R ERERARS SRR ER

Use clean energy in the canteen, as wellas the soot separation
equipment to control air pollution caused by the soot in the
canteen

REEZRAFZER - WHRARESBRE - DUEFIREhE
BRMERSR
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and promptly replace vehicle
environmental protection
equipment, such as air filters,
diesel filters, etc., to avoid
unnecessary emissions due
to the aging of the
equipment, and gradually
eliminate the vehicles with
heavey fuel consumption and
emssions
EHHEEREABERLE
HRE  REEHRERRR
B MZERIES - SOhE
g e FEHmAERE
ZEETBENERY
W WESEAFEBERX
BRI E RN ER



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Wastewater Management

Due to the nature of the Group’s business, our daily
operations do not involve industrial wastewater discharge.
The wastewater generated by the Group is mainly domestic
wastewater from office and cleaning areas. The canteen
wastewater and toilet wastewater generated by us are
transferred to the sedimentation tank and septic tank
respectively through the sewage pipe network, and the
relevant local departments are responsible for recycling and
treatment. During the year, all domestic wastewater generated
by the Group was treated and discharged in accordance with
the requirements of the laws and regulations of the places
where it operates. The data for wastewater discharge was not
available.

Waste Management

Food waste generated from the Group’s canteen is the major
non-hazardous waste disposal of the Group. To mitigate
the disposal, the Group has adopted various measures
in the canteen area, including delegate supervision in the
canteen and prohibit food wastage, thus closely monitor the
effectiveness of the measures.

The Group regulates the waste discharge procedures by
setting up a fixed waste collection and storage point in the
waste-generating departments to collect recyclable and
non-recyclable waste separately. For general wastes that
cannot be handled timely, protective measures such as
anti-diffusion and anti-blowing are taken to prevent secondary
pollution during storage. When the amount of recyclable
waste is accumulated to a certain level, the logistics support
department is responsible for handing it over to qualified waste
disposal companies for recycling.

Hazardous waste such as waste engine oil is generated
during the Group’s vehicle maintenance process. As vehicle
maintenance work is undertaken by third-party service
providers, hazardous waste generated is not included in the
Group’s waste data. The Group’s other daily operations do
not generate hazardous waste. During the year, the Group
produced a total of 152.63 tonnes of non-hazardous waste,
including general office waste and food waste generated from
office areas, with waste intensity of 2.27 kg of waste generated
per thousand RMB revenue.
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The Group targets to maintain the non-hazardous waste
disposal intensity at the level during the year (FY2021) in the
coming 5 years to ensure the effectiveness of the above waste
reduction measures. Calvin: confirmed

Climate Change

The Group recognizes the importance of the identification
and mitigation of significant climate-related issues, therefore
closely monitors the potential impact of climate change on
our business and operations. In accordance with the reporting
framework developed by the Task Force on Climate-related
Financial Disclosures, there are two major categories of
climate-related risks, physical and transition risks.

Physical Risks

The increased frequency and severity of extreme weather
events such as typhoons, storms, heavy rainfalls, and extreme
cold or heat bring acute and chronic physical risks to the
Group’s business. The Group’s capacity and productivity will
be reduced under extreme weather events as the safety of our
employees is threatened and the operational sites might be
damaged, which exposes the Group to risks associated with
non-performance and delayed performance, leading to direct
negative impact on the Group’s revenue.

To minimize the potential risks and hazards, the Group
has established mitigation plans, including flexible working
arrangements and precautionary measures during bad or
extreme weather conditions such as typhoon and black
rainstorm. The Group will explore emergency plan to further
reduce the vulnerability of our installations to extreme weather
events in order to enhance business stability.
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Transition Risks

According to the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change
(“IPCC”) special report, a more aggressive greenhouse gas
reduction target is needed to address the increasing threat
from climate change. To achieve the global vision on carbon
neutrality, the Group expects evolution of the regulatory,
technological and market landscape due to climate change,
including the tightening of national policies and listing rules
and the emergence of environmentally related taxes. Stricter
environmental laws and regulations may expose enterprises
to higher risks of claims and lawsuits, which might incur
additional compliance costs and affect the reputation of the
Group.

In response to the policy and legal risks as well as the
reputation risks, the Group constantly monitors any changes
in laws or regulations and global trends on climate change to
avoid cost increments, non-compliance fines or reputational
risks due to delayed response. In addition, the Group has been
taking comprehensive environmental protection measures,
including GHG reduction measures, has set targets to
gradually reduce the Group’s energy consumption and GHG
emissions in the future.

Compliance with laws

As mentioned in previous sections, we understand the
importance of compliance with laws and regulations and
have formulated the corresponding prevention, supervision,
and detection measures to ensure compliance with laws and
regulations on environmental protection. During the year, the
Group was not aware of any non-compliance with laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group relating
to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water
and land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous
waste.

BR -HERERHKSE (H)
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
R -#@REARE (K)

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

As an enterprise with a strong sense of social responsibility,
the Group remains committed to giving back to the society
and pursuing the common development of the enterprise
and the society. During the year, we actively participated in
social welfare activities, such as convoy for the examination
candidates, and visiting people in poverty-stricken areas.
The Group donated a total of RMB270,000 in social welfare
activities, and employees participated in public welfare
activities for approximately 1,912.5 hours.

The Group fully aware of providing support to the needy and
the hands-on contribution of employees to the society. The
Group organized a number of public welfare activities, mainly
donations and volunteer work.

Donations

Employees are arranged to assist the event ‘Donate with
Love’, providing consolation fee for poor households, and
donating flood-fighting food in Xinxiang. 72 sets of wool suits
and a bunch of daily necessities are donated to relieve societal
stress.

Providing the needy with daily necessities in addition to
consolidation fee.

BREMENRETEALTRHUBELTER
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Offering transportation to the victims suffering serious

flooding for free.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
R -HERERRE (A)

The Group also contributed for other charitable organizations, A&EBINE A HE M zEZH4EBR FJ%
including Wufang Volunteer, Flood Control and Disaster Relief, fﬂ FERE] AR M +F

and Red Cross. We were committed to doing good for the o M AR )ﬂﬁﬁ?imﬁ/ﬁ%ﬁ
society with the resources we have. 2 ﬁﬁﬂ%

Employees joining the fundraising for the donation to various organisations.

BETZ2HREFEFDH A ERBIRE-

Volunteer training =% EI

The Group has also utilized the specialty of the business AEBNABAEEXBEHNEER  EHER
and provide volunteer training to furnish the needy with the &3l AEZEATEST BB H Lt
capability to drive and obtain employment opportunities. ##= B MEHEIESEIHHERAHE
We aim to enhance with awareness of our employees on HIER @ WIS EE T OB -
community involvement and promote the spirit of contributing

to our society.

MR EEZERERAR o —F = —FFH
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
RE -#H@RERARE (&)

LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group strictly complies with the relevant laws and
regulations, including but not limited to the following:

Aspects

[EmE
A1 Emissions

A1BERR )

Applicable Laws and Regulations

BRNEERESR

Environmental Protection Law of the People’s
Republic of China

(P EARAMBIRFREE)

Law of the People’s Republic of China on
the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric
Pollution

(R E AR KBRS G EPEED

Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Prevention and Control of Water Pollution
(pEE AR LTBKSEBGARE)

Law of the People’s Republic of China on
the Prevention and Control of Environmental
Pollution by Solid Waste
(REARAFBEEBEYSERENIRE)

EERER
AEBEEETRBNERER B
BRRIEATAR :

Corresponding Chapter
HEZEH

Environmental Protection —
Emissions Management
RIBRE — ER

B1 Employment
B1{&E &

Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China
(RE AR KFELENE)

Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic
of China

(PEARENMBEEHERIZE)

Provisions on the Administration of Road
Transport Employees
(CEREBNEABETIERTE)

Special Rules on Labour Protection of Female
Employees

(LB TEBRERHARE)

Employee Care —
Talent Management
STEE - ATER
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B2 Health and Safety
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
R -HERERRE (A)

Applicable Laws and Regulations

BRAKNEERER

Production Safety Law of the People’s
Republic of China
(PFEAREMBELZE2EEZE)

Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Road Traffic Safety
(PEARANEEEIBLZEZE)

Corresponding Chapter
HEZEH

Employee Care —

Health and Safety
BETHE — RRERZSE

B4 Labour Standard

Law of the People’s Republic of China on the

Employee Care —

B4 T A8 Protection of Minors Prevention of Child and
(PEARKLFIBERKF AREZE) Forced Labour
e Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child | E T#1E — #B8E T &
Labour 58 1| 45 T
(BEIEFRETIHRE)
B6 Product e Regulation on the Implementation of Road | Operational Excellence —
Responsibility Traffic Safety of the People’s Republic of | Service Quality
B6EMmE China EHEE — RBESE

(REARAMBEERIBL2EHEIEG)D
Regulations of the People’s Republic of China
on Road Transport

(R AR AMB B E & 50

B7 Anti-corruption
B7TR&)5

Anti-unfair Competition Law of the People’s
Republic of China
(PEARKFMBRTEEBHFE)

Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of
China

(R E AR KEFEME)

Operational Excellence —
Anti-corruption
EHEE - RES

AREERZERERAR o

R —FFR
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BRE -HERERESE (B)

PERFORMANCE DATA SUMMARY BERARBE
Environmental Data RERIE
0 020

Greenhouse Gas Emissions’ BRERBHHE
Scope 1 Direct emissions (tCO,e) HE1ERER(B_EtRES) 5,266.40 3,878.19
Scope 2 Indirect emissions (tCO,e) HEEREEEN(M-RLREE) 1,175.21 878.81
Total GHG emissions (tCO,g) BERBHNBE(B_SKEE) 6,441.62 4,757.00
Emission intensity BREREZE(M_StREE

(tCO,e per RMB1,000 revenue)? BTTARBEXRE)? 0.10 0.07
Air Emissions BRENE
Sulphur oxides (SO,) (Tonnes) i &1L ¥1(SOx) (W) 0.03 0.02
Nitrogen oxides (NO,) (Tonnes) REALYI(NOx) (18 ) 45.55 53.05
Particulate matter (PM) (Tonnes) S22 TR (PM) (B) 4.49 3.73
Waste BEEY
Food waste production (Tonnes) BHELE (HE) 102.01 72.00
Waste cooking oil production (Tonnes) | EE R HE 4 & (1) - 0.0036
Office waste generation (Tonnes) WMAEREMELS () 50.63 36.40
Total non-hazardous waste disposal BEEEVRELSE (E)

(Tonnes) 152.63 108.40
Waste intensity (kg per RMB1,000 BEENELRE

revenue) (FR/ BT TAREEER) 2.27 1.60
Resources Consumption EREFRAE
Diesel (Litres) Sl (A7) 1,513,691,34 |1,138,885.92
Petrol (Litres) Ul (A7) 478,817.88 | 325,768.76
Electricity (KWh) BN (E/TRE) 1,368,595.00 |1,023,424.00
Total energy consumption (000 kWh)? B R ER(TTRE)S 22,210.38 | 16,370.33
Energy intensity BERERE

(000 KWh per RMB1,000 revenue) (FTRE/SFTTAREEESE) 0.33 0.24
Water (Tonnes) ek E (W) 17,043.00 |  12,000.00
Water intensity BAZEM,/ STTAREEEE)

(Tonnes per RMB1,000 revenue) 0.25 0.18
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Note:

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

GHG emissions are calculated with reference to the Greenhouse Gas
Protocol. The emission factors for the calculation of GHG emissions are
referenced from the “China Regional Grid Baseline Emission Factors for
the 2019 Emission Reduction Project” and the HKEx “How to Prepare
an Environmental, Social and Governance Report — Appendix Il:
Environmental Key Performance Indicators Reporting Guidelines”.

The total revenue of the Group for the years ended 31 December
2021 and 2020 amounted to approximately RMB67,200 thousand and
RMBG67,963 thousand, respectively. The data is also used for calculating
other intensity data.

To comply with ESG Reporting Guide set out in Appendix 27 to the
Listing Rules of the HKEX, the unit of energy consumption has been
adjusted from those disclosed in the 2020 ESG report, and the energy
data in 2020 ESG report have been recalculated and adjusted.

Social Data

2021 2020

GEE

1.

BR -HERERHKSE (H)

AERBHNNHESZ2Z8RAERE
+#% 7F Z(Greenhouse Gas Protocol) ° j&
EREBYERNTENEREF2E 82019
FERFBEEPEHRIEEBEERERAT)
RABZMCORIEERE 8 REGRE —
Migk — : BRIBRASEAE BUBIZERIES) ©

==
2
&

K& B & £20219F K2020F12A318 IFF
EWHBIKAD R AEARES?7,200F T &
AR¥67,963F 7T o ILBIE NG A{ErtEH
2 [E B -

BETHIMERSZS LEmR AN
—HEAEGRE e RERREIES])
BE R SH #E B (L EN2020FESGHR & W E 1 fk
TFROHFEEM BT #E  2020FESGHR &
RERBBECEFTELFHE -

Total Headcount BETI&AAY 419 444
By Gender 1 5l 2
Male Bt 362 393
Female gk 57 51
By Function B D
Management B 4 4
General staff —RAB 415 440
By Age Fieofh
<30 <30 43 35
30-50 30-50 283 322
>50 >50 93 87
By Geographical Distributions &5
Mainland China A it 419 444
Hong Kong i 0 0
By Employment Type ERERSH
Full-time gy 419 444
Part-time B (] 0
Employee Turnover — By Age BEIRKER—RER
Number of Employees Lost MAANE
<30 <30 18 32
30-50 30-50 244 238
>50 >50 59 54
MAPERERERAR o« ZT=—FFH
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BRE -HERERESE (B)

(0 040
Turnover Rate k=
<30 <30 48.00% 91.43%
30-50 30-50 81.74% 73.91%
>50 >50 62.11% 62.06%
Employee Turnover — By Gender BIRKER — &HR
Number of Employees Lost MEAE
Male B 312 317
Female peqi 10 7
Turnover Rate k=
Male S 82.65% 80.66%
Female g 18.52% 13.73%
Employee Training Performance — By Function BETHEIEN — KHEE
The Percentage of Employees Trained BINEBER
Management g 25.00% 75.00%
General employees —HRET 94.46% 86.59%
Average Training Hours Per Employee AT I B
Management BB 12.00 7.50
General employees —H%RET 3.60 35.79
Employee Training Performance — By Gender BETHEIER — RMER
The Percentage of Employees Trained BINBER
Male B 96.41% 90.08%
Female peqid 77.19% 58.82%
Average Training Hours Per Employee AT R 8
Male o) 3.81 39.42
Female g 2.1 5.61
Performance of Occupational Safety and Health BEZEZBEEN
Number of work-related injuries IXBEAH 2 0
Lost days due to work-related injury THEEATIHERS 0 0
Number of work-related fatalities THT A 0 0
Rate of work-related fatalities TRTEHE 0 0
Public Welfare (RMB) DEBEA(ARYE) 270,000 388,000
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

CONTENT INDEX

THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT
INDEX OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF
HONG KONG LIMITED

BR -HERERHKSE (H)

Subject Areas,
Aspects, General
Disclosures and
KPlIs

TEEE - BE
—REER
BRENER

Description

it

Aspect A1: Emissions

Section/Declaration

L1V 2

HREERERALA

B E LR -

A1 : B
General Information on: Environmental Protection —
Disclosure (a) the policies; and Emission Management
—REE (o)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on | ZRIER#E—HEHE B
the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and

generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

ERRRAKRERBHN  MARTHEHES AEREEEEVNEESN

@ BER: R

b) BIFHEBETABEATENHBBEZRADER -
KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Environmental Protection —

Emission Management
RERE-HRER

KPI A1.2
HEERERAL2

Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions (in tonnes)
and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility).

B (BE1) kipREZ (B8E2) RERBHRE A E) Rk (@ER) & (12
SERER - FEREHE) -

Performance Data Summary

BERARE

KPI A1.3
HEAMERALS

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and intensity.

PREEEERENEE UEAE) REE -

The Group’s vehicle
maintenance process which
may involve the generation of
hazardous waste is handled by
third-party service, while other
daily operations do not involve
the generation of hazardous
waste
REEFRESRESERYESE
R E LS TIER R E =7 RS
EEE  EthAEEEL IR
BEERENMNESE

HRERESRALS

TR L HE B B IR R REEIE L B R &5 -

KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and intensity. Performance Data Summary
HEEREBAIL | MELABEEZENAE CANGE) LEBE - FERABE
KPI A1.5 Description of emission target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them. Environmental Protection —

Emission Management
RERE-HRER

KPI A1.6
HREERIEBALG

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, and a
description of reduction target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.
HREERERBEEZYNAE  REAMETIAAERERABESGLBFM
ERERE 2 5 o

Environmental Protection —
Emission Management
RERE-FRER

AREERZERERAR o

R —FFR
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

BRE -#HE8REA

Subject Areas,
Aspects, General
Disclosures and
KPlIs

IRER -EE
—REBER
HEARER

W& (&)

Description

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

Section/Declaration

5/ EY

BEA2: ERER
General Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other raw Environmental Protection —
Disclosure materials. Resources Conservation
—REE BRERER(BEER  KREMEME) BBUR RERE-HHER
KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total and intensity. Environmental Protection —
BRENIEEA2 | ZEREASNERR SHEEREEEREE Resources Conservation
RERE-HHER
KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity. Performance Data Summary
BRENIEEA2.2 | BRKEREE - FERARE
KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them. Environmental Protection —
BMEENEEA23 | HALORERAN R B IERAETEL B IEMEMK LR - Resources Conservation
BRERE-HHER
KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water | Environmental Protection —
BREMIEEA2.4 | efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them. Resources Conservation
HACKEUEAAOR ERIAEAER - AR LARAKHG A ERAEIELAR | BERE-HHER
PITERER B 25 %
KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes) and with reference to The Group’s daily operations do
B & MIBIEA2.5 | per unit produced. not involve in use of packaging

HKMAEEMHNRE AMFE) RELEENHE -

materials
AEEHBEES
K8 ERE

TFRBEN

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources
BHAS : RERAARER

General Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant impact on the environment and natural Environmental Protection
Disclosure resources. RIGRE

—RRE MEETAHRERRAEREKREATENRE -

KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and natural Environmental Protection
BB M IEEAS.1 | resources and the actions taken to manage them. RERE

WA EBEHHRERRARERNEATERERNERARTEBNTE -

China Oriented International Holdings Limited
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Subject Areas,
Aspects, General
Disclosures and
KPlIs

IRER -EE
—REBER
HEARER

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
R -HERERRE (A)

Description

Aspect A4: Climate Change

EHEA4 : RIREL

Section/Declaration

5/ EY

General Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related issues which have | Environmental Protection —
Disclosure impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer. Climate Change

—REE A REHEERAEEHETAEEVENEARGHEBEEOER RERE-RIEE L

KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which have impacted, and those Environmental Protection —
B EMIEEA4.1 | which may impact, the issuer, and the actions taken to manage them. Climate Change

WADELRAR U BT AELYENEARKEREZE - REHTH -

REGRE-RIEE(L

Aspect B1: Employment

EEB1 : E
General Information on: Employee Care — Talent
Disclosure (a) the policies; and Management
—REE (o)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on | & TEIE— A A B8
the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours,

rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and

welfare.

BRAHNKEE BERE ITERH RY TEHE Sl REGURHE

& R E :

@ BX:R

b) BEFHETABEAZENHEBERRIROINER -
KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example, full- or part-time), age Performance Data Summary

BESAMERBA

group and geographical region.

RIUER - BEEE (W2BRE)  FRAN KRS INES B -

HERARE

KPI B1.2
BEENESB1.2

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region.
RIS FERAR RMEE D EEE R X -

Performance Data Summary

HERAME

APEEZERERAR o« —F

——FFR
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
R -#@REARE (K)

Subject Areas,
Aspects, General
Disclosures and
KPlIs

TREE E@-

—REBER
HRERER

Description

i

Aspect B2: Health and Safety
EEB2: BREEZE

Section/Declaration

- 1

WA ERE AR 2 WRERATRERTE -

General Information on: Employee Care — Talent
Disclosure (a) the policies; and Management
—REE (o)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impacton | B TR — A7 &2
the issuer

relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting employees from

occupational hazards.

BFRRHZ2IERERREEEHEBEREEN

(@ BXR:RE

b) BEFHEHETABEAZENHEBERLROINES -
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the past three years Performance Data Summary
B &M I84EB2.1 | including the reporting year. HERARE

BA=F (BRERFE)BFRITHMOARRLE -
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Performance Data Summary
BRENIEEB22 | ATBREATIERZ - ABEREME
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, how they are Employee Care — Health and
B # &M IKEB2.3 | implemented and monitored. Safety

BTHE-REAZE

Aspect B3: Development and Training
EEB3 : &ERE

BRI RESERNE D  SREETRI IO FOHE -

General Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging duties at work. | Employee Care — Training and

Disclosure Description of training activities. Development

—RRE BERRAREET TEBREMNANZRBRENBR - HlEINEE - BETRE-HIEER

KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category (e.g. senior Performance Data Summary

B EXMEEBS.1 | management, middle management). HERARE
BURIREESR(NEREREE FRERES)AINZIEEBSLL

KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and employee Performance Data Summary

BB ENRIEEBS.2 | category. HEREARE
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Subject Areas,
Aspects, General
Disclosures and
KPlIs

TREE E@-
—REBER
HEARER

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)
R -HERERRE (A)

Description

i

Aspect B4: Labour Standards

[EEB4 : 5 T#A

Section/Declaration

General Information on: Employee Care — Prevention of
Disclosure (a) the policies; and Child and Forced Labour
—REE (o)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impacton | & TRAIZE— MBS T K&H % T
the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced labour.

B EETHAHATH :

@ EER

b) BEFEHETABEAZENHEBERLROINER -
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child and forced Employee Care — Prevention of
B EENIEEB4.1 | labour. Child and Forced Labour

MR AR E R EEAREETRRHET - BETRE-MHBETREHET
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered. Employee Care — Prevention of
BMRENIEEBL2 | HMEERTER IS ERE BB REE) 25 - Child and Forced Labour

ETRE-HBEIREHET

Aspect B5: Supply

[EEBS : fiEHER

Chain Management

General Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain. Operational Excellence —
Disclosure ERHEENIRE R GRREBUE Supply Chain Management
—RRE FHEE-HEEERE
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. Operational Excellence —
BEENEEBS | RiES DN HEERSE - Supply Chain Management
FHEE-—HEREE
KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers where the | Operational Excellence —
B EMIEEBS.2 | practices are being implemented, and how they are implemented and monitored. Supply Chain Management
WA RERAEEENEN RERTEREMNNRERHE UREHEEHND | SHEE-HEHER
IRERFE -
KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental and social risks along the Operational Excellence —
B &M IE1EB5.3 | supply chain, and how they are implemented and monitored. Supply Chain Management
W ABHAHEERGERGORERMSEABOED  AREBERTRER % | SHEE-HERER
KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable products and Operational Excellence —
BEENIEEBS.4 | services when selecting suppliers, and how they are implemented and monitored. Supply Chain Management

M EREHERRRESBRERERMRENED  ARBBATRERTE -

FHEE-HEREER

AREERZERERAR o

R —FFR
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B HBRE

Subject Areas,
Aspects, General
Disclosures and

BHRE (F)

Description

Section/Declaration

KPls
TEER - E@- 408 1]
—REER
HRERNIER
Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
BEB6: EmER
General Information on: Operational Excellence —
Disclosure (a) the policies; and Service Quality
—REE (o)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on | S & E - REEE
the issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to
products and services provided and methods of redress.
BHMREERNRENEREZSE  BS RERLBESEUARBRTEN
@ EER
b) BEFHEHETABEAZENHEBERLROINES -
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and health Operational Excellence —
B &N IEEB6.1 | reasons. Service Quality
EEHCEXERBHTRR 2 EEREMAMARKNALL FHEE-REEE
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service-related complaints received and how they are dealt Operational Excellence —
B EMNIEEB6.2 | with. Service Quality
BEREBRERRREEIRFEE AR EEHTE - FHEE-REEE
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual property Operational Excellence —
B & MIE1EB6.3 | rights. Information Security and
g ERRENBEEEBOED Intellectual Property Protection
FHEE-FERERAHERE
Ri&
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures. Operational Excellence —
MEENEEB6Y | HIlEERTBREEREWKERF - Service Quality
FHEE-REEE
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, and how they are Operational Excellence —
B &M IE1EB6.5 | implemented and monitored. Information Security and
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Ri&
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESNEREEAENEEFRE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Qi Xiangzhong, aged 45, is the founder of the Group,
the Chairman, an executive Director, the chairman of the
Nomination Committee and a member of the Remuneration
Committee. He served as a Director since 22 February 2017.
He was then redesignated as an executive Director and also
served as the Chairman since 22 May 2017. He is primarily
responsible for major decision-making, overall strategic
planning and determining corporate policies and general
management of the Group.

In December 2012 and April 2014, Mr. Qi as a founder
established Shun Da School and Tong Tai School, respectively.
He has served as the executive director and legal representative
of Tong Tai School and Shun Da School and the executive
director, general manager and legal representative of
Zhumadian Tongtai Cultural Media Company Limited* (55 /&
BER UL EE AR A ) since their respective establishments.

Mr. Qi was appointed as a member of the 3rd executive
committee of Zhumadian City Federation of Industry and
Commerce* (HFETIEEAE) in March 2016 and a
member, standing member and vice president of the 7th
executive committee of Suiping County Federation of Industry
and Commerce* (V& TEHE4&€) in May 2016. Also, Mr. Qi
was appointed as the chairman of the Driver Training Service
Industry Council of the Zhumadian City Road Transport
Association* (B /EMERERHTEFEHFITERBE) in
March 2017. In addition, Mr. Qi is elected as a deputy to the 4th
Zhumadian City People’s Congress (5 /EmEMNEARRE
AEHRE) in April 2017.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Ms. Zhao Yuxia, aged 51, is the chief executive officer and
chief financial officer of the Group and an executive Director.
She served as a Director since 22 May 2017. She was then
redesignated as an executive Director and also served as the
chief executive officer and the chief financial officer of the Group
since 22 May 2017. She is primarily responsible for the overall
management of the business operation as well as financial
planning of operations of the Group.

Ms. Zhao obtained a Diploma in Corporate Finance and
Accounting from Anyang City Accounting School* (%5 Bt
ZE71%) in July 1992. She further completed an Accounting
Program from Henan Province School of Economic* (] g B 4%
7)) (now known as Henan Province University of Economics
and Law* (A8 &EBUAKXE) in June 1997 and obtained
the Assistant Accountant* (BN & =tAT) Qualification from the
Ministry of Finance of the PRC* (2 A R B8 B ) in
December 1997.

From December 1992 to July 2001, Ms. Zhao served as a
financial audit assistant, responsible for handling audit work
and preparing financial statements and audited reports, of
Suiping County Audit Firm* (ZF & E&TRIE5AT), which is an
accounting firm in the PRC. From August 2001 to September
2009, Ms. Zhao served as a financial audit assistant,
responsible for handling audit work, of Suiping County
Yongxing Joint Audit Firm* (& ¥ &k EE & S 5T B4 A,
which is an accounting firm in the PRC. From October 2009
to April 2014, Ms. Zhao was a finance manager, responsible
for overseeing the accounting and financial management, of
Zhumadian City Hongyuan Packing Company Limited* (55 /&
B EAR AT, which is a company principally engaged in
the sales of cardboards and paper. In May 2014, she joined our
Group as the financial controller of Tong Tai School, and was
responsible for our Group’s financial management.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EERSREBAENBEEHE (A)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Dr. Yeung Cheuk Kwong, CFA, aged 59, is the non-executive
Director. He served as a Director since 8 June 2018 and was
re-designated as a non-executive Director since 19 September
2019. He is primarily responsible for advising on finance and
investor relationship of the Group.

Dr. Yeung is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He has extensive experience and
knowledge in corporate finance, corporate governance and
investment in various asset classes, such as fixed income
securities and equities. From October 1995 to April 2000, Dr.
Yeung served as the executive director of Great Wall Electronic
International Limited (now known as EPI (Holdings) Limited)
(Stock code: 689), a company whose shares are listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and was principally
engaged in manufacture of consumer electronic products. He
was responsible for corporate planning, business development,
information technology strategy, financing activities, accounting
function and supervision. From April 2000 to January 2010, Dir.
Yeung was the chief financial officer and company secretary
of Ngai Lik Industrial Holdings Limited (now known as Yuan
Heng Gas Holdings Limited) (Stock code: 332). He also
served as the executive director of the said company from
April 2000 to February 2010. The said company is listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and was previously
engaged in investment holding. Its subsidiaries were principally
engaged in design, manufacture and sales of electronic
products and sales of motorcycle parts. He oversaw the
finance and accounting, legal affairs, human resources, general
administration, information technology and corporate planning
and development. From January 2014 to July 2014, Dr. Yeung
was an adviser to China Internet and its subsidiaries. Since
July 2014, he has served as the chief executive officer of China
Internet, the holding company of Greater Sino. China Internet is
principally engaged in investment in equity securities and debt
securities. He was responsible for the day-to-day management,
strategic planning and the execution of the strategic decisions.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

From February 2016 to January 2021, Dr. Yeung was also
been one of the licensed representatives of Silverstone
Investments Limited, a corporation licensed by the SFC to
carry on Type 9 (asset management) and Type 4 (advising
on securities) regulated activities under the SFO. He was
responsible for investment management advisory. Dr. Yeung
is currently one of the licensed representatives of Success
Advance Investments Limited, a corporation licenced by the
SFC to carry on Type 9 (asset management) and Type 4
(advising on securities) regulated activities under the SFO since
24 May 2021. Since December 2017, Dr. Yeung has been
appointed as the Adjunct Professor of Zhongnan University of
Economics and Law, the PRC.

Dr. Yeung graduated with a Professional Diploma in Accountancy
with distinction from Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University) in November 1986. He
further obtained a Bachelor degree of Science in Economics
from the University of London, the United Kingdom, in August
1990, a Master degree of Laws in Corporate and Financial Law
from The University of Hong Kong in November 2007, a Bachelor
degree of Law from The Manchester Metropolitan University,
the United Kingdom, in July 2008, a Master degree of Science
in Finance and a Doctor degree of Business Administration from
the City University of Hong Kong in October 2010 and July 2014,
respectively.

He was admitted as a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong
Kong Society of Accountants (now known as Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountant) in January 1991,
a Fellow Member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants in October 1994, an Associate Member of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales in
February 2006, and a full member of CPA Australia in July
2018. Dr. Yeung has served as an executive committee
member of Hong Kong Electronics Industry Council under the
Federation of Hong Kong Industries since July 2015.

Dr. Yeung is a CFA charterholder since February 2021.
Dr. Yeung has become a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Securities and Investment Institute since November 2021.

Since 1 August 2015, Dr. Yeung has served as the director of
Greater Sino, a substantial Shareholder.

In January 2021, he was appointed as a pro-bono director of
Manchester Metropolitan University Chapter Hong Kong Limited.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EERSREBAENBEEHE (A)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Siu Wah, aged 47, is an independent nonexecutive
Director. He served as an independent non-executive Director
since 19 September 2019 and is mainly responsible for
supervising and providing independent judgment to the Board.
Mr. Chan is also the chairman of the Remuneration Committee,
a member of the Audit Committee and a member of the
Nomination Committee.

Mr. Chan is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and has over 20 years of experience in
accounting and finance. From August 1996 to April 2000,
Mr. Chan worked in W.M. Sum & Co., an accounting firm,
as an auditor and was responsible for performing audit and
taxation assignments. Mr. Chan then joined Arthur Andersen
Hong Kong as an experienced staff accountant in May 2000
and as a senior in September 2001 in the Assurance and
Business Advisory Services Department. From July 2002,
subsequent to the combination of PricewaterhouseCoopers
Ltd. and Arthur Andersen Hong Kong practices, Mr. Chan
was transferred to PricewaterhouseCoopers Ltd. as a senior
associate, responsible for taking charge of a group of audits.
Mr. Chan left PricewaterhouseCoopers Ltd. in January 2003
as a senior associate. From February 2003 to August 2007,
Mr. Chan joined Sunray Holdings Limited as a financial
controller and was responsible for taking charge of group
accounting, financial reporting and listing compliance matters.
Sunray Holdings Limited had been listed on the Main Board of
the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited between
November 2003 and March 2014, principally engaged in the
development, manufacturing and marketing of medical systems
and consumables for the women’s healthcare market in the
PRC. From October 2007 to April 2012, Mr. Chan served as
the financial controller and joint company secretary of Dukang
Distillers Holdings Limited where he was responsible for the
financial reporting and company secretarial matters. Dukang
Distillers Holdings Limited has been listed on the Main Board
of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited since
September 2008, whose principal business is the production
and sales of Chinese white wine. From April 2012 to August
2013, Mr. Chan served as an audit manager in S.W. Chan &
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Co., an accounting firm, and was responsible for performing
audit, taxation and company secretarial services. Since July
2013, Mr. Chan has served as a director and practicing certified
public accountant at Alliance Ascent CPA Limited and is
responsible for overseeing the development and operation of
the accounting firm.

Mr. Chan graduated with a degree of Bachelor of Business
Administration in Accounting and Finance from The University
of Hong Kong in November 1996 and received the Master
of Corporate Governance degree from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University in October 2011.

Mr. Chan was admitted as a member and was further admitted
as a fellow member of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants in October 1999 and October 2004 respectively.
Mr. Chan was admitted as an associate member of the Hong
Kong Society of Accountants (now known as the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants) in March 2000.
Subsequently, Mr. Chan was registered as a certified public
accountant (practising) in July 2013. Mr. Chan was also
admitted as an associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries in April 2012.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EERSREBAENBEEHE (A)

Mr. Cheng Chun Shing, aged 47, is an independent
nonexecutive Director. He served as an independent
non-executive Director since 19 September 2019 and is
mainly responsible for supervising and providing independent
judgment to the Board. Mr. Cheng is also the chairman of the
Audit Committee, a member of the Remuneration Committee
and a member of the Nomination Committee.

Mr. Cheng is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and has about 20 years of experience
in accounting, auditing, corporate financial management
and corporate governance. Mr. Cheng had been under the
employment of KPMG, Hong Kong from September 1997
to September 2003, with his last position as an assistant
manager. He was responsible for audit planning, field auditing,
staff supervision and coordinating, preparation of reports
and financial statements. From January 2004 to November
2004, Mr. Cheng worked as an accounting officer in the
finance department of CLP Power Hong Kong Limited, and
was responsible for budgeting and reporting. Subsequently,
Mr. Cheng joined Grant Thornton Hong Kong in December
2004 as a manager, and was then promoted to senior
manager where he was responsible for preparing corporate
financial reports before the merger of business with BDO
Limited in January 2011. Following the merger, Mr. Cheng
was transferred to BDO Limited and employed as a senior
manager until August 2011. Mr. Cheng was appointed as
the group financial controller and as company secretary of
Sustainable Forest Holdings Limited (now known as Reliance
Global Holdings Limited) (Stock code: 723) for the period
between November 2011 and December 2014 and between
September 2012 and September 2014 respectively, and
was mainly responsible for overall accounting and financial
reporting matters of the group and for handling the company
secretarial matters of the group respectively. Reliance Global
Holdings Limited (Stock code: 723) is a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange which was then
principally engaged in the ownership and management of forest
plantation trees, the sale of timber logs and manufacturing of
engineered-wood products. From February 2015 to February
2017, Mr. Cheng was appointed as the chief financial officer
and company secretary of LC Group Holdings Limited (now
known as Hope Life International Holdings Limited) (Stock
code: 1683), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Exchange, which was principally engaged in the provision
of one-stop integrated interior design solutions. He was
responsible for overseeing the overall financial management
of the company and its subsidiaries and company secretarial
matters. Since June 2017, Mr. Cheng has been appointed as
an independent non-executive director of Genes Tech Group
Holdings Company Limited (Stock code: 8257), a company
listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange, which is principally
engaged in providing turnkey solutions and trading of used
semiconductor manufacturing equipment and parts. Since
October 2017 and March 2018 respectively, Mr. Cheng has
served as the financial controller and the company secretary of
BeijingWest Industries International Limited (Stock code: 2339),
a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange,
which is principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of
automotive parts and components, trading of automotive parts
and components and provision of technical services. He is
responsible for the company’s and secretarial matters.

Mr. Cheng obtained a Bachelor degree of Arts in Accountancy
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in November 1997
and a Master degree of Business Administration (Executive
Master of Business Administration Programme) from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong in November 2018. He was
admitted as an associate member of the Hong Kong Society of
Accountants (now known as Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants) in January 2001 and was admitted
as a fellow member in October 2014. Mr. Cheng was also
admitted as an associate member of The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales in January 2008 and was
admitted as a fellow member in January 2018.

Mr. Goh Teng Hwee, aged 56, is an independent
nonexecutive Director. He served as an independent
non-executive Director since 19 September 2019 and is
mainly responsible for supervising and providing independent
judgment to our Board. Mr. Goh is also a member of the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee.

Mr. Goh has more than 20 years of experience in legal practice.
He has been serving as a consultant of Oldham, Li & Nie since
November 2000 and is specialised in the area of commercial
contracts, civil and criminal litigation.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

EERSREBAENBEEHE (A)

Mr. Goh attended The Polytechnic of Wales, United Kingdom
(now known as University of South Wales) and obtained a
Bachelor degree of Laws in June 1990. He subsequently
obtained a Master degree of Laws from the University of
London, United Kingdom in August 2015. He was admitted
to practice law as attorney at law, New York, United States
of America, in January 1997. He was then qualified in the
United Kingdom and Hong Kong as a solicitor in May 1998 and
December 1999, respectively.

Save as disclosed herein, each of the Directors confirms that

(i)  he or sheis not related or having any personal relationship
(including financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationships) with any other Directors or any chief
executive of the Company that requires disclosure under
paragraph 12 of Appendix 16 of the Listing Rules; and

(i) in relation to his or her profile, no information is required
to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing
Rules.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Sun Tao (#%), aged 52, joined the Group as a vice
principal and the head of business department of Tong Tai
School in May 2014. He has been mainly responsible for
overseeing our business operations including the enrolment of
trainees and driving instructor management.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Sun was employed by
Zhumadian City Motor Transport Company Limited, Suiping
Branch* (5155 /5 A8 E# A R A 7 & F 5 2 F]) as an account
clerk between September 1991 and June 1998, and was then
promoted to the position of business manager responsible for
overall business operations from June 1998 to April 2014.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Mr. Sun obtained a Diploma in Statistics from Henan Province
Planning and Statistics School* (FF & 5T 8T E24R) in July
1991. Mr. Sun further obtained a Higher Diploma in Accounting
from Henan Province School of Economics* (77 & B1 4% 2 f5)
(now known as Henan Province University of Economics and
Law* (7] /8 81 & BUZ A2 in December 1997. He also obtained
the Qualification Certificate of Speciality and Technology
in Road Transport issued by the Ministry of Personnel of
the People’s Republic of China* (F# AR MEI A E ) in
November 2003 and the qualification of National Motor Vehicle
level Il Driving Instructor* (2B —R#EEEFHMRE) in
September 2015.

Mr. Sun was awarded Spring Festival Transportation Advanced
Worker* (Fi85t# T{E#) by Zhumadian City Motor Transport
Corporation* (X /5 /A= E# 42 7)) in March 2006 and
Outstanding Communist* (BF£EXE 8) by Zhumadian City
Motor Transport Corporation (Chinese Communist Party)
Committee* (FHBFFEMTEEHLAFZLZEE) in March
2007.

Mr. Zhang Changling (R & &), aged 66, joined the Group
as a vice principal and the head of administration department
of Tong Tai School in September 2014. He has been mainly
responsible for supervising our Group’s general logistics
work and administration work, vehicle maintenance and file
management.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Zhang worked at Suiping County
Waterworks* (& & 5 2 K&) as a treasurer, responsible for
financial management, from December 1975 to December
1978. He then worked for Suiping County Shenzhai Town
Finance Office* (%8 LZEEBI B FT) as a vice director (&)
FT&) between December 1978 and December 1989 mainly
responsible for preparation of budget and final accounts.
Mr. Zhang was then transferred to Suiping County Quyang
Road Finance Office* (xS BIGEHE M EEINFT) as a
director (FTf&) from December 1989 to December 2005 and
responsible for business operations management.

Mr. Zhang passed the National Civil Servant Training Course
and was granted a certificate by Personnel Department of
Henan Province* (Al E3& A % B2) in November 1994,
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EERSREBAENBEEHE (A)

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Tsang Chi Hon (Z &), aged 47, is the company
secretary. He served as the company secretary since 22
May 2017 and has been mainly responsible for the company
secretarial and related matters of our Group. Mr. Tsang is
a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and has more than 15 years of experience in
audit and accounting. Mr. Tsang joined Baker Tilly Hong Kong
Business Services Limited as an auditor in October 1999
and left the company as a senior auditor in February 2004.
In March 2004, Mr. Tsang joined Grant Thornton Hong Kong
as a senior in the assurance division and was subsequently
promoted to supervising senior in October 2004 responsible
for supervising the field work staff and reviewing the working
papers. He was further promoted to supervisor in October 2005
and was entrusted with a portfolio of the firm’s clients and also
assisted the audit manager in the review function. He held the
same position when he left the firm in March 2007. From May
2007 to July 2008, Mr. Tsang joined Reyoung Pharmaceutical
Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the
Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited, as a group
financial controller mainly responsible for the finance and
accounting functions of the group companies. From May 2009
to September 2009, Mr. Tsang was employed by Luxworld
Limited as a financial reporting manager, responsible for
financial reporting functions. From November 2009 to February
2014, Mr. Tsang served as chief financial officer in Zuoan
Fashion Limited, a company previously listed on the New York
Stock Exchange and was responsible for the finance and
accounting functions of the group companies.

From November 2013 to July 2021, Mr. Tsang had served as
an independent non-executive director of Xinhua News Media
Holdings Limited (Stock code: 309). From January 2017 to
August 2018, Mr. Tsang was a company secretary of Swee
Seng Holdings Limited, since April 2021, Mr. Tsang was
appointed as the Company secretary and financial controller of
Micron (International) Group Holdings Limited.

Mr. Tsang graduated from The University of Hong Kong in
December 2009 with a Bachelor of Accounting and was

admitted as a certified public accountant of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants in April 2006.

* For identification purpose only
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INTRODUCTION

The Board is pleased to submit its report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of driving
training services through its operating subsidiaries, namely
Shun Da School and Tong Tai School. Details of the principal
activities of the operating subsidiaries are set out in Note 30 to
the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

As required under Schedule 5 of the Companies Ordinance,
the Listing Rules and other applicable laws and regulations,
a review on the business, an analysis on the financial
performance of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2021 are set out under the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” from pages 6 to 22 of this annual
report. A description of the future development in the business
of the Group is set out in the section headed “Chairman’s
Statement” from pages 3 to 5 of this annual report. Both of the
above form part of this Report of Directors.

A description and analysis of the principal risks and
uncertainties faced by the Group during the year ended 31
December 2021 and the particulars of important events
affecting the Group since the end of the year ended 31
December 2021 are set out respectively in the paragraphs
headed “Principal Risks and Uncertainties” and “Events after
Reporting Period” below from pages 125 to 127 and on page
130 of this annual report.

A discussion on the environmental policies and performance of
the Group and an account of the key relationships of the Group
with its stakeholders, including the employees, customers
and suppliers and others that have a significant impact on
the success of the Company, are set out respectively in the
paragraphs headed “Environmental Policies and Performance”
and “Relationship with Stakeholders” below on page 129 of
this annual report. Further details on the performance of the
Group by reference to the environmental and social-related
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key performance indicators and policies, as well as compliance
with the applicable laws and regulations are provided in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report from pages 46
to 97 of this annual report.

A discussion on the compliance of the Group with relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group
is set out in the paragraph headed “Legal and Compliance”
below on page 128 of this annual report. A further discussion
on the corporate governance practices of the Group is set out
in the Corporate Governance Report from pages 23 to 45 of
this annual report.

FINANCIAL RESULTS AND SUMMARY

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 December 2021 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 233 of this annual report.

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 233 of
this annual report.

DIVIDENDS

The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend
to the Shareholders for the year ended 31 December 2021
(2020: Nil).

On 27 March 2020, the Board has adopted a dividend policy,
pursuant to which, the Company may consider whether to
propose a dividend out of its distributable profits and reserves
and determine the amount of dividend. For further details,
please refer to the paragraph headed “Dividend Policy” under
the Corporate Governance report on page 41 of this annual
report.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the
year amounted to approximately RMB270,000.
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TOTAL NUMBER OF SHARES AND
DEBENTURES ISSUED

On 24 October 2019, the Shares were successfully listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange at the stock code
1871. The initial public offering comprised the public offering
of 50,000,000 new Shares and the placing of 50,000,000 new
Shares. For further details of the IPO, including, among other
things, the reasons for making the issue of and the issue price
of the Shares, please refer to the Prospectus published on the
websites of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and of
the Company (www.china-oriented.com).

Save as disclosed hereinabove, no other shares or debentures
were issued by the Company since the Listing Date and for the
year ended 31 December 2021.

Details of the movements in the total number of issued shares
of the Company during the year are set out in Note 25 to the
consolidated financial statements.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company has not
entered into any equity-linked agreement that will or may result
in the Company issuing shares, or that requires the Company
to enter into any agreements that will or may result in the
Company issuing shares.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted the Share Option Scheme on 19
September 2019. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme
is to enable the Company to grant options to the employee,
adviser, consultant, service provider, agent, customer, partner
or joint-venture partner of the Company or any subsidiary
(including any director of the Company or any subsidiary)
who is in full-time or part-time employment with or otherwise
engaged by the Company or any subsidiary at the time when
an option is granted to such employee, adviser, consultant,
service provider, agent, customer, partner or joint-venture
partner or any person who, in the absolute discretion of
the Board has contributed or may contribute to the Group
(the “Eligible Participants”) as incentive or reward for their
contribution to the Group to subscribe for the Shares thereby
linking their interest with that of the Group. On and subject
to the terms of the Share Option Scheme and all applicable
statutory requirements, the Board shall be entitled at any time
within 10 years after the adoption date of the Share Option
Scheme to make an offer to any Eligible Participants as the
Board may in its absolute discretion select to subscribe for
such number of Shares as the Board may determine at the
subscription price.

The maximum number of Shares in respect of which options
may be granted at any time under the Share Option Scheme
together with options which may be granted under any other
share option schemes for the time being of the Company must
not in aggregate exceed such number of Shares as equals
10% of the issued share capital of the Company. Any further
grant of share options to any eligible participant in excess
of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general
meeting. The total number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all share options to be granted under the
Share Option Scheme and the other schemes (if any) must
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares of the Company
in issue (the “Scheme Mandate Limit”) as at 19 September
2019, being the date of passing the resolution by the then
Shareholders through written resolutions approving and
adopting the Share Option Scheme. The Company may seek
approval of its Shareholders in a general meeting to refresh
the Scheme Mandate Limit at any time in accordance with the
Listing Rules.
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The limit on the number of Shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to
be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Group must not exceed 30%
of the Shares in issue from time to time. No options may be
granted under the Share Option Scheme or any other share
option schemes of the Group if this will result in the limit being
exceeded.

Unless approved by the Shareholders in the manner set out
below, the total number of Shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted and to be granted to each
grantee (including both exercised and outstanding options)
in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the Shares
in issue. Where any further grant of options to an Eligible
Participant would result in the Shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of all options granted and to be granted to
such person (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) in the 12-month period up to and including the date
of such further grant representing in aggregate over 1% of
the Shares in issue, such further grant must be separately
approved by Shareholders in general meeting with such
Eligible Participant and his/her close associates (or his/her
associates if the Eligible Participant is a connected person)
abstaining from voting.

An offer shall be deemed to have been accepted by an Eligible
Participant concerned in respect of all Shares which are
offered to such Eligible Participant when the duplicate letter
comprising acceptance of the offer duly signed by the Eligible
Participant, together with a non-refundable remittance in
favour of the Company of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for
the grant thereof is received by the Company within 21 days
from the date of offer or within such time as may be determined
by the Board.
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Any offer may be accepted by an Eligible Participant in respect
of less than the total number of Shares which are offered
provided that it is accepted in respect of a board lot for dealing
in Shares on the Stock Exchange or an integral multiple
thereof.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by
the Directors, but shall not be less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the offer date; (ii) the
average closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five trading
days immediately preceding the offer date; and (iii) the nominal
value of the Company’s shares.

For the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date of
this annual report, the Company (i) has not granted any share
option under the Share Option Scheme; and (ii) does not
have any share options outstanding for issue under the Share
Option Scheme.

USE OF PROCEEDS

On 24 October 2019, the Shares were listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. The net proceeds from the
IPO were approximately HK$108.4 million after deducting
the underwriting fees, the Stock Exchange trading fee, the
Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong transaction
levy for the new Shares in the Company and the listing
expenses in connection with the Share Offer.
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As at 31 December 2021, a total of approximately HK$32.7  #A2021F12H318 » ZEBBE AT AT
million had been utilised by the Group according to the #HHOREESHHA LY. 7TEEET:
allocation set out hereinbelow:

Utilisation
during the
period from Expected
the Listing Unutilised timeframe for
Dateto amountasat intended use
% of net Net proceeds 31 December 31December of unutilised

proceeds from IPO 2021 2021 amount
BEHmAHZ
20215

B 12A31H 202145 RERZ
FEME  LRREZ ILHE  12R31Bz RPAFEMN
FE% FBNERE BAGR ADAEE BHEREER

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000

TAET THET TAET
Acquisition of a parcel of land (& — g 5% 45.7 49,547 — 49,547 By the end of
June 2022
=
2022F6 AIK
Construction of training fields &35 7155 1t 12.3 13,333 — 13,333 Bythe end of
June 2022
HE
20226 AIE
Purchase of training vehicles BB FIlRE 9.7 10,517 5,269 5248 By the end of
June 2022
HZE
20226 A
Recruitment and training REE RIF 405 96 10,408 2,769 7,639 By the end of
costs for 40 new driving MERHRNER June 2022
instructors =
2022F6AIE
Repayment of bank loans ERRTER 12.7 13,769 13,769 — —
Working capital and general  £EE& K 10.0 10,844 10,844 — —

corporate purposes —RAFAAR
Total st 100.0 108,418 32,651 75,767

The Board does not anticipate any change to the intended use ZE=& B LN HERSEFEAN

=

of net proceeds as previously disclosed in the Prospectus. SHRIEFER TR 8 ERNEE -
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, being
the jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated, which
would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata
basis to existing Shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

For the year ended 31 December 2021, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the Company’s listed securities.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2021, reserves of approximately
RMB45,686,000 were available for distribution to our
shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as at
the date of this annual report, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS

For the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date
of this annual report, the Board comprises the following
members:

Executive Directors

Mr. Qi Xiangzhong'
Ms. Zhao Yuxia?

Non-Executive Director
Dr. Yeung Cheuk Kwong?®

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Cheng Chun Shing*
Mr. Chan Siu Wah®
Mr. Goh Teng Hwee®

! Mr. Qi Xiangzhong was appointed on 22 February 2017 and was
redesignated as an executive Director and was appointed as the
Chairman on 22 May 2017.

2 Ms. Zhao Yuxia was appointed on 22 May 2017 and was redesignated
as an executive Director and was appointed as the chief executive officer
and the chief financial officer of the Group on 22 May 2017.

8 Dr. Yeung Cheuk Kwong was appointed on 8 June 2018 and was
redesignated as a non-executive Director on 19 September 2019.

4 Mr. Cheng Chun Shing was appointed on 19 September 2019.

5 Mr. Chan Siu Wah was appointed on 19 September 2019.

6 Mr. Goh Teng Hwee was appointed on 19 September 2019.

Articles 84(1) of the Articles of Association provides that
notwithstanding any other provisions in the Articles of
Association, at each annual general meeting one-third of the
Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not a multiple
of three (3), the number nearest to but not less than one- third)
shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director
shall be subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at
least once every three years. Accordingly, Dr. Yeung Cheuk
Kwong and Mr. Chan Siu Wah shall retire from office by
rotation at the AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves to
undergo re-election at the AGM. For the biographical details of
the Directors who will undergo re-election, please refer to the
section headed “Details of Directors Proposed for Re-election”
in Appendix Il to the AGM Circular.
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INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATION

The Company has received, from each of the independent
non-executive Directors, a letter of confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Nomination Committee considered and the Board took the
view that each and every independent non-executive Directors
are independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

With effect from the Listing Date, service contracts were
entered into between the Company and each of the executive
Directors. Letters of appointment were also entered into
between the Company and each of the non-executive Director
and the independent non-executive Directors.

No Director proposed for re-election at the AGM has a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

For further details including, among other things, the principal
terms and the names of the Directors having material interest in
such service contracts and letters of appointment, please refer
to the paragraph headed “Service Contracts and Letters of
Appointment with Directors” under the Corporate Governance
Report from pages 26 to 27 of this annual report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts by which any person undertook the management
and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company existed or were entered into between
the Company and any person who is not a Director or not
engaged in the full-time employment of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2021.
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DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTEREST IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance
in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director and
the Director’s connected party had a material interest, whether
directly and indirectly, subsisted as at 31 December 2021 or at
any time during the year ended 31 December 2021.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE BETWEEN
THE COMPANY AND THE CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER (OR THEIR SUBSIDIARIES)

Furthermore, no contracts of significance between the
Company (or any of its subsidiaries) and a Controlling
Shareholder (or any of its subsidiaries), or contracts of
significance for the provision of services to the Company (or
any of its subsidiaries) by a Controlling Shareholder (or any of
its subsidiaries) were entered into as at 31 December 2021 or
at any time during the year ended 31 December 2021.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITION IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions
of the Directors or chief executive of the Company in Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO), which was recorded by the Company in its register
of directors’ and chief executives’ interests and short position
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise should be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules,
were as follows:

() Long position in Shares

Capacity/nature

Number of Shares

EERERTHRAERES
HERORESHNEERKXAE

MN2021FE12A310  EFH AR T HES
TRABRARR SKEE B EE (F
E R BEHFNEBRAIEXVED) BkH - 8
RO REFTHEEREESKBEK
BIE3L2 B FBERARAELNEES
MEEITHABEDR AR B MaE
wmROKE  BBRE TR BN+ AT
SAZAEST A A2 AR B M B XX B A 4 25
KA WT ¢

(i) KRHBEFE

Percentage of

Name of interest held/interested shareholding
SV -]

e 54/ EEHE EZHRAOEE BFREDL

Mr. Qi Xiangzhong Interest in a controlled 206,400,000 51.6%
corporation (Note 1)

TR SEA REEGDEE &R 206,400,000 51.6%
(Mf5E1)

Note: BfoE -

1. The Shares are registered in the name of Alpha Leap, the entire 1. ZERGDUERBZEEZZD ME

issued share capital of which is owned by Mr. Qi Xiangzhong.
Accordingly, Mr. Qi is deemed to be interested in all the Shares
held by Alpha Leap for the purposes of Part XV of the SFO.

(ii) Long position in the shares of associated corporation

EREBTRABIT AP ELERER -
E it - BIEE S R E GO EXVEL
TRERRASNERMIFTE 28N
hEA R

(i) RAEBLIERONEFE

Percentage of

Name of shareholding in

associated Capacity/nature of Number of the associated

Name of director coporation interest share(s) held corporation
RIEEEEN

EsSpnR LB Z B B/ ERHEE R &8 BRES L
Mr. Qi Xiangzhong Alpha Leap Beneficial owner 1 100%
JTEASEA S ExEAA 1 100%
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN THE
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2021, so far as is known to the Directors,
the following persons (not being a Director or chief executive
of the Company) will have interests or short positions in Shares
or underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or who will be directly
or indirectly interested in 10% or more of the issued shares
of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all
circumstances at general meetings of the Company or any of
its subsidiaries:
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FTERRREOREERSGF
Rz ROX A

MR2021F12A31H » BEEEA - 77
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RO BEARDEEREFESARRE
1B EXVER 2 K37 8 2 1AM AR
AR BENERSOAE  SkEE
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BE BRI A 2 B2 TRDEE10%
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() Long position in Shares (i) BRHEHEFER
Number of

Shares Percentage of

Name Capacity/nature of interest held/interested shareholding
Fi¥s/ HEEEN
HE,/ AR 51/ EEEE gl 4= FEREDL
Alpha Leap Beneficial owner 206,400,000 51.60%
BHR EnEAA 206,400,000 51.60%
Ms. Gao Dongju (Note 1) Spouse interest 206,400,000 51.60%
mAHL L (M) FLBER 206,400,000 51.60%
Cosmic Hero Beneficial owner 51,600,000 12.90%
T EnEAA 51,600,000 12.90%
Mr. Ling Wai Leung (Note 2) Interest in a controlled corporation 51,600,000 12.90%
R R (HE2) REZHEE R 51,600,000 12.90%
Ms. Hui Ching Ping (Note 3) Spouse interest 51,600,000 12.90%
FrEwT L (fEE3) A & 51,600,000 12.90%
Great Sino Beneficial owner 42,000,000 10.50%
(= EREAA 42,000,000 10.50%
Ample Star (Note 4) Interest in a controlled corporation 42,000,000 10.50%
w2 (f15t4) REEHEB I S 42,000,000 10.50%
China Internet (Note 4) Interest in a controlled corporation 42,000,000 10.50%
B B B4R (R EE4) REZHEE R E R 42,000,000 10.50%
MABERZERERAR o ZFEZ —FFH 121
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Notes:

1. Ms. Gao Dongju is the spouse of Mr. Qi Xiangzhong. She is
deemed to be interested in the Shares in which Mr. Qi is interested
in under Part XV of the SFO.

2. The Shares are registered in the name of Cosmic Hero, the entire
issued share capital of which is owned by Mr. Ling Wai Leung.
Accordingly, Mr. Ling is deemed to be interested in all the Shares
held by Cosmic Hero for the purposes of Part XV of the SFO.

3. Ms. Hui Ching Ping is the spouse of Mr. Ling Wai Leung. She
is deemed to be interested in the Shares in which Mr. Ling is
interested in under Part XV of the SFO.

4. The Shares are registered in the name of Greater Sino, the entire
issued share capital of which is owned by Ample Star, which is
in turn owned by China Internet. Accordingly, Ample Star and
China Internet are deemed to be interested in the Shares in which
Greater Sino is interested under Part XV of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as of the date of this annual report,
none of the Directors or the chief executive of the Company
had or was deemed to have any interest or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) that was required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions
of the SFO), or required to be recorded in the register of
directors’ and chief executives’ interests and short positions
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST AND RIGHTS TO
ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Neither the Company, its holding company, any of its
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of Shares in, or debentures of, the
Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries as at 31 December 2021 or at any time
during the year ended 31 December 2021.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles of Association and subject to the
applicable laws and regulations, every Director shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits
of the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them
shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done,
concurred in or omitted in or about the execution the execution
of their duty, or supposed duty, in their offices (provided that
such indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect of any
fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any of such Directors).

Directors and officers insurance are currently in force and
in place to protect the Directors and/or the directors of its
associated company against potential costs and liabilities
arising from claims brought against the Directors. Permitted
indemnity provisions are set out in such liability insurance.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors has any interests in any business which,
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the business of the Group.

The Directors has confirmed that other than business of the
Group, none of the Directors holds any interest in business
which directly or indirectly competes or is likely to compete
with the business of the Group.
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EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The emolument packages of each of the Directors and senior
management of the Group are decided by the Board with
reference to the recommendations given by the Remuneration
Committee, and having regard to, among other things, the
operating results of the Group, performance of individual
Directors and senior management and comparable market
statistics.

For further details in respect of the policy on the remuneration
of the Directors and senior management, please refer to the
paragraph headed “Policy on the Remuneration of Directors
and Senior Management” under the Corporate Governance
Report on page 37 of this annual report.

For further details on the emoluments of the Directors and
the five highest-paid individual of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2021, please refer to Note 12 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed hereinabove, no other payments have been
made or are payable, during the year ended 31 December
2021, by the Group to or on behalf of any of the Directors.

PENSION AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
SCHEME

The Group participates in a state-managed defined
contribution retirement scheme organised by the relevant local
governmental authority in the PRC. The Group is required to
make monthly contributions to the retirement scheme for the
eligible employees at specified percentage of the payroll and
the local governmental authority is responsible for the pension
liabilities to these employees upon their retirement.

No forfeited contributions (by employers on behalf of
employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in
such contributions) were used to reduce the existing level
of contributions and no forfeited contribution was available
as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 to reduce future years’
contributions.
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For further details, please refer to Note 4(q) to the consolidated
financial statements.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The financial condition, results of operations, business and
prospects of the Group may be affected by various risks
and uncertainties. Hereinbelow is a list of principal risks and
uncertainties identified by the Board with the understanding
that the list is by no means exhaustive or comprehensive, and
there might be other risks and uncertainties in addition to those
shown below which are not known to the Company or which
may not be material now but could turn out to be material in the
future.

1. Business risks: The revenue and profits of the Group
are greatly affected by the level of course enrolment and
the fees that the Group is able to charge. Throughout the
year ended 31 December 2021, the Group was under
pressure to downward adjust the course fees for our
driving courses of both Large Vehicles and Small Vehicles
because of (i) regulatory changes with effect from the third
quarter of the year ended 31 December 2021 relating to
setting-up of driving schools in the PRC, which lowered
the threshold for entry into the industry and increased
the number of driving training service provider for Large
Vehicles; and (i) keen competition following the outbreak
of Covid-19 pandemic, putting further pressure on both
Tong Tai School and Shun Da School in adjusting course
fees to capture market shares. If the Group is unable to
adjust the level of course fees for driving courses in the
future, the gross profit margin for driving training services
business may continue to decrease.
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Operation risks: Operating risks refers to the risks
resulting from inadequate internal processes and the
risks resulting from human errors in internal operations
or other reasons. In order to manage these risks, the
Company has established an internal control system
so as to minimise the adverse effects of such risks on
the Company. However, failure to maintain an adequate
internal control system may potentially lead to financial
loss, litigation or damage in reputation.

For further details in respect of the internal control and
risk management system of the Company, please refer
to the paragraph headed “Risk Management and Internal
Control System” under the Corporate Governance Report
from pages 38 to 40 of this annual report.

Legal and regulatory risks: All of our operations are
conducted in the PRC and are governed by the PRC
laws, regulations and rules. The PRC legal system is a
civil law system based on written statutes, and prior court
decisions can only be cited as reference and have limited
precedential value. As many of these laws, regulations
and rules are relatively new, and the published court
decisions are scarce and of non-binding nature, the
interpretation and enforcement of the laws, rules and
regulations in the PRC may involve uncertainties and
may not be consistent or predicable as in other more
developed jurisdictions. Furthermore, since the Shares
were listed on the Stock Exchange on the Listing Date,
more effort is incurred to comply with the applicable laws
and regulations in Hong Kong, including but not limited to
those relating to securities transaction, listing, disclosure
and corporate governance. Any litigation or regulatory
enforcement action in the PRC or Hong Kong could
result in substantial costs and diversion of resources and
management attention.

For further details in respect of the compliance with laws
and regulations and the corporate governance practices
of the Company, please refer to the paragraph headed
“Legal and Compliance” below on page 128 of this annual
report, and the Corporate Governance Report from pages
23 to 45 of this annual report.
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4. Financial risks: The business and operation of the
Group are exposed to financial risks on foreign currency,
credit, liquidity and interest rate.

For further details, please refer to the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” from pages 6 to
22 of this annual report, and Note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements.

In response to the aforesaid potential risks and
uncertainties, the Board will continue to implement and
maintain internal control and strategies to adapt itself to
cope with such risks and changes. The Board will also
develop and review strategies, policies and guidelines
on risk control from time to time to enable the Group
to monitor closely and formulate business strategies to
respond to risk promptly and effectively.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, approximately
48.3% of the total purchase of the Group were attributable to
the largest supplier of the Group, and approximately 87.9% of
the total purchase of the Group were attributable to the five
largest suppliers of the Group.

Due to the nature of our business, there were no customers
accounted for more than 5% of the revenue of the Group and
the five largest customers of the Group did not account for
more than 30% of the revenue of the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2020.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors,
their respective close associates or any of the Shareholders
holding more than 5% of the Shares have any interest in any of
the five largest suppliers of the Group.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EESERE (R)

LEGAL AND COMPLIANCE
Legal proceedings

To the best knowledge of the Directors, during the year ended
31 December 2021 and up to the date of this annual report,
the Group was not engaged in any litigation, arbitration,
administrative proceedings or claim of material importance
pending or threatened by or against the Group, which could
have a material adverse effect on the financial position and
results of operations of the Group.

Compliance with applicable laws and regulations

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group is not
aware of any non-compliance with laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the Group.

Compliance with the Corporate Governance Code

Since the Listing Date, the Company has adopted the
principles and code provisions in the Corporate Governance
Code as fundamental guidelines for the corporate governance
practices of the Company. As at the date of this annual report,
the Company has complied with all the applicable code
provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code.

For further details of the corporate governance practice of the
Company, please refer to the Corporate Governance Report
from pages 23 to 45 of this annual report.

Compliance with the Model Code

For details of compliance with the Model Code, please refer
to the paragraph headed “Directors’ Securities Transactions”
under the Corporate Governance Report on page 23 of this
annual report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

Due to the nature of our business, our operational activities
do not directly generate industrial pollutants, and we did
not directly incur any cost of compliance with applicable
environmental protection rules and regulations.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, during the year ended
31 December 2021 and up to the date of this annual report,
the Group did not receive any complaints from any other
parties concerning any environmental protection issues, nor
did the Group experience any material environmental incidents
arising from its operations.

For the details of the Group’s environmental policies and
performance, please refer to the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report from pages 46 to 97 of this annual report.

RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group recognises that a good relationship with its
employees, customers and business partners are keys to
achieve its long-term goals. The Group has been striving to
establish and maintain an effective communication channel
with its employees, providing quality services for its customers,
collaborating with business partners and supporting the
community.

For further details in respect of the relationships of the Group
with the stakeholders and how the Group has been responding
to stakeholders’ concerns, please refer to the paragraph
headed “Responding to Stakeholders’ Concerns” under the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report from pages 52
to 54 of this annual report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
EESERE (R)

DATE OF THE AGM AND BOOK CLOSURE
PERIOD

The AGM will be held on Wednesday, 29 June 2022. The
notice of the AGM, together with the AGM circular and the
proxy form will be published on the websites of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (www.hkexnews.hk) and the
Company (www.china-oriented.com) and dispatched in due
course in the manner as required by the Listing Rules and the
applicable laws and regulations.

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Friday, 24 June 2022 to Wednesday, 29 June 2022, both days
inclusive, in order to determine the identity of the Shareholders
who are entitled to attend the AGM, during which period no
transfers of Shares will be registered. To be eligible to attend
the AGM, all properly completed transfer forms accompanied
by the relevant Share certificates must be lodged for
registration with the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong
Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not later than
4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 23 June 2022.

PROFESSIONAL TAX ADVICE
RECOMMENDED

Shareholders who are unsure about the taxation implications of
purchasing, holdings, disposing of, dealing in, or the exercise
of any rights in relation to, the Shares, are suggested to consult
an expert.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

There are no material events subsequent to 31 December
2021 which would materially affect the operating and financial
performance of the Group as of the date of this annual report.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2021 on 29 March 2022, being the date on which
the audited annual results of the Group were published on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

For further information in respect of, among other things,
the composition of and the work performed by the Audit
Committee, please refer to the paragraph headed “Board
Committees — Audit Committee” under the Corporate
Governance Report from pages 30 to 32 of this annual report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2021 have been audited by Messrs. Moore
Stephens CPA Limited. The consolidated financial statements
for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 were
audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu has resigned and Moore Stephens CPA Limited
was appointed as the independent auditor of the Company.
For further details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company in respect of change of auditor dated 29 November
2021. A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM
for the re-appointment of Moore Stephens CPA Limited as the
independent auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

China Oriented International Holdings Limited
Qi Xiangzhong

Chairman and Executive Director

29 March 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B2 HENREE

K| MOORE

To the Shareholders of
China Oriented International Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
China Oriented International Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 140 to 232, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2021, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTER

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
BYRAMBRES (&)

FARETEE

Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional FEFBTFIELIBES EH EEE HE -
judgment, was of most significance in our audit of the RANUARFEEZEVERRNBFHE
consolidated financial statements of the current year. This ZEHEE - ZEZBEEEEE Jp%ﬁg,i?{:.\
matter was addressed in the context of our audit of the W EHEAIHAE ﬁﬁqrgfi o BELTE®
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming HtZEBIZHEEBHNER -

our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion

on this matter.

Recognition of revenue from driving training services

BB BE AR A

Refer to Note 6 to the consolidated financial statements

L=y &)
Key audit matter

BRESER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENETNMEERESTESHETEE

We identified the recognition of revenue from
driving training services as a key audit matter due
to the significance of the amount of revenue to the
consolidated financial statements as a whole and the
large number of customers as the Group operates
two driving schools in Zhumadian City, Henan
Province, the People’s Republic of China.

=N %%E@iﬂ%/\ﬁi—fwiﬁiﬁé%%‘f%ﬁﬁm“
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Our procedures in relation to the recognition of
revenue from driving training services included:

EMERR B BRIFIIRGE 2 WANERF B

e  Obtaining an understanding of the Group’s
revenue recognition policy (including
forfeiture and refund) and key controls over
revenue recognition

o TR SESEMUEERER (RERKKE
B) MW AR E R

° Evaluating the accuracy of revenue
recognised based on the output method
by checking their computation on a sample
basis;

. BAMBREHHEAR THENEGDE
e 58 O W A ) B 1

e Inspecting to customers' files, on a
sample basis, checking the corresponding
supporting documents, including but not
limited to customers' identification cards,
driving licenses, agreements with customers,
registration forms, attendance records and
payment receipts; and
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
BYUBRHM®RESE (F)

KEY AUDIT MATTER (continued)

BRETEE(E)

Recognition of revenue from driving training services (continued)

BREBIE IR WA (F)

Refer to Note 6 to the consolidated financial statements

ety &)
Key audit matter

HRETER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENETNMEERESTSRETEE

Revenue of the Group mainly comprises driving
training service income which is derived from
offering packaged driving courses for preparation
for driving tests to large number of customers and
during the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Group recognised approximately RMB67,151,000
of revenue from these driving training services.
As set out in Note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements, the revenue recognition is based on
output method by measuring the training hours
provided to the customer relative to the total training
hours promised under the contract.
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Assessing the accuracy of the Group's
record of training hours provided for
customers during the year by matching
them, on a sample basis, with driving training
records certified by the relevant government
body.
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OTHER MATTER

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2020 were audited by another auditor
who expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on
31 March 2021.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
BYUBRHM®RESE (F)

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the
directors of the Company determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of
the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Company’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of
engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors of the
Company.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (CONTINUED)
BYUBRHM®RESE (F)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the Company’s
directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue
as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safeguards applied.

From the matter communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine that matter that was of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and is therefore the key audit
matter. We describe this matter in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Moore Stephens CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Ng Ngai Yan
Practising Certificate Number: P07422

Hong Kong, 29 March 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meEm R EMEE R ER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE 2021F 12 A31H LFE

2021 2020
202145 20204
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’'000
B 5 AR®E T ARETIT
Revenue Wz 6 67,151 67,963
Cost of services rendered B R AR A AR (44,488) (38,170)
Gross profit EF 22,663 29,793
Other income and losses, net HtWAREE(FR) 8 2,595 6,193
Reversal of/(provision for) HibhEWEFESEE
allowance for expected BEEED
credit loss on other receivables | (BE) 40 (1,468)
Selling and marketing expenses HERZEHERY (3,027) (4,012)
Administrative expenses T EH (16,764) (16,930)
Finance costs M%ER 9 (3,894) (3,932)
Profit before income tax BR P 18 B4 A i A 10 1,613 9,644
Income tax expense e E R 11 (5,063) (2,819)
(Loss)/profit and total ERAREEABLEEE
comprehensive (loss)/income (F5#E) SR 2E
for the year attributable to the  (E#8) /WA &%
owners of the Company (3,450) 6,825
(Loss)/earnings per share EAREEAELER
attributable (B8] B
to the owners of the Company
~ Basic and diluted (RMB cents) —EAXAREE(ARED) 14 (0.86) 1.71
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
eI R

At 31 December 2021

7202112 A318

2021 2020
202145 20204
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’'000
B 5 AR®E T ARETIT
Non-current assets (RBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BFENEE 15 82,113 87,955
Right-of-use assets TREEE 16 46,644 48,962
Intangible assets BREE 17 - -
Deposits paid for construction in RERIENORS
progress 18 1,739 1,790
Prepayment paid for property, E  BEREEIH
plant and equipment EOFEEN O 18 1,080 1,440
131,576 140,147
Current assets RBEE
Trade and other receivables, B 5 kEMmENKFIE -
deposits and prepayments Ze RENRIE 18 2,997 5,496
Amount due from a director EWARNE —REEHIEA
of the Company 19 - 2,283
Bank balances and cash RITHEBRRE S 20 175,242 167,588
178,239 175,367
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables 25 MEMERNFIE
and accruals REFER 21(a) 17,200 20,419
Contract liabilities BHAEE 21(b 30,463 34,811
Tax liabilities MIERE 3,073 6,174
Lease liabilities HEARE 22 962 1,207
Borrowings RN 23 32,750 36,800
84,448 99,411
Net current assets RBEEFE 93,791 75,956
Total assets less current BEERABAE
liabilities 225,367 216,103
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)
REMBMRR T (&)
At 31 December 2021 742021412 H31H

2021 2020
20214 2020F
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000

Pt &E AR®T ARETT

Non-current liabilities *kRBER

Lease liabilities HEBE 22 1,298 2,260

Borrowings EEN 23 9,000 -

Deferred tax liabilities EERIBERE 24 8,390 3,714
18,688 5,974

Net assets EEZRE 206,679 210,129

EQUITY B

Equity attributable to the owners &2 B#HE A Eh

of the Company

Share capital P& 7 25 3,608 3,608

Reserves f# & 26 203,071 206,521

Total equity HMRER 206,679 210,129

The consolidated financial statements on pages 140 to 232 &R F140E232EN G S EHRERKE
were approved and authorised for issue by the board of =& 20223 F29H #E /i & 15 4 I 48
directors on 29 March 2022 and are signed on its behalf by: NTESERKREEZETUATIE

Qi Xiangzhong Zhao Yuxia
ik HER
Director Director
EF EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

e

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Attributable to the owners of the Company

2%

HZE2021F12A31HIEFE

RAREBARLL
Share Share Capital ~ Statutory  Retained
capital premium reserve reserve earnings Total
kx  RHRE EARE  iERE  REEN H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETR ARETR ARBTT AR®Tn ARET:E
(Note 25) (Note 26) (Note 26) (Note 26)
(Biztos)  (Wsroe)  (WiEto6)  (FitEE26)
At1 January 2020 5200051 A18 3608 105636 22000 10683 61377 203304
Profit and total comprehensive ~ FERF R
income for the year 2EBANEE - - - - 6,825 6,825
Appropriation to statutory reserve % %A F Ei & - - - 312 (312) -
At 31 December 2020 and R2020F 12318 |k
1 January 2021 20211 A1H 3,608 105,636 22,000 10,995 67,890 210,129
Loss and total comprehensive ~ FEERE R
loss for the year PHERRE - - - - (3,450) (3,450)
Appropriation to statutory reserve 2 A - - - 5 (5) -
At 31 December 2021 R2021F12A318 3,608 105,636 22,000 11,000 64,435 206,679
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
MERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE 2021F 12 A31H LFE

2021 2020
20214 20204
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5% ARBT R ARBT T
Cash flows from operating RETHELNWEESRE
activities
Profit before income tax B P 15 0 AT A 1,613 9,644
Adjustments for: A
Interest income FEHA 8 (657) (627)
Loss on disposal of property, LEME BENM
plant and equipment HIEEE 8 28 93
Finance costs B%ER 9 3,894 3,932
Depreciation of property, ME BERREOTE
plant and equipment 10 10,350 8,441
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEE I E 10 2,318 2,099
(Reversal of)/provision for allowance ~ Efb W FIBEHEE
for expected credit loss on other EEEEN (BE) /
receivables (40) 1,468
Operating cash flows before EELESEHA
movements in working capital KEREHRE 17,506 25,050
Decrease/(increase) in trade and 25 L EHmENIE
other receivables, deposits and me REMTERD,(EMN)
prepayments 2,539 (2,955)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and B REMENTKIER
other payables and accruals fEEEB R ORd) /o (3,219) 3,488
(Decrease)/increase in contract BHEBEORD) /N
liabilities (4,348) 2,302
Cash generated from operations K& FBRE 12,478 27,885
Income tax paid EREH (3,488) (9,817)
Net cash generated from RETBFMBRELFER
operating activities 8,990 18,068
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For the year ended 31 December 2021

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

IVT

SEEREXR(E)
HZE 202112 A31BIEFE

2021 2020
20214 20204
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’'000
B 5 ARETR ARETT
Cash flows from investing RETHMBEESTEE
activities
Purchase of property, BEEWE BELEE
plant and equipment (4,313) (20,646)
Repayment from/ BE/ (BHES)Z
(advance to) a director 2,283 (2,283)
Interest received B U F 8 657 627
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE  ME MR ETEZE
plant and equipment 188 91
Net cash used in investing activities REZEFTABE € FH (1,185) (22,211)
Cash flows from financing METHMBRAERE
activities
New borrowings raised MESER 41,750 27,800
Repayment of borrowings BEER (36,800) (41,150)
Interest paid on borrowings ERHERFE (3,655) (3,645)
Repayment of lease liabilities EEHERE X2
- principal (1,207) (1,806)
Repayment of lease liabilities EEHEEE-FE
- interest (239) (287)
Net cash used in financing METHMARETE
activities (151) (19,088)
Net increase/(decrease) incash BE&RBEELZEEY
and cash equivalents ®m/ (Rd) B8 7,654 (23,231)
Cash and cash equivalents FHRERREEEY
at the beginning of the year 167,588 190,819
Cash and cash equivalents FRESRBREEEY
at the end of the year 175,242 167,588
MAERIERERAR o« —T = —FFf 145
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e IR R R Mt

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE 2021F 12 A31H LFE

GENERAL

China Oriented International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated as an exempted company
with limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 22 February
2017 under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.
The address of the registered office and the principal
place of business of the Company is set out in the section
headed “Corporate Information” of the annual report
issued by the Company.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
Company’s immediate and ultimate holding company is
Alpha Leap Holdings Limited, which is incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”) and is wholly-owned by
Mr. Qi Xiangzhong (“Mr. Qi").

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note
30. The Company and its subsidiaries are collectively
referred to as the “Group”.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”), which is the currency of the primary
economic environment of all the group entities operate
(the functional currency of the group entities).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RERBERNE (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE 2021612 A31H LEFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
These consolidated financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis. Historical cost is
generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for goods and services.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
me MR RME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE 2021512 A31HEFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HKFRSs

(@) Application of amendments to HKFRSs
effective from 1 January 2021

In the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2021,
the Group has applied the following amendments
to HKFRSs, for the first time, which are mandatorily
effective for the annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2021:

Amendment to Covid-19-Related Rent
HKFRS 16 Concessions
Amendments to HKFRS Interest Rate
9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, Benchmark Reform

HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16 Phase 2

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in
the current year has had no material impact on the
Group’s financial positions and performance for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set
out in these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ReMEERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE 2021612 A31H LEFE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. HAHI R E B

HKFRSs (continued) B EEA (&)
(b) New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but (b) EHEMGEREKERZHITEER
not yet effective BRBREEAREBUHBERE
B 2 &5 &
The Group has not early applied the following new REEWERERFERAIUTESE
and amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued MEMRER BB WS
but are not yet effective: e R R BB W RS 2R
ZAEFTAR o

Effective for
annual reporting
periods beginning

on or after
RUATA#S 2%
HRNFEREEE
Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
Beyond 30 June 2021 1 April 2021
ERMBRSENFE6% (BTX) 2019w E R < HEE 2202146308 2 202154418
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 1 January 2022
BETERSBREED 018FE00FFEABREEAN 2 FREAE 2022%1R1H
Amendment to AG 5 Accounting Guideline 5 Merger Accounting for Common Control
‘ \ (Gombinations (Revised) / o ‘ 1 January 2022
EREEEITACHEY) @I EOR [ RAZHG A eHEE] (BET) 202051 A18
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework 1 January 2022
BERBREEREIR (BTX) BatER Rt 202291718
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment - Proceeds before Intended Use 1 January 2022
BB e RAFE16% (BTX) n% BERZE-HERRANOFENE 20221 R1H
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Gontracts - Cost of Fulfiling a Contract 1 January 2022
BAGHEREITH (BT F) BEMAN-BIE0IKE 20221 R18
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current and related
amendments to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020) 1 January 2023
BAGENEIR (BT BEABBRBAERD RY ‘
BB RBESH (2020F) HREBIT 2023F1A1H
Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Disclosure of Accounting Policies
Practice Statement 2 1 January 2023
BEEHEAZIR R AR HRE 2 REGHIE
ESLEVEACHES) 2023F1A1H
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates 1 January 2023
BihE S EETACHEN QR 2023F1A18
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
. \ Transaction 1 January 2023
BAGHERE12% (B F) RE-QFEANEEREBRRNELHE 2023F1A18
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and the Related Amendments 1 January 2023
ERMBRSEFITH R AN RERET 20231718
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate
and HKAS 28 or Joint Venture To be determined
BENBRS NS08 REZERBANARAENELH \
eERR R ACHES) WEELEIRA BE
The directors of the Company are in the progress of AKABIEFRIEF KB
assessing the impact to the Group’s consolidated NAAEE] B 78 B 7% a5 ZE Bl ¥
financial performance and position by adopting the KREBLGZE M BRI R BER
new and amendments to HKFRSs. ME L -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FERMBHRRME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HZE 202112 A31HIEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

Basis of consolidation

These consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2021.
A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the
investee (l.e., existing rights that give the Group the
current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less
than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:—

° the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

° rights arising from other contractual
arrangements; and

e  The Group’s voting rights and potential voting
rights.

The financial statements of subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company,
using consistent accounting policies. The results
of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(a)

(b)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration received and the fair value of
any investment retained and (ii) the previous carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling
interests. The Group’s share of components
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income is reclassified to the consolidated profit or
loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same
basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment (other than
construction in progress) are stated at cost, less
provisions for depreciation and impairment losses, if
any.

The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use.
Expenditure incurred after the item has been put
into operation, such as repairs and maintenance
and overhaul costs, is normally charged to the
consolidated profit or loss in the year in which it
is incurred. In situations where it can be clearly
demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in an
increase in future economic benefits expected to be
obtained from the use of the item, the expenditure is
capitalised as an additional cost of the item. When
an item of property, plant and equipment is sold,
its cost and accumulated depreciation are removed
from the consolidated financial statements and any
gain or loss resulting from the disposal, being the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset, is included in the
consolidated profit or loss.

RENBHRRKE(E)
HZE 202112 A31BIEFE

4. ERETHE (&)
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(b)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

mEMBRRME (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE 2021512 A31HEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(b) Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Depreciation is provided on the straight-line method,
based on the estimated economic useful life of the
individual assets, as follows:—

Buildings Over the shorter of lease term
or 5% per annum

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of lease term
or 5% to 20% per annum

Equipment 20% per annum

Furniture and fixtures 20% per annum

Office equipment 20% to 33.33% per annum
Motor vehicles 12.5% per annum

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of
that item is allocated on a reasonable basis among
the parts and each part is depreciated separately.
Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment
including any significant part initially recognised
is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in the consolidated profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building
under construction, which is stated at cost less
any impairment losses, and is not depreciated.
Cost comprises the direct costs of construction
and capitalised borrowing costs on related
borrowed funds during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RERBERNE (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE 2021612 A31H LEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(c)

Intangible assets

Software acquired separately and with finite
useful live are carried at costs less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses,
if any. Amortisation for intangible assets with finite
useful lives is provided on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method for an intangible asset
with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each
financial year end.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset are measured at the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and are recognised in the
consolidated income statement when the asset is
derecognised.

The Group’s intangible assets have finite useful lives.
All intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line
basis over the estimated useful lives of five years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
me MR RME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HZE 202112 A31HIEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(d)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than financial assets), the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the value in use of the asset
or cash-generating unit to which it belongs and its
fair value less costs to sell, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which
case the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is
charged to the consolidated profit or loss in the
period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is any indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may
no longer exist or may have decreased. If such
indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset is reversed only if there has been
a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an
amount higher than the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of any depreciation), had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of such impairment loss
is credited to the consolidated profit or loss in the
period in which it arises
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(e)

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets are initially measured at fair value
except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in
accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets are added to the fair value of the
financial assets, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in the
consolidated profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade date, that is,
the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the market
place.

Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to collect contractual
cash flows; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

mEMBRRME (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE 2021512 A31HEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(e)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement
(continued)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

o the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling;
and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), except
that at the date of initial application/initial recognition
of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably elect
to present subsequent changes in fair value of an
equity investment in other comprehensive income
if that equity investment is neither held for trading
nor contingent consideration recognised by an
acquirer in a business combination to which HKFRS
3 (Revised) Business Combinations applies.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose
of selling in the near term; or

e on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RERBERNE (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE 2021612 A31H LEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(e)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement
(continued)

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that are required to be measured at
the amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL
if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch.

Financial assets at amortised cost

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. For financial
instruments other than purchased or originated
credit impaired financial assets, interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to
the gross carrying amount of a financial asset. For
financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the amortised
cost of the financial asset from the next reporting
period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the financial
asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest rate
to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
from the beginning of the reporting period following
the determination that the asset is no longer credit
impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
me MR RME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HZE 202112 A31HIEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(e)

Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected
credit loss (“ECL”) on financial assets which are
subject to impairment under HKFRS 9 (including
trade receivables and other receivables, deposits,
amount due from a director of the Company and
bank balances). The amount of ECL is updated at
each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk
since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of
the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
(“12m ECL”) represents the portion of lifetime ECL
that is expected to result from default events that
are possible within 12 months after the reporting
date. Assessment are done based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current
conditions at the reporting date as well as the
forecast of future conditions.

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies
the practical expedient of not adjusting the effect
of a significant financing component, and contract
assets, the Group applies the simplified approach
in calculating ECL. Under the simplified approach,
the Group does not track changes in credit risk,
but instead recognises a loss allowance based on
lifetime ECL at each reporting date. The Group has
applied loss rates which are reference to the default
rates from international crediting rating agencies,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RERBERNE (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE 2021612 A31H LEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(e)

Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For all other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL.
The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be
recognised is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at
the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as
at the date of initial recognition. In making
this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk
has increased significantly:

° an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instrument’s
external (if available) or internal credit
rating;

e  significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the debtor;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
me MR RME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HZE 202112 A31HIEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(e) Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations;

an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of the
debtor; or

an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease
in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the
credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition when contractual payments
are more than 30 days past due, unless
the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(e) Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(1)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk
and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount
becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor
is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full (without taking into account any
collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group
considers that default has occurred when
a financial asset is more than 90 days past
due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate
that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
me MR RME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HZE 202112 A31HIEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(e) Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that financial
asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial
asset is credit-impaired includes observable
data about the following events:

significant financial difficulty of the issuer
or the borrower;

a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic
or contractual reasons relating to the
borrower’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s)
that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

the disappearance of an active market for
that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(e) Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(iv)  Write-off policy

(v)

The Group writes off a financial asset when
there is information indicating that the
counterparty is in severe financial difficulty and
there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g.
when the counterparty has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables,
when the amounts are over two years past
due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets
written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. Any recoveries made are
recognised in the consolidated profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of
the probability of default and loss given default
is based on historical data and adjusted by
forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL
reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted
amount that is determined with the respective
risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition.

Interest income is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset
unless the financial asset is credit-impaired, in
which case interest income is calculated based
on amortised cost of the financial asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
me MR RME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HZE 202112 A31HIEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(f)

(9)

(h)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from
the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position) when the rights to receive cash flows from
the asset have expired.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the assets
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in the
consolidated profit or loss.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of
tax from the proceeds.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are recognised when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.

Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of financial liabilities (other
than financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value
of the financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
the consolidated profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

REMBRRME (E)
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE 2021612 A31H LEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. E X2 HE (&)
(continued)
(h) Financial liabilities (continued) (h)

THEE (&)

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net
of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade
payables and other payables and accruals, lease
liabilities and borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation
is included in finance costs in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities
when, and only when, the Group’s obligations
are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in the consolidated
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
me MR RME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HZE 202112 A31HIEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(i)

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or
after the date of initial application or arising from
business combinations, the Group assesses whether
a contract is or contains a lease based on the
definition under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification
date or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such
contract will not be reassessed unless the terms
and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed.

The Group as lessee
Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to a lease of leasehold land or property
that has a lease term of 12 months or less from
the commencement date and does not contain a
purchase option. Lease payments on short-term
leases are recognised as expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(i)

Leases (continued)
The Group as lessee (continued)
Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the
present value of lease payments that are unpaid
at that date. In calculating the present value of
lease payments, the Group uses the incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement date if
the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

The lease payments include:

° fixed lease payments (including in-substance
fixed payments), less any lease incentives
receivable;

° variable lease payments that depend on an
index or rate, initially measured using the index
or rate at the commencement date;

° the amount expected to be payable by the
Group under residual value guarantees;

° the exercise price of purchase options, if the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise the
options; and

° payments of penalties for terminating the lease,
if the lease term reflects the Group exercising
an option to terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are

adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.

The lease liability is presented as a separate line in
the consolidated statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FERMBHRRME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE 2021512 A31HEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(i)

Leases (continued)

The Group as lessee (continued)
Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the
lease liability;

° any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received,;

° any initial direct costs incurred by the Group;
and

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the
Group in dismantling and removing the
underlying assets, restoring the site on which
it is located or restoring the underlying asset
to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful
life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated
on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its
estimated useful life and the lease term.

When the Group obtains ownership of the underlying
leased assets at the end of the lease term, upon
exercising purchase options, the cost of the relevant
right-of-use assets and the related accumulated
depreciation and impairment loss are transferred to
property, plant and equipment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(i)

1)

Leases (continued)
The Group as lessee (continued)
Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a
separate lease if:

° the modification increases the scope of the
lease by adding the right to use one or more
underlying assets; and

o the consideration for the leases increases by
an amount commensurate with the stand-
alone price for the increase in scope and
any appropriate adjustments to that stand-
alone price to reflect the circumstances of the
particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as
a separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease
liability based on the lease term of the modified lease
by discounting the revised lease payments using
a revised discount rate at the effective date of the
modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to
the relevant right-of-use asset. When the modified
contract contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components,
the Group allocates the consideration in the
modified contract to each lease component on the
basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease
component and the aggregate stand-alone price of
the non-lease components.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise bank balances
and cash and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
me MR RME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HZE 202112 A31HIEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(k)

U]

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a
past event and it is probable that a future outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (where the effect of
the time value of money is material).

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in currencies
other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates
of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in the consolidated profit or
loss in the period in which they arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ReMEERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE 2021612 A31H LEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. E AR BX (&)
(continued)
(m) Revenue from contracts with customers

(m) EFEHWRE

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when control
of the services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to customers.

A performance obligation represents a service (or
a bundle of services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria
is met:

° the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the entity’s
performance as the entity performs;

e the Group’s performance creates or enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the
Group performs; or

e the Group’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and
the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point of time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct
good or service.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FERMBHRRME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(m) Revenue from contracts with customers

HZE 202112 A31HIEFE

(continued)

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer services to a customer for which the
Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

Contracts with multiple performance
obligations (including allocation of transaction
price)

For contracts that contain more than one
performance obligations, the Group allocates the
transaction price to each performance obligation on
a relative stand-alone selling price basis.

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct
service underlying each performance obligation is
determined at contract inception. It represents the
price at which the Group would sell a promised
service separately to a customer. If stand-alone
selling price is not directly observable, the Group
estimates it using appropriate techniques such
that the transaction price ultimately allocated to
any performance obligation reflects the amount of
consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring the promised
services to the customer.

Over time revenue recognition: measurement
of progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation is measured based on output
method, which is to recognise revenue on the basis
of direct measurements of the value of the services
transferred to the customer to date relative to the
remaining services promised under the contract, that
best depict the Group’s performance in transferring
control of services.

As a practical expedient, if the Group has a right
to consideration in an amount that corresponds
directly with the value of the Group’s performance
completed to date, driving training service contracts
in which the Group bills a fixed amount of service
provided, the Group recognises revenue in the
amount to which the Group has the right to invoice.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ReMEERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE 2021612 A31H LEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. E AR BX (&)
(continued)
(m) Revenue from contracts with customers

(m) EFEHAWE (FE)

(continued)
Variable consideration

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group provides contracts that contain variable
consideration (mainly represents driving training
service income of premium course with uncapped
training hours, as explained below), the Group
estimates the amount of consideration to which it will
be entitled using either (i) the expected value method
or (ii) the most likely amount, depending on which
method better predicts the amount of consideration
to which the Group will be entitled.

The estimated amount of variable consideration is
included in the transaction price only to the extent
that it is highly probable that such an inclusion will
not result in a significant revenue reversal in the
future when the uncertainty associated with the
variable consideration is subsequently revolved.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
updates the estimated transaction price (including
updating the assessment of whether an estimate of
variable consideration is constrained) to represent
faithfully the circumstances present at the end of the
reporting period and the changes in circumstances
during the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FERMBHRRME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

HZE 202112 A31HIEFE

(m) Revenue from contracts with customers

(continued)

Specifically, revenue is recognised in the
consolidated profit or loss as follows:

For driving training service income of standard
course, premium course with capped training hours
and additional training fees for which the control
of services is transferred over time, the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the performance
obligation is measured based on the direct
measurements of training hours provided by the
Group to the customer relative to the total training
hours promised under the contract.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, for certain
driving training service income of premium course
with uncapped training hours for which the control of
services is transferred over time, the progress towards
complete satisfaction of the performance obligation is
measured based on the direct measurements of actual
training hours over the expected total training hours
to be provided using the expected value method. The
variable consideration in relation to the unit course fee
per training hour is dependent on the number of total
expected training hours to be provided. During the year
ended 31 December 2021, all courses offered by the
Group were with capped number of training hours.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ReMEERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE 2021612 A31H LEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. E AR BX (&)
(continued)
(m) Revenue from contracts with customers

(m) EFEHWE (B

(continued)

Payments are typically received from customers
in advance of revenue recognition and they are
presented as contract liabilities under current
liabilities. Customers may not exercise all the
contractual rights of the prepaid driving course upon
expiry of the service period, and such unutilised
portion are referred to as breakage. If an entity
expects to be entitled to the breakage amount in
a contract liability, the entity shall recognise the
expected breakage amount as revenue in proportion
to the pattern of rights exercised by the customer.
If an entity does not expect to be entitled to a
breakage amount, the entity shall recognise the
expected breakage amount as revenue when the
likelihood of the customer exercising its remaining
rights becomes remote. The Group considered the
breakage arising from the prepaid driving course is
insignificant, and the unutilised portion of the prepaid
driving course is recognised in the consolidated
profit or loss upon expiry of the service period.

A refund liability is recognised if the entity expects
to refund some or all of that consideration to the
customers, which is measured at the amount of
consideration received for which the entity does not
expect to be entitled.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FERMBHRRME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HZE 202112 A31HIEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(n)

Income tax

Income tax represents the sum of current and
deferred tax. Income tax relating to items recognised
outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit
or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the amount expected to be recovered from or paid
to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking
into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method,
on all temporary differences at the end of the
reporting period between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:—

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RERBERNE (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE 2021612 A31H LEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(n)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit
or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow
all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
the end of each reporting period and are recognised
to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at
the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled,
based on the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

4. ERETHE (&)

(n) FrE®H (&)

AEFERL IR E B T i P B Al R
ERERE - ARTH R ARE AN
TRK S S AR A = R B R Y B IR
BRTAER - HBERE AR

A TR EREERTEE
REAHBER RS RE AR
BE - RPERERIBREET) T A
FERR - HET B ILERSN -

o (WEARA THREEML
ZERELNIAE ER ]
FHRERIL XA HAR
ZNBESREMESL
AR ZEHEF RN
ERVIESETE &

o BMAMRWEBARNKE
B AT T R T RS 1 = R
FRARHEERUEERA
Al REfE Al B SR AR - M
BRERAABEHRERK
wA AR AENZEE
FHEEZER > H ek
FERIRE E

BEERBEENRAEES 2
R TIAER - E T BABE
B RAERV G N BB 2
B HEEERIBEE
AIFIRGEE R IR B EREE -
fiel BJ BE 78 /& 50 FE ER A 4k A A DA
A0 2 BP AR Bk 3 B R AT
MEEE ESZHRHAKRE
bl M AERR T HER RYIE T
MIAEE e

EERIBTIRBR 2HRARD
BHEHBEECEMHOHE (K
BOE) RBIEHE N ERE
EFFERENHEERNHR
RAFHrEMET S -

ARERZERERARE o —FT— —FFH

177



178

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
me MR RME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HZE 202112 A31HIEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(n)

(o)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its
current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions
are attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group
applies HKAS 12 “Income Taxes” requirements
to the leasing transaction as a whole. Temporary
differences relating to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities are assessed on a net basis. Excess of
depreciation on right-of-use assets over the lease
payments for the principal portion of lease liabilities
resulting in net deductible temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when
they relate to income taxes levied to the same
taxable entity by the same taxation authority.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those
assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Any specific borrowing that remain outstanding
after the related asset is ready for its intended use
or sale is included in the general borrowing pool
for calculation of capitalisation rate on general
borrowings.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the
consolidated profit or loss in the year in which they
are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(p)

(q)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there
is reasonable assurance that the Group will comply
with the conditions attaching to them and that the
grants will be received.

Government grants related to income that are
receivable as compensation for expenses or
losses already incurred or for the purpose of
giving immediate financial support to the Group
with no future related costs are recognised in the
consolidated profit or loss in the period in which
they become receivable. Such grants are presented
under other income and losses, net.

Other employee benefits
Defined contribution plans

The employees of the subsidiaries within the Group
which operate in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”) are required to participate in the central
defined contribution pension scheme operated
by the local municipal government. These PRC
subsidiaries are required to contribute a percentage
of their payroll costs to the central pension scheme
as specified by the local municipal government.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
me MR RME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HZE 202112 A31HIEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(g) Other employee benefits (continued)

(r)

Employee leave entitlement

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. An
accrual is made for the estimated liability for annual
leave as a result of services rendered by employees
up to the end of the reporting period.

Employee long service payment

The provision for long service payment is provided
based on the employees’ basic salaries and their
respective length of service in accordance with the
applicable rules and regulations in their respective
countries of employment.

Related parties

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

()  has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or the Company’s
parent.

OR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

&
I

For the year ended 31 December 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
(r) Related parties (continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply:

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(vil)

(vili)

the entity and the Group are members of
the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member);

the entities and the Group are joint
ventures of the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of the employees
either the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the Company’s parent.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
me MR RME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HZE 202112 A31HIEFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(r)

(s)

Related parties (continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with
the entity and include:

(@) that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(b) children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

(c) dependents of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statement,
are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the executive directors of the Company
for the purpose of allocating resources to and
assessing the performance of, the Group’s various
lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and
the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RERBERNE (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE 2021612 A31H LEFE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in Note 4, the directors of
the Company are required to make estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the year in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that year, or in the year of
the revision and future years if the revision affects both
current and future years.

The following is the key assumption concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period, that may have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next twelve months.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
me MR RME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE 2021512 A31HEFE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Estimated useful lives and impairment of property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets

Estimated useful lives

The property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the
assets, generally from 3 to 20 years or over the shorter of
the lease terms (2020: 3 to 20 years or over the shorter of
the lease terms).

The leasehold lands and building recognised as
right-of-use assets are depreciated on straight-line
basis over the lease terms (2020: over the lease terms),
whereas the motor vehicles recognised as right-of-use
assets that the Group expects to exercise purchase
options with minimal exercise price and the related assets
are depreciated over their useful lives (i.e. 8 years (2020:
8 years)).

The estimated useful lives that the Group depreciates the
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
reflect the directors’ estimate of the periods that the
Group intends to derive future economic benefits from
the use of the assets. Actual economic lives may differ
from estimated useful lives. Periodic review could result
in a change in useful lives and therefore depreciation and
impairment losses in future years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RERBERNE (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE 2021612 A31H LEFE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Estimated useful lives and impairment of property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
(continued)

Impairment

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
are stated at costs less accumulated depreciation and
impairment, if any. In determining whether an asset is
impaired, the Group has to exercise judgment and make
estimation, particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event
has occurred or any indicators that may affect the asset
value; (2) whether the carrying value of an asset can be
supported by the recoverable amount, in the case of
value in use, the net present value of future cash flows
which are estimated based upon the continued use of
the asset; and (3) the appropriate key assumptions to be
applied in estimating the recoverable amounts including
cash flow projections and an appropriate discount rate.
When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset (including right-of-use
assets), the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the assets belong.
Changing the assumptions and estimates, including
the discount rates or the growth rate in the cash flow
projections, could materially affect the net present value
used in the impairment test.

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets are
approximately RMB82,113,000 (2020: RMB87,955,000)
(Note 15) and approximately RMB46,644,000 (2020:
RMB48,962,000) (Note 16) respectively.

Estimate of current tax and deferred tax

Significant judgement and estimates is required in
determining the amount of the provision for taxation and
the timing of payment of the related taxation. Where the
final tax outcome is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the income
tax provisions and deferred tax provisions in the periods in
which such determination are made.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
me MR RME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE 2021512 A31HEFE

6. REVENUE

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents
the income from provision for driving training services and
recognised over time. Revenue recognised during the
year are as follows:

&

Yot - TRBIAS B E K5 512
HERIEIIRABE LM WA - WhE
R - MERBEROWRT

2021 2020
2021E 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T ARETTT

Driving training service income EREAIIRB A
Standard course RERRE
Premium course SRR
Additional training fees BEIMNEIIE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION
The Group is principally engaged in provision of driving
training services. For the purposes of assessing
performance and allocating resources, the Group’s
operation is regarded as one reportable and operating
segment which is provision of driving training services.
The executive directors of the Company review the (loss)/
profit for the year of the Group as a whole. Accordingly,
no segmental analysis is presented.

Geographical information

No geographical segment information is presented as the
Group’s revenue is all derived from the PRC based on
the location of services provided and all of the Group’s
non-current assets are located in the PRC by physical
location of assets.

Information about major customers

The Group offers packaged driving courses for
preparation for driving tests to large number of individual
customers. No individual customer accounted for over
10% of the Group’s total revenue during both years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ReMEERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE 2021612 A31H LEFE

8. OTHER INCOME AND LOSSES, NET 8. Htk AREE (F5H)

2021 2020

20214 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET R AREET T

Government grants (Note) BB (M 3E) - 5,647
Income from issuance of certificate of BRERREBZENS

qualification validation WA 1,270 -

Interest income ) B A 657 627

Value-added tax refund BERERR 606 -

Income on expiry of driving courses BRREZINHAFRA 252 521
Loss on disposal of property, plantand ~ HEW% - HE k&G

equipment &1 (28) (93)

Exchange loss, net BE 5 B8 (OF8) (196) (416)

Others Hitb 34 7

2,595 6,193

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group received e - HZE2020F12831BILFE -

government grants amounting to RMB5,000,000 from the PRC
government for successful listing on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. There were no unfulfilled conditions or other
contingencies attached to these subsidies.

REE G RN EE X PrER L
1 & 15 o B BT 4R S BT
B) A R #5,000,0007T ° % %
B 458 48 O 5 R 28600 2 0 R 1 =X

Hfbhsk B EIE -
9. FINANCE COSTS 9. MKHEHM

2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR T ARET T
Interest on bank loans RITEROF S 3,655 3,645
Interest on lease liabilities (Note 16) MEBBRFE (FE16) 239 287
3,894 3,932
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ma

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BB RME (E)

HZE 202112 A31HIEFE

10. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 10. BR FiT 18 %1 Al zs F
Profit before income tax has been arrived at after EHI LA N R TEZER AR TS EL AT
charging: ot Al
2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AREBTT
Directors’ remuneration (Note 12) (Note a) = £ & Bl (Fifz£12) (FifsFa) 1,514 1,379
Other staff costs (Note a) HA B TACA (Miita)
— Salaries and other allowances —Fe RHEAMER 21,399 20,445
- Retirement benefit scheme —RIRBEFEEMER
contributions (Note c) (Bt3Ee) 1,718 719
24,631 22,543
Auditor’s remuneration ZE DB 2 750 1,347
Depreciation of: (Note b) ITIEE/WIE : (Msb)
- Property, plant and equipment o/ ERN &
(Note 15) (FiF3E15) 10,350 8,441
- Right-of-use assets (Note 16) —FREEE (MiE16) 2,318 2,099

Donations B 270 388

Notes: B aE -

(a) Total directors’ remuneration and other staff costs of (a) HZE2021F12A31HIEFE - 2#E
approximately RMB18,027,000 (2020: RMB17,172,000), RERBERA - HEREHERAUR
RMB1,483,000 (2020: RMB1,292,000) and RMB5,121,000 THREANMGKMNESTFMRAEMET
(2020: RMB4,079,000) has been charged to cost of services PR AN 4288 95 R 40 & A R #18,027,000
rendered, selling and marketing expenses and administrative 7 (20204 :« AR #17,172,0007T) *
expenses, respectively for the year ended 31 December 2021. A R ¥51,483,0007T (20204 : AR

1,292,0007T) & A R #5,121,0007T
(20204 : AR#¥4,079,0007L) °

(b)  Total depreciation of approximately RMB10,950,000 (2020: (b) B ZE2021F12A31BILFE 2%
RMB9,297,000), RMB29,000 (2020: RMB27,000) and ERERBAA BERLHER
RMB1,689,000 (2020: RMB1,216,000) has been charged to ARITHRERINKRHBITE D RIL
cost of services rendered, selling and marketing expenses and A A R #10,950,0007T (20204 : A
administrative expenses, respectively for the year ended 31 R #9,297,0007T) + A R #29,000
December 2021, 7T (20204 : A R #27,00070) & A

R #1,689,0007T (20204 : AR
1,216,0007C) °
() Pursuant to an announcement issued by the Ministry of Human () WEFEANERMESREDEMS

Resources and Social Security of the PRC, in the light of
COVID-19 pandemic, certain Group entities were exempted
from making employer contribution to pension, unemployment,
and work-related injury insurance schemes between February to
December 2020.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had no forfeited
contributions available to reduce its contributions to the retirement
benefit schemes in future years (2020: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RERBERNE (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE 2021612 A31H LEFE

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 11. TEHEHR

2021 2020
202145 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ TR ARBETF T

The PRC Enterprise Income Tax (‘EIT”)  FBIMEMEH ([EEMAEH])
- Current year —REE 3,007 4,467
— Over-provision in prior years - BEFEBREREE (2,620) @)
387 4,465
Deferred tax (Note 24) B IE (M 5E24) 4,676 (1,646)
5,063 2,819

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on
profits arising in or derived from the jurisdiction in which
members of the Group are domiciled and operated.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and the BVI, the Group is not subject to any
income tax under these jurisdictions during the year
ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been
recognised in the consolidated financial statements
during the year ended 31 December 2021 as the Group
does not have income which arises in, or derived from,
Hong Kong (2020: Nil).

The PRC EIT has been provided at the rate of 25% (2020:
25%) on the taxable profits of the Group’s subsidiaries in
the PRC during the year ended 31 December 2021.

AEBEAZEREENELEBXNR
BARKE 8 QR EM R EEME
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

mEMBRRME (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE 2021512 A31HEFE

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled
to the profit before income tax per the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as follows:

M. BB (&)
FEAMGHERRGA AN
2 T U 3 R 0 4R T 49 T A U 4 BR
m

2021 2020

20215 2020%F

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR¥ETR ARETT

Profit before income tax BR P45 150 B ) A 1,613 9,644
Tax at the domestic tax rate at 25% 7B AT E25% (20204 :

(2020: 25%) 25%) st BRI TIE 403 2,411
Tax effect of expenses not deductible PAIMBAORETE

for tax purpose 1,878 1,650
Tax effect of income not taxable AAHBRBAN R B E

for tax purpose - (1,207)

Over-provision in prior years BAFEHERE (2,620) )

Under-provision of deferred tax liabilites  ELERBE BEEET 5,402 (33)

5,063 2,819

Under the Law of the PRC on EIT, withholding tax is
imposed on dividends declared in respect of profits
earned by the PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008
onwards. Deferred tax has not been provided for in
the consolidated financial statements in respect of
temporary differences attributable to retained earnings
of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to approximately
RMB114,047,000 as at 31 December 2021 (2020:
RMB109,990,000), as the Group is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and
it is probable that the temporary differences will not be
reversed in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RERBERNE (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE 2021612 A31H LEFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S 12. EERESTTHAEM 2

EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST
PAID EMPLOYEES
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

Details of the emoluments paid or payable to the
individuals as the directors and the chief executive of
the Company during the year are as follows:

REidacMERE

(a) ESERBEETHRAEME
FA - ENSHEMNEEARA
EENESTBRAENERA

THBESFEBOT ¢
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT R ARETTT

Directors’ fee EE Xk

Salaries and other allowances ek EMmER

Retirement benefit scheme RINEFIF B
contributions

960 960
519 401
35 18
1,514 1,379

MHAEERZERERAR o ZTZ —FFRH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR RME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S 12. EEREETHAER

HZE 202112 A31HIEFE

EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST
PAID EMPLOYEES (continued)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

(a)

(continued)

REid&EEMERE

i} E

=
(%)

(a) ESERBESTBRAEME ()

Year ended 31 December 2021

HZ2021F12A31B LEE
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other scheme
Directors fee allowances  contributions Total
&R BHREF
EEHd HibRB HE L3 oy
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R AR%BTR AR%BTR ARETR
Executive directors H1E%F
Mr. Qi (Note i o 4 A (M3 240 331 30 601
Ms. Zhao Yuxia BIERT 240 188 5 433
Non-executive director FHTESR
Dr. Yeung Cheuk Kwong BEXEL 120 - - 120
600 519 35 1,154
Independent non-executive BV FHTEE
directors
Mr. Chan Siu Wah BNESE 120 - - 120
Mr. Cheng Chun Shing HEFLE 120 - - 120
Mr. Goh Teng Hwee REREE 120 - - 120
360 - - 360
Total wst 960 519 35 1,514
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ReMEERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &% 2021412 A31HIEFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S 12. EEREESTHRAEM S
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST &E%E%‘wﬂﬁﬁé(%)

PAID EMPLOYEES (continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) EERBETHRAEMS (&)
(continued)

Year ended 31 December 2020

BE2020F12A31BILERE
Salaries Retirement
and other  benefit scheme
Directors fee allowances contributions Total
ek BHREH
B2k A2 T EIf @it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT

Executive directors WiTES
Mr. Qi (Note i T A (&) 240 291 13 544
Ms. Zhao Yuxia BIENT 240 110 5 355
Non-executive director FHTES
Dr. Yeung Cheuk Kwong BEXEL 120 - - 120
600 401 18 1,019
Independent non-executive ~ BUFHTES
directors
Mr. Chan Siu Wah BN 120 - - 120
Mr. Cheng Chun Shing BEFLE 120 - - 120
Mr. Goh Teng Hwee REREE 120 - - 120
360 - - 360
Total st 960 401 18 1,379
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR RME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE 2021512 A31HEFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST
PAID EMPLOYEES (continued)

(@) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(continued)

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above
were for their services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company and
the Group while the non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors emoluments
shown above were for their services as directors of
the Company.

Note:
Mr. Qi is the chief executive of the Company. The emoluments

shown above is also for his service as chief executive of the
Group.

China Oriented International Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2021

1R.EERESTBRAEMS
RaiEBEeEMEEE (&)

(a)

EERBEITHRAEME (H)

EXFRRERATEEME R
REEEARARBRAKEER
BRANREME - EXPR
BIERTERE NBYIFRITE
ENMESRAREETARRT]
EEMRGME -

GEE

TRERBARBMITHMAE o X7
REB 2 TR B REEAREETRAH
ARG M2 -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST
PAID EMPLOYEES (continued)

(b) Five highest paid employees
The five highest paid individuals included two (2020:
two) directors of the Company whose emoluments

are included in the disclosure in (a) above. The
remuneration of the remaining three (2020: three)

RENBHRRKE(E)
HZE 202112 A31BIEFE

1R.EERESTBRAEMS
RaiEBEeEMEEE (&)

b) EEBE=EHESES
AR AGEeME AR
FER A (2020 : B )ESE -
EMEE R EX@EE - %T
=% (20205 : =%&) ATHF

individuals was as follows: B
2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARET T
Salaries and other allowances e hHEmERM 954 1,035
Retirement benefit scheme RINEFIFT B
contributions 11 11
965 1,046
The number of individuals whose remuneration was FHEM T A TEEAERNA L
within the following band: HFEWAT
2021 2020
20214 20204
Nil to Hong Kong Dollar Z %1,000,000/% 7T
(“HK$")1,000,000 (I#xl) 3 3

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to any of the directors of the Company or the
five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office. None of directors or the five highest
paid individuals of the Company has waived any
emoluments during both years.

R EFERE  AEEGE
AERAAREFR AR
FMALNEMME  ER
NN ST IANZN S 1FE 320
BRI ERBRBME - XMmE
FEHBE BEARAEZL
hAZRSHMA L HETMH
B -

MHAEERZERERAR o ZTZ —FFRH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
me MR RME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE 2021512 A31HEFE

13.

14.

DIVIDENDS 13. R E

No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary REZE2021F12831HIEFERNIL
shareholders of the Company during the year ended 31 EELSERRN TFARAE B
December 2021, nor has any dividend been proposed AR 7R 2 - B 3E R AR Jr
since the end of the reporting period (2020: Nil). EEOR{EM AR B (20204 : ) o
(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 14. 2R (EE) BF

The calculation of the basic (loss)/earnings per share RKANREAANEMLSETRER
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the (E518) /BRI THiRE T 5 8URsT & -

following data:

2021 2020
20215 2020F
(Loss)/profit (| BR
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to the R T EBIREX (BE),/
owners of the Company for the purpose ~ Z F|H) AN B A A JE(S
of basic (loss)/earnings per share (in FR(EE)&F
RMB’000) (AR®FTT) (3,450) 6,825
Number of shares R#7EE
Weighted average number of ordinary AR:TEERER(BR),/
shares for the purpose of basic (loss)/ AR H e F19 L mR
earnings per share # A 400,000,000 400,000,000
There were no potential ordinary shares in issue for the HZE2021F12A31ALFE W&
year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil). E] 2 #17EE T @R (20204 -

#®) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
REMBRRME (E)
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE 2021612 A31H LEFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. % - HENRRKRE

Leasehold Furniture and Office Motor ~ Construction
Buildings improvements  Equipment fixtures equipment vehicles in progress Total
BER
g% AE%E #EE BRkE HORE AE ERIE st

RVBOOO  RMBO00  RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RMB'00O
ARBTR  ARETR  ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR

CosT A&

At 1 January 2020 202051718 31,891 36,339 5512 535 918 18,429 2,696 96,320
Additions HE - 10,659 5,330 474 703 6,326 708 24,200
Disposals k3 - - - - - (628) - (628)
Reclassification EE B 844 2,560 - - - - (3,404 -
At 31 December 2020 and 120205128318 &

1 January 2021 2021F1A18 2.7% 19558 10,842 1,009 1,621 24,127 - 198
Addiions 5E 5 - 640 152 260 3620 - 4724
Disposals e - - - - - (778) - (778)
At 31 December 2021 R2021512A318 32,787 49,55 11,482 1,161 1881 26,969 - 123,838

ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ~ Z3t#iE

At 1 January 2020 Ro020%1 A18 3671 5025 4,106 488 673 9977 . 23940
Provided for the year (Note 10) ERER(IH0) 1615 3571 44 69 201 2571 - 8441
Disposals HE - - - - - (444) - (444)
At 31 December 2020 and 2020512 A31E R

1 January 2021 221E1A1R 5,286 859 4520 557 874 12,104 - 31937
Provided for the year (Note 10) FERE(MH0) 1,559 421 1232 99 292 2,891 - 10,350
Disposals e - - - - - (562) - (562)
At 31 December 2021 H2021512A318 6,845 12,873 5752 656 1,166 14,433 - 41725
CARRYING VALUES FEf
At 31 December 2021 20215128318 25942 36,685 5730 505 715 12,536 - 82,113
At 31 December 2020 120205 12A31R 27 449 40962 6,322 452 747 12,003 - 87,956
As at 31 December 2021, the Group has pledged MR2021%F12A31H  "NE B
a building with carrying amount of approximately M—RBFTEFREEEHARE
RMB6,404,000 (2020: RMB6,839,000) to a bank to 6,404,0007C (2020%F : A R ¥
secured a borrowing (Note 23(a)(ii)). 6,839,0007T) WIEF - LAENE — I8

& 3 (Bt 5E23(a)(i) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
me MR RME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE 2021512 A31HEFE

16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 16. ERAREEE
Leasehold Motor
lands Building vehicles Total
HE L BF AE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR®BFTRT ARETT AR®T:x
(Note)
GES)
COST D%
At 1 January 2020 A2020F1 A 1H 44,990 126 3,428 48,544
Additions NE 510 - 4,031 4,541
At 31 December 2020, H2020F12H318 »
1 January 2021 and 31 021 F1A18 K
December 2021 20215128318 45,500 126 7,459 53,085
ACCUMULATED RiE
DEPRECIATION
At 1 January 2020 R2020F1 A1H 1,290 23 711 2,024
Charges for the year (Note 10) &R 3z (F#3E10) 1,335 22 742 2,099

At 31 December 2020 and 72020912 A31H

1 January 2021 K2021%F1 A1H 2,625 45 1,453 4123
Charges for the year (Note 10) &5 3%z (Fi#3£10) 1,355 23 940 2,318
At 31 December 2021 R2021F

12A31H 3,980 68 2,393 6,441
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2021 R2021F
12A31H 41,520 58 5,066 46,644
At 31 December 2020 20204
12A31H 42,875 81 6,006 48,962
Note: As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, all motor vehicles under MaE © B Z=20214F K2020F12A318 » At
hire-purchase arrangement with purchase options. The Group EAEYRMBBEEERENTER
is reasonably certain to exercise the purchase options and the ZHT AEBRERESTER
exercise price of purchase options, if any were included in lease BEERELEEERRNITEES -
liabilities. WMETEAGAHERE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RERBERNE (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE 2021612 A31H LEFE

16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

The analysis of expense items in relation to leases
recognised in the consolidated profit or loss is as follows:

16. fE HEEE (&)

HERNFAEEERANEERENE
REBE DT

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARETT
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREBEZTE
(as above) (Note 10) (R E£x) (MtEE10) 2,318 2,099
Interest on lease liabilities (Note 9) HEBEMHE (H:9) 239 287
Total amount recognised in REZEBRERNERE
consolidated profit or loss 2,557 2,386
Properties and assets leased for own use HEFERANYEREE

The Group leases a number of property, land parcels and
motor vehicles to operate its driving school. The leases
are typically made for fixed periods of five to thirteen years
(2020: five to thirteen years). Lease terms are negotiated
on an individual basis and contain various different terms
and conditions. The lease agreements do not impose any
covenants.

Ownership interests in leasehold land held for own
use

In addition, the Group owns several buildings and is the
registered owner of these property interests, including
the underlying leasehold lands. Upfront payments were
made to acquire these property interests, and there are
no ongoing payments to be made under the terms of
the land lease. The leasehold land components of these
owned properties are presented separately because the
payments made can be allocated reliably.

The lease liabilities of the Group are arising from the
right-of-use assets, except for the leasehold lands
in the PRC with carrying amount of approximately
RMB40,334,000 as at 31 December 2021 (2020:
RMB41,523,000) which the lease payments had been
fully prepaid upfront and have no corresponding lease
liabilities.

AEBHELETYE  wHRKAE
EEEEBR - BT B5E134%F
B & F AR (20204 : 5E134) »
FEKRZIUBAABERER 225
ERBRTREMIERMEHE - AEWHE
TR 255 -

REEEREEL PR EERE
=

SN - AR B A BE R T S %
EYxEz (BEAREELH) W
BREB A - EXNENKAKE
ZEMFEER BREARELI
HEGRFIELFENRK - AR 2
FIEREA EWOE  MZFEEY
ENHEL O BEBZT -

B E - MRR2021F12/A31H KM@
B4 A AR %40,334,0007T (2020
F: AR¥41,523,0007T) # R B
ELHRIN MEENREELE
HFIENBYEBEREGER -

AP ERZEERERAR o —T - —FFH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
me MR RME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE 2021512 A31HEFE

17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. B EE
System
software
A
RMB’'000
ARBTTT
COST [5:S
At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020, 7202051 A1H ~ 2020%F
1 January 2021 and 31 December 2021 12A31H ~ 2021F1A1B &
2021F12A31H 540
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION g §o
At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020, 720201 A1H » 20204
1 January 2021 and 31 December 2021 12H318  2021F1 1B &
2021F12A31H 540
CARRYING VALUE RREE
At 31 December 2020 and 2021 20204 K 2021F12A31H -
The above intangible assets have finite useful life. Such tiuimEEEEBERFEHSE
intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis Bl ZEB|MEESEN G AFERSE
over the estimated useful lives of five years. BARFAB G AR AR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RERBERNE (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE 2021612 A31H LEFE

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,
DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

1. EZ R HMEWRIE &

ERFEAFFE
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR TR ARETTT

Trade receivables B 5 W IE
Other receivables H b & W5k 8
Prepayments B HIE
Deposits Be

Less: Prepayment paid for property, & : DB AFRBEEN

plant and equipment classified ME - BERZE

as non-current assets BTN RIA
Deposits paid for construction DERRFERBEER

in progress classified as ERIRENES

non-current assets

Current portion BN ER &R 7

The Group’s payment methods with its customers for
provision of driving training service are mainly on cash and
through online payment platforms. Generally, the course
emolument fees are billed in advance with no credit period
granted to customers. The Group seeks to maintain strict
control over its outstanding receivables to minimise credit
risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. The Group does not hold any collateral
or other credit enhancements over its trade receivable
balances.

112 592
39 314
3,926 6,030
1,739 1,790
5,816 8,726
(1,080) (1,440)
(1,739) (1,790)
2,997 5,496

AEERREEREIRETES
FONKTETERBRESNEBR
BRENRFE - —KRME - RER
HLEREATE UERTEFEE
HleAGESREFHEREER
WHIERBIRIEFIAZEREEE
R =M EEETNEHNORS
fo AREYEHPE R 5 R WA
BHFAETMERMKEMBEER
H o

MR ERZERERAR o —T = —FFH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
me MR RME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE 2021512 A31HEFE

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,

DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
(continued)

The following is an ageing analysis of trade receivables
presented based on the invoice dates:

1. EZ R HMEWRIE - &

TRENRKEE)

REZHHZIINE 5 R KFIAR
wofrmT

2021 2020
20214 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR ARET T

0 - 30 days 0&E30Kk 112 592

No balance as at 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil) which
is past due more than 90 days are not considered as
in default as those balances were mainly with those
government authorities with good credit quality and
pending for completing their allocating funds procedures.
Based on the historical credit loss experience and/or
general economic conditions of the debtors, the directors
of the Company consider the expected credit loss on
these debtors to be insignificant.

The trade and other receivables and deposits are all
denominated in the functional currency of the respective
entities in the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RERBERNE (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE 2021612 A31H LEFE

19. AMOUNT DUE FROM A DIRECTOR OF

20.

THE COMPANY

Particulars of an amount due from a director of the
Company, disclosed pursuant to Section 383(1)(d) of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 3 of the
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation, are as follows:

19. ERA QAT —REEIA

FEWANR —ZEEZIE(REES
N FMEBI E383(1)(d) & R (A 7 (3
BEEEFZER) BH)EIHE)
MEFBEOT :

Maximum

amount

outstanding

during the
year 2021 2020

ERERS
AEESE 2021 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTTT ARBTR ARBETTT

Name #4

Mr. Qi THRE 2,283 - 2,283

As at 31 December 2020, the amount was non-trade
in nature, unsecured, interest-free and repayable within
three months.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Cash and bank balances represent cash at banks and
on hand. Bank balances carry interest at floating rates
based on daily bank deposit rate. The bank balances are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history
of default.

As at 31 December 2021, there was approximately
RMB174,732,000 (2020: RMB163,351,000) denominated
in RMB and deposited with banks in the PRC. RMB is not
freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations in the PRC, the Group is permitted to
exchange RMB for other currencies through authorised
banks to conduct foreign exchange business.

20.

MR2020F12 8310 @ :ZX B AIEZ
SME EEF - EERER=E
ARNERE -

WITHEBRRS

R RBTEBERTRFER
& - RITHBERE B RITERF
2425 B A B o BITEB R
RSB R T BT A0 4 98 R R4
77 o

N2021F12A318 - AR
174,732,0007C (20204 : AR
163,351,0007T) LA A REEZHE W 17
RAEBERET  ARBETATTER N
BAEMEE R BEBEFERH
HNEE B IR AEP) M 45 TE - SE R E
EERT ALSEEERBERE
EITINEEFHIRITHARK K12
ABHME -

AP ERZEERERAR o —T - —FFH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR RME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE 2021512 A31HEFE

21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND 21. B R HEMWENHZERE
ACCRUALS AND CONTRACT LIABILITIES TERAREHNEAERE

(a) Trade and other payables and accruals (a) ESRHEMESTKERETE
A
2021 2020
20215 2020%F
RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARBF R ARETTT

Trade payables (Note (i) B 5 R 38 (BT EEG) 1,357 2,970

Accrued construction costs FEETIE R R 5,741 7,325

Salaries and other staff cost payables JEff ¥ & K& H th 8 T A 2,163 1,927

Accrued directors’ remuneration & =t = = % 1,096 616

Examination fees payables EREHE 1,877 2,269

Other tax payables HMERAER 1,722 1,937

Other payables (Note (ii)) Hofth 8 5 BRIE (BT (1)) 3,244 3,375

17,200 20,419

Notes: Bt &E -

()  No credit period is granted by the trade creditors. Trade () EB2ERATERLEERS-
payables are normally settled within 30 days from the BHORNRE-—RREZEH
invoice date. HEOR BT o
The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables REZHHEINE HEMNK
presented based on the invoice date: BWERETAOT

2021 2020

20214 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AREFT

0 - 60 days 0E60X 1,132 2,970
61 — 90 days 61290k 34 -
91 - 120 days 91E 120K 4 -
121 - 365 days 121E365K - -
Over 365 days HBiR365K 187 -
1,357 2,970

(i)  Asat 31 December 2021, other payables mainly comprised (i) H2021F12A8318 + HEfb g
of accrued audit fee, accrued legal and professional NREBTEZEBREEFERZE
fees and refund liability amounting to approximately BB EEhkEXBRARKE
RMB750,000 (2020: RMB1,347,000), RMB1,340,000 RBED D ARE750,000
(2020: RMB1,008,000) and RMB910,000 (2020: 7t (20204 : A R 1,347,000
RMB931,000), respectively. 7T) + AR¥1,340,0007T (2020

£ AR #¥1,008,0007T) & A
R #910,0007T (2020F : AR
#931,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RERBERNE (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE 2021612 A31H LEFE

21. TRADEAND OTHER PAYABLES 2. B HMWENZELE
AND ACCRUALS AND CONTRACT

LIABILITIES (continued)
(b) Contract liabilities

Contract liabilities represent advance payments of
driving course fee from customers upon enroliment

of driving courses.

Movement of contract liabilities is as follows:

HEARSHER(E)

(b) EHEE
BHREERABERRIZFW

BRBEBREFEA -
AEHBBEEESHWMT :
2021 2020
2021E 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET R ARETTT

At 1 January
Decrease in contract liabilities as
a result of being recognised as
revenue during the year that was
included in the contract liabilities
at the beginning of the year
Decrease in contract liabilities as a
result of refund to customers
Decrease in contract liabilities as a
result of forfeiture due to expiry
Increase in contract liabilities as
a result of receipt of customer
deposits during the year

At 31 December

®1A1H
Emﬁﬁﬁaﬁuﬁﬁﬁﬁ‘%%@
BHEERL  REH
W\:.,f@iaf,\

AEFRAERA
D

A E RS A R
b

FRRIER S SR
Aty EEN

[y

afE

M128318

34,811 32,509
(24,096) (22,833)
(735) (639)
(252) (521)
20,735 26,295
30,463 34,811

MHAEERZERERAR o ZTZ —FFRH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
me MR RME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE 2021512 A31HEFE

21. TRADEAND OTHER PAYABLES
AND ACCRUALS AND CONTRACT
LIABILITIES (continued)

(b) Contract liabilities (continued)

During both years, the Group allows refund of the
total amount of the course fees to the customers
before they complete the driving skill written test,
after deducting the registration fees. Depending on
the contract terms, the Group allows refund of 51%
to 58% of the total amount of the course fees (after
deducting the registration fees) to customers after
completion of the driving skill written test but prior to
provision of driving training services. The Group does
not allow refund of the course fees to the customers
after the commencement of providing driving
training services to them. The Group recognises
refund liability under “Trade and other payables and
accruals” in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

The following table shows unsatisfied performance
obligations resulting from contracts with customers
and expected time to be recognised as revenue:

1. EGRHMESRERE
SFTERAREHNERE(E)

(b)

EHEE(E)

R EFEEE  NEBARF
EREP KB EEERAIM
EPRELHBRREENRE
BEsE BREBAEVEKENR K&
BT ERREEFAZRER
HESIEIIRGEA - TREP
RELSHBRBREZENRIEZER
BHI51%E58% - NEE T it
FFERBME P RERERE
fRSEATFPRERIEE - K
SEHEFEBERRREE N
BRAKR TR IE S5 K E M
NRERETER] -

TRINTNEPENEEZRE
TRHBERFERSER R
AR ¢

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET R ARETT

Expected to be recognised as revenue T8 25 e iR A a5

— Within one year -—FR
— After one year - —%%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ReMEERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE 2021612 A31H LEFE

22. LEASE LIABILITIES

Lease liabilities are presented in the consolidated

22@%&F
ABERNERINAESE

statement of financial position as follows: ZZDT :
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARETT
Lease liabilities payable: RUATHEAERNHEERE
— Within one year -—FnR 1,098 1,446
— Within a period of more than ——FLEETHEB
one year but not exceeding MR RER
two years 445 1,098
— Within a period of more than two —MENLEEBEAIEB
years but not exceeding five years HFEREREA 514 787
— Over five years —-RFNE 710 882
2,767 4,213
Less: Future finance charges B KRR BH (507) (746)
Present value of lease liabilities HEARBRE 2,260 3,467
Less: Amounts due for settlement W RBEmEBRAREF12EAR
within twelve months from the N EN S
end of the reporting period (ZIABREBEE)
(shown under current liabilities) (962) (1,207)
Amounts due for settlement after KB @wEBRAREF12E A%
twelve months from the end of IEENEE
the reporting period (show under (ZIRFERBERE)
non-current liabilities) 1,298 2,260
The weighted average incremental borrowing rates ERANEHEEENNEYLHES

applied to lease liabilities range from 5.8% to 11.0%
(2020: 6.0% to 11.5%). All leases are entered at fixed
prices. The Group does not face significant liquidity risk

EZHFENF5.8%ZE11.0% (2020
F:6.0%211.5%) - FTERAEH A
BEEEBRIIY - AEEMNEEARE

with regard to its lease liabilities. Lease liabilities are TERGEARDERR -HES
monitored within the Group’s treasury function. BN EEREFER AT BT -

As at 31 December 2021, lease liabilities amounted to 2021 F12A831H r R RES

approximately RMB935,000 (2020: RMB1,967,000) in
relation to hire-purchase of motor vehicles which are
secured by corresponding motor vehicles and guaranteed
by Mr. Qi.

AR ERZERERAR o

A E A EL A ARKI350005T
(20204 : ARR#1,967,0007T) * MA
FEFER) R B IR ET  AEHE R o

R —FFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR RME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE 2021512 A31HEFE

23. BORROWINGS 23. B
2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET R ARET T

Bank borrowings, secured (Note a) RITIER - BEE (M 3a) 38,750 36,800
Bank borrowings, unsecured (Note b)  $R4T1E 20 - EI M (i sEb) 3,000 -
41,750 36,800

The carrying amounts of the above FREFHEREAR

borrowings are repayable: IATEIEIEER -
— Within one year —-—FnR 32,750 36,800
— Within a period of more than —BREHAREH —FUL
one year but not exceeding BB BMRFHHRA
two years from the end of the
reporting period 9,000 -
41,750 36,800
Analysed into: DT
- Current - 32,750 36,800
- Non-current —JEmE 9,000 -
41,750 36,800
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

23. BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes:

(a)

As at 31 December 2021, secured bank borrowings consisted of
four (2020: three) bank borrowings:

()

(i)

(ii)

(iv)

a bank borrowing with principal amount of RMB17,750,000
(2020: RMB17,800,000) was secured by the operation right
of a subsidiary of the Company, Tong Tai School and was
guaranteed by Mr. Qi (2020: only secured by the operation
right of Tong Tai School), bearing a fixed interest rate at
11.2% (2020: 11.2%) per annum and repayable in July
2022 (2020: January 2021);

a bank borrowing with principal amount of RMB10,000,000
(2020: RMB10,000,000) was secured by the building of
Tong Tai School with carrying amount of approximately
RMB6,404,000 (2020: RMB6,839,000) (Note 15) and was
guaranteed by the spouse of Mr. Qi, bearing a fixed interest
rate at 7.6% (2020: 4.4%) per annum and repayable in May
2022 (2020: May 2021);

a bank borrowing with principal amount of RMB9,000,000
(2020: RMB9,000,000) was secured by the operation right
of a subsidiary of the Company, Suiping County Shunda
Driver Training Company Limited, bearing a fixed interest
rate at 10.4% (2020: 10.4%) per annum and repayable in
August 2023 (2020: August 2021); and

a bank borrowing with principal amount of RMB2,000,000
(2020: Nil) was guaranteed by Mr. Qi and his spouse,
bearing a fixed interest rate at 4.4% (2020: Nil) per annum
and repayable in August 2022 (2020: Nil).

As at 31 December 2021, an unsecured bank borrowing with
principal amount of RMB3,000,000 (2020: Nil) was bearing a
fixed interest rate at 4.65% (2020: Nil) per annum and repayable
in January 2022 (2020: Nil). Subsequently on 6 January 2022,
the repayment date has been extended to 9 July 2022 and other
terms remained the same.

RENBHRRKE(E)
HZE 202112 A31BIEFE

23. =X (&)

B &L -

(@)

AR ERZERERAR o

M2021412A31H - BEIPEITER
P (20204 + =) IBER1TE SRIBAK ¢

(i)

(i)

(ii)

(iv)

N4 AR#17,750,0007 (2020
F: AR ¥17,800,0007T) &Y
BITERARRR —RHER
AIBRERM LR EERL
T TT K EFER (20204F £
BEERMCEREERRE) -
FEEFEAE11.2% (2020
F:11.2% ) W B HR202247 A
(20204 : 202141 7)) BE

K4 AR#10,000,0007T (2020
F: AR #10,000,0007T) #
BITERUEEAENARE
6,404,0007T (20204 : AR ¥
6,839,0007T) (M 5E15) B9 B
RERNEFIEE IR IE T L
EREREBER FETHEA
7.6% (20204 : 4.4% ) I B K
2022458 (20204 : 202145
B)EE

K4 AR #9,000,0007T (2020
£ AR #9,000,0007T) H) 4R
TEFAERRE —RHB R A
BFIFHZIEEERNEEINEGRA
AR EREEIR R - FE T F
K /510.4% (20204 : 10.4% )
I 78 P 202398 A (20204 -
202148AH)EBE &

K4 AR #2,000,0007T (2020
FoomE)MBRITERET LA
MERBER FEEMNEA
4.4% (20204 : &) I ZHF 2022
F8H (20204 : &) EE -

R2021F12A31H - KE& AR
3,000,0007T (20204 : ) &) & 1K 1§
IRITER - FEEFEAB4.65% (2020
0 4m) B R202241 A (20204 :
M) B8 - 20221 H6H % - B3
BEIE IR E202267 59 » mE
{EFRRIFT#E -

R —FFR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR RME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE 2021512 A31HEFE

23. BORROWINGS (continued)

The exposure of the Group’s borrowings are as follows:

23. =X (&)

REBOEFARL T :

2021 2020

20214 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® TR ARETT

Fixed-rate borrowings EEER 41,750 36,800

The ranges of effective interest rates on the Group’s

borrowings are as follows:

AEBEEFNERNZSHENT :

2021 2020
20214 20204

Effective interest rate per annum: ERFER=E
- Fixed-rate borrowings - EBBK

The Group’s borrowings are denominated in RMB which
is same as the functional currency of the respective

entities in the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

24. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities

RERBERNE (F)

24. EREHRIERE

ATRARFERERNERELENRIA

HZE 202112 A31BIEFE

recognised and movements thereon during the year: BELARE
Temporary
difference on Temporary
depreciation of difference
property, plant on interest Revenue
and equipment  capitalisation recognition Total
REBITER MEERE
ERNER MERZR W HER @5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT
At 1 January 2020 20201 A1H 594 2,189 2,577 5,360
Credited to profit or loss TAER (1)
(Note 11) (297) (142) (1,207) (1,646)
At 31 December 2020 and 202012 A31H
1 January 2021 K2021F1A1H 297 2,047 1,370 3,714
Charged/(credited) to profit nga/ GtA) Bi
or loss (Note 11) (FtsE11) 3,065 (151) 1,762 4,676
At 31 December 2021 #2021512A318 3,362 1,896 3,132 8,390
MPERZERERAR o T —FFRH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
me MR RME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

25.

26.

HZE 202112 A31HIEFE

SHARE CAPITAL 25. B Z<
Number of Share
shares capital
K7 AR LN
RMB’000
ARBTF T
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each FRRo.0O1ETTH EiER
Authorised EE
At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020,  F2020F1H18 « 20205
1 January 2021 and 31 December 2021 12 H31H ~ 202161 H1H
N2021F12A31H 10,000,000,000 90,179
Issued and fully paid ERTRHR
At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020, 7202091 A1H * 20204
1 January 2021 and 31 December 2021  12A31H * 2021F1 518 &
2021512 H31H 400,000,000 3,608

RESERVES

The following describes the nature and purpose of each
reserve within owners’ equity

Share premium

Share premium account of the Company represents the
excess of the proceeds received over the nominal value of
the Company’s shares issued.

Capital reserve
Capital reserve represents cash contributions from Mr. Qi.

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC,
the Company’s subsidiaries registered in the PRC are
required to appropriate 10% of the annual statutory
profit after tax (after offsetting any prior years’ losses)
determined in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles in the PRC to the statutory reserve
until the balance of the reserve fund reaches 50% of
the entity’s registered capital. The statutory reserve
can be utilised to offset prior years’ losses and may
be capitalised as registered capital, provided that the
remaining balance of the statutory reserve fund after such
issue is no less than 25% of registered capital.
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EREAEGENEHENEERE D
WAL -

15 (B
AR E R 4 B B 1 B P S 500R
BB QA D BTN 2 EE &8

)

XA
BARREIRIT R ENR S MK

EERE

BIEFRBRRARE  AREEFRBHG
MOMBAREBRETFEARE
ARAETE ZFEEATHRBE G
(EEEMATFERIER)MN10%
BELTHE ExREopEE
Bl EREIMEARNS0%AEIE < &
FEREA AN FE B ] &
FIAMEAR  WZBTRETHE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RERBERNE (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE 2021612 A31H LEFE

27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to a resolution passed by the shareholders of
the Company on 19 September 2020, a share option
scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was adopted.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide
incentives or rewards to eligible persons for their
contribution or potential contribution to the Group.

The board of directors of the Company may, at its
discretion, offer to grant an option to subscribe for such
number of new shares as the board of directors of the
Company may determine at an subscription price at a
price which shall be at least the highest of: (i) the closing
price of the shares on the offer date of the option; (ii)
the average closing prices of the shares for the five
consecutive business days immediately preceding the
offer date of the option; and (iii) the nominal value of a
share on the offer date of the option.

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period
of ten years from the date of the adoption of Share Option
Scheme and shall expire at the close of business on the
business day immediately preceding the 10th anniversary
thereof unless terminated earlier by the shareholders in
general meeting.

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within
21 days inclusive of the day on which such offer was
made. An offer shall be deemed to have been accepted
when the duplicate letter comprising acceptance of
the offer is duly signed, together with a non-refundable
remittance in favour of the Company of HK$1.00 by way
of consideration for the grant thereof is received by the
Company.

Save as determined by the board of directors and
provided in the offer of the grant of the relevant options,
there is no minimum period for which an option must be
held or the performance target which must be achieved
before an option can be exercised.

27. R ERTE

R IE R2020F9A19H E AR A I%
HBBRARZEER  DRMBEREST
2 ([FERESTEL) -

B S e AR SRR A
EELERMIEEERNAERA
+ o

ARREEZEANBEREZRLE
Bt ARRBERABESTS A
BENBEHEBB MRS ZER
ATRERTIZ&RE - (RO
BRERE B R WS E - (i)
REEBRERE AT LEZE
SEBZFHEHE - Kk R
BREREZ B HNEE -

RIEBRER MR BR K g LERATA LE -
7 RIS RCHE B BB R AT S IR B
HIREEHOF AR AR R - AR
ERZTETEF2ANNERA
& IR TR A R B JE R ©

REBEREZRZANIEZE AR
A21BEA(BRER)EMR - EEW
REHHFRIALEARE AR
FIRBIARR B RBE B AERE
B R E1.00/8 T T A RIE
PESKE - Rl 2 MR RERMA -

REEEEEELRELEEERE
ZREREEIN  RITEBRER
B WA R B R RO B AR S HAIR =X
WAZER s RRBAR -

ARERZERERARE o —FT— —FFH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
me MR RME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE 2021512 A31HEFE

27. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option scheme established by the
Company, if any, is 40,000,000, representing 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company upon initial listing.
The total maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option scheme, if any, shall not
exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company
from time to time.

No share options have been granted under the Share
Option Scheme since its adoption.

27. BIRAERT 8 (&)

BIEERET S KA QAR E
M E B RERE (nAE) Al R
THERERENTSRNEE A
40,000,0000% * #HE&E R ¥ 5A £
RABEBEITRANI0% - B AR H#E
B M AR B b BB AR M RT B (20 )
ETINABEERHEFTHEAER
ERETEmMAIREERTNRERDA
HTEBBBAQFTEDEITRA
B10% o

BERMERETSIE - SIERER
P BT B % o i A -

28. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 28. EXREYE

2021 2020
2021 2020%F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥ TR ARETT

Capital expenditure contracted for but not FLEZEWE « MERRED

provided for in respect of construction  FJ 4B M K BEERE AT H

of property, plant and equipment 1,392 1,392

Commitment to contribute funds for REBEREEREEEH
acquisition of a financial asset (Note) A (MEE) - 5,000
1,392 6,392
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RERBERNE (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE 2021612 A31H LEFE

28. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS (continued)

Note: On 26 August 2020, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
Zhumadian Tongtai Cultural Media Company Limited (the
“Subsidiary”) entered into a joint venture agreement (the “JV
Agreement”) with two PRC companies (the “PRC Companies”)
which are independent third parties to the Group. Pursuant to the
JV Agreement, the Subsidiary and the PRC Companies agreed
to establish a company (the “Investee”) and the Subsidiary would
contribute RMB5,000,000 in cash, representing 5% of the total
registered capital of the Investee. The PRC Companies would
contribute RMB95,000,000 in cash for the 95% of the total
registered capital of the investee.

On 8 July 2021, the Subsidiary entered into an equity transfer
agreement with one of the PRC Companies which the Subsidiary
agreed to transfer the 5% equity interest, representing its entire
equity interest in the Investee to one of the PRC Companies at nil
consideration. As at the date of equity transfer (i.e. 8 July 2021),
the Subsidiary had not made any capital contribution in respect
of its 5% equity interest in the Investee, or injected any assets in
place of capital contribution into the Investee.

Details of the transaction was set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 2 September 2020, 10 September 2020
and 8 July 2021.

29. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE

Other than disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, the Group does not have any
material related party transactions in the normal course of
its business.

Compensation to key management personnel

The directors of the Company were considered to be
the key management personnel of the Group. The
remuneration of the directors of the Company is set out in
Note 12.

28. B A EIE (&)

B &L -

M2020E8H26H » AR A — K
FEWNBRARAESEERZELE
HERAR(MBRAR]) B A
REEBIE=ZFTORMRPER
AlI([RBEARDEL—MhEedEn
(¥ (A& 0EHBRED - RIE
AETENE WBARHEPEH
ARIRAEKY —RAR ([HKE
FHOEMBARBIEREAR
#5,000,0007T + BN #% & 75 &5
MEAMNER - FREQA G EESE
% AR #95,000,0007T 1F & 1 %
BB EAmM5% o

MR2021F7H8H B AR EE
P—RPBERQE R R EEER
FOREZHE WBRAGRE
NEREREP -RFERQFE
FoRME MERWEEINE
PR A - AR EEREE A AR (BP2021
F7A8H) ' MEB AR EARE
A% E J7 5% 1 B 4 1B H (T ]
BN AMWREREIAXTME
EURELE -

ZRGHBHRARABHA
20209 A2H  2020F9A810H
2021 F7ASHMAENRN °

20. EEE I E
BREAMBEREEMBIBES

5

N ARERBRERGBRETILE

THEREBSTRZS -

BREEE A S M
ARREEHRE/ANEENERE
BAB -  ARABEZHMENWE

12 °

AP ERZEERERAR o —T - —FFH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR RME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE 2021512 A31HEFE

30. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 30. R B A RIMNKRE
Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2021 R20215F &2020F 12 831 H H [

and 2020 are as follows: BRAIGHBLT
Place and date
of incorporation/  Issued and fully paid share capital/ Equity interests attributable Principal activities and
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital to the Company place of operation
BRI/ BRTRARRE/
WEARER RUBBRAH HMER ARAEGRE TEEHREERY
2021 2020
20215 2020%
Directly held:
ERERE:
Ample Best International Limited The BVI Authorised: US$50,000 100% 100% Investment holding
15 December 2016 Paid up capital: US$4
AERRERAA RERNES JETE 50,0005 T REER
2016512A158 BRER 4XT
Indijectly held:
RERE
Maxi Access Limited Hong Kong Paid up capital: 100% 100% Investment holding
28 January 2016 ) HKS$1 \
REBRRA R BREXR BT RERR
2016514288
Wincox Limited Hong Kong Paid up capital: 100% 100% Investment holding
28 December 2016 HK$1
AHERAF D BRER BT REER
20165124280
Zhumadian Tongtai Cultural Media The PRC Registered: RMB100,000,000 100% 100% Investment holding
Company Limited” (Notes (i) and (i) 2 June 2016 Paid up capital: RMB71,000,000
ESEBZUCEEERA A (W0 RG) HE FEfft - AK%100,000,0007 RERR
20165628 BREAR : AR¥71,000,0007T
Zhumadian Tongtai Large Vehicles Driver The PRC Registered: RMB20,000,000 100% 100% Provision of driving training
Training Company Limited* (Note (i) 24 April 2014 Paid up capital: RMB20,000,000 courses
in the PRC
SEERRAMBDBEREFIERA A (F)) +E #Hft : AE 20,000,000 R BREERERE
2014564 724R #REAR : AR¥20,000,0007
Suiping County Shunda Driver Training The PRC Registered: RMB2,000,000 100% 100% Provision of driving training
Company Limited* (Note (i)) 25 December 2012 Paid up capital: RMB2,000,000 courses
in the PRC
RTFIRERREEIER LT (FE) HE #Hft : AK#2,000,0007 R BREERERE
2012612A258 BRER: ARF2,000,0007T
Suiping Tongtai Occupational Training School Company The PRC Registered: RMB3,000,000 100% 100% Provision of occupational
Limited* (Note (i)) 20 July 2020 Paid up capital: RMB3,000,000 training services in the
PRC
BTRRBEREIBRERAA (M) HE #Hft AR #3,000,0007 R BRRE R IRY
202047 A20A BRER : ARHE3,000,0007T
* The English names are for identification purpose only and the * BV EZBERENEZEANRZEN
official names of the companies are in Chinese. 2B AR -

Notes:

(i) Established as a limited liability company in the PRC.

(ii) The registered capital has not yet fully paid up during the years
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020. As at 31 December 2021,

the Group had unpaid share capital of RMB29,000,000 (2020:
RMB29,000,000) for this subsidiaries.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at
the end of the year.

216 China Oriented International Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2021

RPBERZZERAF -

H 20214 £2020512A31H I
A B AR R SR o 7202141
A31B  AEBBZEMEB AR
AR #29,000,0007T (20204 : AR
29,000,0007T) Z RE B -

INYE

Feat

iﬂigﬁ%%ﬁﬁ?ﬁéiﬂi%?ﬂﬂﬂ%%



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RERBERNE (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE 2021612 A31H LEFE

31. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balances. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
which includes lease liabilities and borrowings disclosed
in Notes 22 and 23, respectively, net of cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to the owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital
structure regularly. As part of this review, the directors
of the Company consider the cost of capital and the
risks associated with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors of the Company, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through
the payment of dividends, new share issues and share
buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt.

1. EXERERE

AEEEREEAURRAEES
BREWBELE ARBBEY
B RAEATE  ERBRERS
Kb BBEFERE - AEERNE
BERRISTE -

AEENERNEEBRIEFES (B1E
oo ko3n Rl EMNHEEER
B ReREEEMFELRLRD
BEA AR (BIEEBEITRA
N °

RRBEFTEHRSTEREE - F
BTN D ARBEFEE
BEERAREEERNERME
R RBEARREFTER  A5H
7538 38 S A B B EIT R AL R R
EBANEITHEBXBELRA
B EEEREAGRER Y -

AP ERZEERERAR o —T - —FFH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

mERBHEERME(F)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &= 2021412 A

31HLEFE

32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 32. ¢/ TH
Categories of financial instruments eMIAESE
2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARET T
Financial assets at amortised cost: REBERANERMEE .
Trade and other receivables 25 M EH U FRIE 151 906
Amount due from a director EUWANB —REEZFHIE
of the Company - 2,283
Bank balances and cash RITHEB KRR 175,242 167,588
175,393 170,777
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: R#EEHANERMEE !
Trade and other payables and accruals & 5 & £ i & - 7038 &
fEEtE 15,748 18,482
Lease liabilities MHEBE 2,260 3,467
Borrowings EEN 41,750 36,800
59,488 58,749
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ReMEERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE 2021612 A31H LEFE

33.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 33. ¢RiERMEEEERKE

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments including trade
and other receivables, amount due from a director of
the Company, bank balances and cash, trade and other
payables and accruals, lease liabilities and borrowings.
Details of the financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (interest rate risk and
currency risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner. These has been no change to the
Group’s exposure or the manner in which it manages and
measures the risk.

(@) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The
Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from lease
liabilities, borrowings, and bank balances. Lease
liabilities, borrowings and bank balances at variable
rates and at fixed rates expose the Group to cash
flow interest rate risk and fair value interest rate
risk respectively. The Group does not use financial
derivatives to hedge against the interest rate risk.
The Group’s interest rate profile as monitored by
management.

AEENTESHTIABRRES R
HAit WK - BB ARB—%2E
EFR RITEHREBRES BHN
HiENFIELEFER HER
BRER - ZE2RITAFBENE
BAPRE IR EE - M E R T A
RMEREET SRR (FRERNME
Rk - EERRMRBIERR
BRAWAR D% F R BERET
wmr - EREHRERRETER
REEE  BRMSAEREREERE
I o 7 5% [ iy T B R L B =X R SR B

& o

(a) FEEB
FEAKRASBRTANDTE
5K SR 7 B 5 45
BHMRHOAR - AEED
MEmBREERaMERRE -
BRREFTES - TERE S
M E S - BRRRTES
SRSAEEMAZRERER
EEBRATENRRR o &
£ 8 36 438 A B 0T £ T AU
Y R AR o A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

mERBHEERME(F)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE 2021512 A31HEFE

33.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 33. 0 EMEENEERK
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(a) Interest rate risk (continued)

The following table details the interest rate profile
of the Group’s net debts (being interest-bearing
financial liabilities less bank balance and cash) at the

end of the reporting period.

xR (&)

(a)

A RmE b (&)
TREFRAEEFER (BT
BE2RABERRBITERNIES)
R & B R B R R AR -

Fixed rate borrowings & &

Lease liabilities

Borrowings

Variable rate deposits % 2775

Bank balances

Sensitivity analysis

2021 2020
20214 20205

Interest Interest
rate per Amounts rate per Amounts
annum (%) RMB’000 annum (%) RMB’000
FHE(%) g FERE(%) £
ARBT R ARBTT
5.8% to 11.0% (2,260) 6.0% to 11.5% (3,467)

5.8%211.0% 6.0%£11.5%
4.4% to 11.2% (41,750) 4.4% to 11.2% (36,800)

4.4%%11.2% 4.4%%11.2%

__(a0t0) _0ge7)

0.3% to 0.4% 0.3% t0 0.4%

0.3%%0.4% 175,242 0.3%%0.4% 167,588

At 31 December 2021, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 10 basis points in saving
interest rates, with all other variables held constant,
would have increased/decreased the Group’s
profit before income tax and retained profits by
approximately RMB175,000 (2020: RMB168,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ReMEERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE 2021612 A31H LEFE

33.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

B BEREENEFERK
= (&)

(b) Currency risk (b) E¥EK
Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value E¥EREcR TAERKES
of future cash flows of a financial instrument will MEMNAFEESHEEXREEM

fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange
rates.

The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk
related primarily to certain bank balances and
other payables denominated in HK$. The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, the management monitors foreign
currency exposure and will consider hedging foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign

NN

AREBEAFENIINERR TR HE
B TEHERNE TIRITAESR K
HiMENRAERH - NEEE
AL B SN SRR » AT
EEESERIERR IR

FERZREPINERL

AEEUIINEFENEREE

currency denominated monetary asset and liabilities FBEOEREENT
are as follows:
Liabilities Assets
=R i

2021 2020 2021 2020
20215 20205 20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETT AR®TR AR®BTR
HK$ BT (2,032) (2,310) 435 4170

The Group mainly operates in the PRC with most
of the transactions denominated and settled in
RMB. No currency risk has been identified for the
financial assets and financial liabilities denominated
in RMB, which is the functional currencies of the
subsidiaries in the PRC to which these transactions
relate. The Group’s exposure to foreign currency
risk primarily arises from certain financial instruments
including bank balance and other payables which
are denominated in HK$. During the years, the
Group did not have foreign currency hedging policy
but management continuously monitors the foreign
exchange exposure.

AR ERZERERAR o

AEBEIERPELE K&
DEBAAREFEREE
AEBEWERLAAREHER
TREENERBEBTW
ERER ARBREZER
ZEBENTEN B LR 26
¥ o REBEAENINE R
TERETAETHEN SR
TR (BRERITAKNMEME
NHRBE)MEL -FR - AE
B SN SRR - BB R
EeRBERIMNERR -

R —FFR

221



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR RME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &(Z= 2021612 A31HIEFE

33.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 33. 8B XEKREENEERK

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) R (&)
(b) Currency risk (continued) (b) E¥mE (E)
Sensitivity analysis BRE 7T
2021 2020
2021F 20204
Increase/ Increase/

(decrease) (Decrease)/ (decrease) Increase/
in foreign increase in foreign (decrease)
exchange pre-tax exchange pre-tax

rate profit rate profit

EX BREANEF Ex KRB

EH/(TR) GAD) B EF/(TE) Em/ (d)

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR¥ETR ARBTFT

HK$ AT 5% (80) 5% 92
HK$ AT (5%) 80 (5%) (92)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RERBERNE (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE 2021612 A31H LEFE

33.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(c)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial
loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties is arising from the
carrying amounts of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

In order to minimise credit risk, the Group regularly
monitors the credit ratings of the financial institutions
based on available information at each reporting
date for its bank balances which are placed
in these financial institutions. The credit rating
information is supplied by independent rating
agencies where available and, if not available,
the credit management team uses other publicly
available financial information. The Group’s exposure
and the credit ratings of its counterparties are
continuously monitored and the aggregate value of
transactions concluded is spread amongst approved
counterparties.

For trade and other receivables, the Group
determines the ECL on these items individually by
estimation based on historical credit loss experience
of the debtor, general economic conditions of the
industry and an assessment of both the current as
well as the forecast direction of conditions at the
reporting date.

For amount due from a director, the Group
determines the ECL on this item individually based
on past default experience.

The Group has concentration of credit risk arising
from bank balances as there was a bank which
individually contributed 59.8%(2020: 94.9%) of the
Group’s bank balances as at 31 December 2021.
The management considers that the credit risk on
liquid funds is low as counterparties are financial
institutions with good reputation.

B.MBAREENEERK
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(c) fEELEMRAET
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
e MR RME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE 2021512 A31HEFE

33.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 33. 0 BEKRETENE E

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(c) Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of
the Group’s financial assets, which are subject to
ECL assessment:

K (&)
(c)

=R

= EE By &R E R (&)

TERFAFINAEEREE

ORERSE

BAYE - HERTAH

m/\E%T§*$T$

Internal Trade Other financial
credit rating Description receivables assets
REEE TR B 5 EYHE HitteMEE
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of Lifetime ECL - not 12m ECL
default and does not have any credit-impaired
past-due amounts
YA REUFENRBRE TR HEREEFE 12EARNEEER
BYEAmMaHeE -EEERE
Watch list Debtor frequently repays in full after  Lifetime ECL - not 12m ECL
due dates but usually settle in full oredit -impaired
ERAE ERARERIBARES nEMEREEEE 12EAEHEEESR
ERERE2EEN —ﬁﬁ%ﬂf
Doubtful There have been significant increases  Lifetime ECL not Lifetime ECL not
in credit risk since initial recognition  credit-impaired credit-impaired
through information developed
internally or external resources
i BEBAMHAENENIINE tnBEREACEEE 4oBRENAGCEERR
BROSHER FERRBZEEMN -BEEHE - BEERE
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset  Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
is credit-impaired credit-impaired credit-impaired
B BEEBRAREEREGENE tnBRRACERE 4oBRRHACEER
—EERE —EERE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that Amount is written off Amount is written off
the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and the Group has no
realistic prospect of recovery
34 BEBRAZGHEABABRERE HMERE M3 5R

MEHAEEY EFRKDAS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ReMEERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HZE 202112 A31BIEFE

33.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 33. 0 EMEENEERK

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(c) Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment

xR (&)

(c) EEm b RRENML ()

AEB A EE B R BT ARG

comprises the following categories: IHBIELLTER
Internal
credit 12m or Gross carrying
rating lifetime ECL amount
i 12BAREmED
EEFR FHEEER REAE
2021 2020
20215 20205
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Mg AR¥TT ARETR
Financial assets at amortised costs
REBHEBRATENSREE
Trade receivables 18 Low risk Lifetime ECL 112 592
B SR e tREBRSEEER
Other receivables 18 Low risk 12m ECL 39 314
H YR e NEREBEERE
Other receivables 18 Loss Lifetime ECL
(credit—impaired) 1,428 1,468
At EKHE B tnBHRSEEER
(fFERE)
Amount due from a director 19 Low risk 12m ECL ‘ - 2,283
Y- 2ESHE el NEABHEEFE
Bank balances and cash 20 Lowrisk 12m ECL ‘ 175,242 167,588
RITEHRRRE (& NEAEBEEER
MAPBEERERERAR o« —F——FFR 225



226

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
me MR RME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HZE 202112 A31HIEFE

33.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(c)

(d)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

The following table shows reconciliation of loss
allowance that has been recognised for other
receivables:

V. HEEAMEEMNEERK
K (&)

(c)

=& E B &R E R (F)

TR E 8 YR IR MR
F) 5 18 7 T B

Lifetime

ECL

(credit-

impaired)

£ BHED

FEEBR

(EERME)

RMB’000

ARETT

As at 1 January 2020 720201 A1H -
Impairment loss recognised in profit and loss REBERER AR ERE 1,468
As at 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 2020512 A31H K%2021F1A1H 1,468
Reversal of impairment loss REBEERE (40)
As at 31 December 2021 20215128318 1,428

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. The
table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to pay. The
table includes both interest and principal cash flows.
To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate at
the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ReMEERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &% 2021412 A31HIEFE

33.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 33. 8B XEKREENEERK
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) x (&)

(d) Liquidity risk (continued) (d RBESRAR (K)
Weighted
average Total
interest rate Within 1-5 Over undiscounted Carrying
perannum  On demand 1 year years 5 years cash flows amounts
mig KHR
THERE RER 15/ 1E5% BiB5F REREAE REE

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR  ARMTR  ARRTR  ARETR  ARETR  AR®TR

As at 31 December 2021 #2021512A31A

Trade and other payables ZHREMEMTA N/A
TER 15,478 - - - 15,478 15,478
Lease liabllties HEEE 7.9% - 1,008 959 Mo 2,767 2,260
Borrowings &3 9.5% - 35,101 9,579 - 44,680 41,750
15,478 36,199 10,538 710 62,925 59,488
Weighted
average Total
interest rate Within 1-5 Over  undiscounted Carrying
per annum On demand 1 year years 5 years cash flows amounts
i RER
THEME BEX 1ER 1255 BESE  RERENE REE

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARETRL  ARETRL  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR

As at 31 December 2020 #2020512A31A

Trade and other payables BHREMERTE N/A

TER 18,482 - - - 18,482 18,482
Lease liabilities HEERE 8.3% - 1,446 1,885 882 4,213 3,467
Borrowings £5 0.1% - 37,704 . . 37,704 36,800

18,482 39,150 1,885 882 60,399 58,749
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
me MR RME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE 2021512 A31HEFE

33.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(e) Fair value

The fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined in accordance with
generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis using prices or rates
from observable current market transactions as
inputs.

The management of the Group considers that the
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised cost approximate
their fair values at the end of the reporting period.

34. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES
ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash
and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing
activities are those for which cash flows were or future
cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing
activities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
ReMEERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

HZE 202112 A31BIEFE

34. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES 4. RETEBMELEAGENY

ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES iR (&)
(continued)
Lease
liabilities Borrowings
HEAE &M
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARETT ARETT
At 1 January 2020 20201 A1H 1,734 50,150
Changes from finance cash flows: MERSREEZ
- Proceeds from borrowings —ERFAEHE - 27,800
- Repayment of borrowings —BEBX - (41,150)
— Interest paid on borrowings — B EFFE - (3,645)
— Repayment of lease liabilities — principal —EEHEBE - K& (1,806) -
- Repayment of lease liabilities — interest —(EERERE —F 8 (287) -
Total changes from financing cash flows BEBE & REL BB (2,093) (16,995)
Other changes: Hi @ e
— Addition lease liabilities (Note) —EmEEaE (HE) 3,539 -
- Interest expenses (Note 9) — M ERZ (Ff5H9) 287 3,645
3,826 3,645
At 31 December 2020 and 2020512 A31H
1 January 2021 202141 A81H 3,467 36,800
Changes from finance cash flows: HEReREL
- Proceeds from borrowings —ERFBE - 41,750
— Repayment of borrowings —[BEER - (36,800)
— Interest paid on borrowings - BRHERFE - (3,655)
- Repayment of lease liabilities — principal —EEMREBE - 4% (1,207) -
- Repayment of lease liabilities — interest —EEHAEEE— T8 (239) -
Total changes from financing cash flows BERE RELE LT (1,446) 1,295
Other changes: Hi &g -
- Interest expenses (Note 9) —MERXZ (F39) 239 3,655
At 31 December 2021 R2021%12A31H 2,260 41,750
MAPERZERERAR o« ZTZ—FFH 229
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

mEMBRRME (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE 2021512 A31HEFE

35. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2020, a right-of-use
asset for new lease agreement entered by the Group for
a land with amount of approximately RMB510,000 and
the same amounts of lease liabilities were recognised.
In addition, the Group had entered into new lease
agreements for motor vehicles under hire-purchase
arrangements. As result, the Group recognised additional
of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities at approximately
RMB4,031,000 and RMB3,029,000 respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s
additions of property, plant and equipment amounted to
approximately RMB411,000 were resulted from utilisation
of deposits and prepayments paid in prior years.

China Oriented International Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2021

BL.TEZFREXRSZ

H E22020F12A31HIEFE &
SEBEmEEL A AREK510,0007T
B+ #b 5T 7 B TR B 19 e A9 5 R A
EE BE®wmRAERSEMNEES
Eoltih AEBEAEBLTHET
RRBERIHEERHZ - Al -
SE®ER D RH A AREE4,031,000
TN A R#3,029,0007T Hy 58 SME A
BEERTHEAE -

HE2021F12A31B ILFE - ;g
PRE—FEXNMNES REMNR
B AEEWE - BE &R EIEM
# AN R#¥411,0007T °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

RERBERNE (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE 2021612 A31H LEFE

36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 36. & 3 Bf &4k n &/

OF THE COMPANY

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET R ARETTT

Non-current assets ERBEE

Investment in a subsidiary R—RENRBARKNEE - -

Amounts due from subsidiaries A IENGIE S 60,509 59,273
60,509 59,273

Current assets REE E

Prepayments BRR /T>)\ 815 2,523

Bank balances RITH @% 390 1,881

1,205 4,404

Current liabilities REBEE

Trade and other payables and accruals & 5 & £ f& 5 5018 & FE 5+ & F 3,129 2,846

Amount due to a subsidiary e — B B A R 5K 0E 9,291 9,291
12,420 12,137

Net current liabilities nREBEEFE (11,215) (7,733)

Net assets EEFRE 49,294 51,540

Capital and reserves R R

Share capital e 3,608 3,608

Reserves [ & 45,686 47,932

Total equity MES 49,294 51,540

The Company’s statement of financial position was
approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 29 March 2022 and are signed on its behalf
by:

Qi Xiangzhong
TEH
Director

EF

KRBT FEMRAREEESH2022
FIA29B M ERKRIELKLEANTES
REREZEE T UAFIE

Zhao Yuxia
HES
Director

EF

MR ERZERERAR o —T = —FFH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
me MR RME (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #ZE 2021512 A31HEFE

37. RESERVES OF THE COMPANY 37. KA f#EfE
Share = Accumulated
premium losses Total
R 47 E RitBE #at
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTF T ARBT T ARBT T
At 1 January 2020 20201 A1H 105,636 (47,247) 58,389
Loss and total comprehensive ~ FREE &
loss for the year PHEBEAESE - (10,457) (10,457)
At 31 December 2020 and 202012 A31H
1 January 2021 K2021F1A1H 105,636 (57,704) 47,932
Loss and total comprehensive ~ F R EE &
loss for the year PHEBELBHE - (2,246) (2,246)
At 31 December 2021 ®2021F12831H 105,636 (59,950) 45,686
38. COMPARATIVE FIGURES 38. LB F
Below comparative figures have been reclassified to THtREFTEREFHHEE - UF
conform with the current year’s presentations: SEXRFEHRY :
Other income and other losses amounting to HWw A REMEEBDBHARE
approximately RMB6,702,000 and RMB509,000 6,702,0007T & A & #509,0007T B
respectively were combined into other income and losses, A BakEtmermbaikzE
net in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and IR A KR ER CERE) o
other comprehensive income.
Right-of-use assets amounting to approximately FEREEEN ARA8,962,0007T
RMB48,962,000 was separately presented in the WTE AR EDE  BE K
consolidated statement of financial position from HIEEEEY o

property, plant and equipment.
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FINANCIAL RESULT AND SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and of the assets and
liabilities of the Group for last five financial years, as extracted
from the audited financial statements, is set out below.

IR ERBE

AEERBERAEVBRFEREELSE
BHMBHRERZEAMEE EERARE
MEHINMT - Z MBI IFEREEZ

The summary does not form part of the audited financial

MKz —H8D -

statements.
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
2021 2020 20196 20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETRn ARETFT ARETT AREFT ARET:R
RESULTS ES
Revenue WA 67,151 67,963 93,452 77,699 61,509
Profit before income tax BR TG AT & A 1,613 9,644 31,179 31,938 25,841
Income tax expense FEREY (5,063) (2,819) (12,095) (10,663) (8,939)
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable 72 1A A
to the owners of the Company BIHEE
(BE)/ BF (3,450) 6,825 19,084 21,275 16,902
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERER
Non-current assets ERBEE 131,576 140,147 123,178 123,054 113,456
Current assets REYEE 178,239 175,367 194,168 83,419 33,495
Current liabilities MEAE (84,448) (99,411) (57,547) (65,462) (91,193)
Non-current liabilities EnBEE (18,688) (5,974) (56,495) (52,968) (2,057)
Net assets attributable to the ADEHEEA
owners of the Company EILEEFE 206,679 210,129 203,304 88,043 53,701
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Qi Xiangzhong
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HEADQUARTERS, HEAD OFFICE,
AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

IN THE PRC

Baililiu Village

Zhutang Township, Suiping County
Zhumadian City

Henan Province

PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

IN HONG KONG

Rooms 1508-1513

Nan Fung Tower

88 Connaught Road Central
Central, Hong Kong

HONG KONG LEGAL ADVISERS
Ma Tang & Co.

AUDITOR

Moore Stephens CPA Limited
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditors
801-806 Silvercord Tower 1

30 Canton Road

Tsimshatsui, Kowloon

Hong Kong

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 54 Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Henan Suiping Rural Commercial Bank Corporation Limited

Central Bank Corporation Limited, Suiping Branch
Ping Yu County Rural Credit Cooperative

STOCK CODE
1871

WEBSITE

http://www.china-oriented.com
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DEFINITION‘_SLANELD GLOSSARY OF TECHNICAL TERMS
EERBENHEE

DEFINITIONS B
In this annual report, unless the context otherwise requires, the WRARFERAN  BXESBTEN AT
following expressions shall have the following meaning: AEAEANTERE

“AGMH

[RRBFAE]

“AGM Circular”

[RRBEFAEEX]

“Alpha Leap”

=¥ 8

“Ample Star”

[HE ]

“Articles of
Association”

[ASERMA

“Audit Committee”

[BREEE

“Board”

[EEE]
“Board
Committees”

[ExZ8¢

“China Internet”

[FEEHA ]

the annual general meeting of the Company to be held at on Wednesday, 29 June 2022 at
10:30 a.m. at Suite 3318, 33/F, Jardine House, 1 Connaught Place, Central, Hong Kong, or
any adjournment thereof

ARRBEINRN2022F6 A29R (EH=) FF T R¥REFEPRRLES1HR I AEI3E
BIBERTHRRBFASGHHEMES

the circular dated 22 April 2022 published by the Company in respect The proposals involving
(1) general mandates to issue Shares and to repurchase Shares; (2) re-election of Directors; (3)
adoption of the amended and restated Articles of Association; and (4) notice of AGM
ARAROETEORBERN 2 —REE  QERES  QRMELT MNEINAEEREA
Al RAOBRRBFRgRETEZBYR2022F4H228 2 8K

Alpha Leap Holdings Limited (& B1E %A R A 7)), a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands with limited liability on 5 May 2016, whose entire issued share capital is owned by
Mr. Qi Xiangzhong

HEZERARLR - R2016F5 AR EBREXHETMKIAERAR - H2H 2 EHTR
AETRREEES

Ample Star Global Limited (¥4 23RE AR 2 7)), a company incorporated in the BVI with limited
liability on 21 March 2014, whose entire issued share capital is owned by China Internet
HERRBRAT - R2014F3A2I BN RBRE LR SHEMALNBR AR - B2 BB #1T
BRABPEEBAES

the articles of association of the Company
AARAEERAR

The audit committee of the Company, which was established on 19 September 2019 pursuant
to the resolutions of the Board on 19 September 2019
ARRINEZREZES  HBREEEEN2019F9A198 MR EM2019F9A19A R

the board of directors of the Company

ARAEES

The board committees of the Company, namely the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee
ARREELZEE HEKZES FMWZEQRRREEZES

China Internet Investment Finance Holdings Limited (Bl BB 4818 & ¢ Bl B B R A 7)) (Stock
code: 810), a company continued into Bermuda with limited liability and the shares of which
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange

REGBARESREBARLAR (RMHRR 810)  RARERBLENEREE AR
HIRAn OB 22 P E 4R b7
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“HK$”
[#&7]

“Hong Kong”
[&# ]

“IPO”
[BERARAEE]

“Listing Date”
[Em B
“Listing Rules”
[EHhRA
“Main Board”
[EM4]
“Ministry of Public
Security”
(AR
“Model Code”
[
“Nomination
Committee”
[REZEEE]
“PRC” or “China”

[

“Prospectus”

[ARER]

“Remuneration
Committee”

[FWESS

DEFINITIONS AND GLOSSARY OF TECHNICAL TERMS (CONTINUED)
BaRamaAR (&)

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
BREEEHAET

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
REELFRITRE

the initial public offering of the Shares, further details of which are set out in the Prospectus
BOWBERLFBRE  HE-SHBEARARER

24 October 2019, the date on which the Shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock

Exchange
R REER T ER ETE B HE - B1201910H24H

The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited,
as amended from time to time

EEBEARFMARDAES LHRA (BIEEBE)

the stock exchange (excluding the option market) operated by the Stock Exchange which is
independent from and operated in parallel to GEM of the Stock Exchange
MERMEENESFX SN (T BREHETS)  BURB A GEM EEEWITERE
Ministry of Public Security of the PRC ({ # A R £ F1 Bl A %2 £5)

hEARLMBE AR E

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules

FHRBMSETAE ETETAETEEETERRHNRETE

the nomination committee of the Company

ARRIREEEE

The People’s Republic of China, which for the purpose of this report and for geographical
reference only, excludes Hong Kong, Macau Special Administrative Region and Taiwan

FEARANE  BRARERBASEME  FREES AP RITHERAE

the prospectus of the Company dated 11 October 2019
AREBHA2019F10A11ENBRER

the remuneration committee of the Company

ARAFMEES

ARERZERERARE o —FT— —FFH
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DEFINITIONS AND GLOSSARY OF TECHNICAL TERMS (CONTINUED)
BERaM=A% (&)

“RMB”
[AR®]

“SFO”
(&5 REERA]

“Shareholder(s)”
[R*]

“Shares”

[ 13 ]

“Shun Da School”

[NEZEER]

“Stock Exchange”
[ Bk 32

“substantial
shareholder(s)”
[FERFR]

“Takeovers Code”

[ i < 81

“Tongtai Cultural”

(@1t ]

“Tong Tai School”

[BRER]

“%!!

[% ]

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

FEEEERARE

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as amended,
supplemented and/or otherwise modified from time to time

BEREDIESIZESRBEKRD - ETRER] HAR /LB TER

holders of the Shares
BHEE A

ordinary share(s) with a nominal value of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of our Company,
which are traded in Hong Kong dollars and listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
ARRRAFEFRAECOVETHEBR  HABTEERRBARMER LT

Suiping County Shunda Driver Training Company Limited* (i& ¥ % &3 & & 8 =23l AR A 7)),
a company established in the PRC with limited liability on 25 December 2012 and an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company

FFRIEERESRBEIARAT - R2012612A25BEHRBEK I 2 AR AR - BAAARIME
2EME QA

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BAMARFIMARAR

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules
AR EWRRAETZRE

The Codes on Takeovers and Mergers and Share Buy-backs issued by the Securities and
Futures Commission in Hong Kong, as amended, supplemented and/or otherwise modified
from time to time
EABHLHEEBERZEeRMNARIKE S EROEETA  BAKERT  #R
%/ HBITER

Zhumadian Tongtai Cultural Media Company Limited* (8 & /5 @ & Xt EE AR 2 7)),
a company established in the PRC with limited liability on 2 June 2016 and an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

BEEBEXLEEERAT  R2016F6 A2BEFRKR L BERAR  AAARHEEEZE
(RgEWNS]

Zhumadian Tongtai Large Vehicles Driver Training Company Limited* (&% 5 /& i 2= K iU i &) &
EREHIIFR A A]), acompany established in the PRC with limited liability on 24 April 2014
and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of our Company
HEEBRRAURBEREREIZFIARLDR - RN2014F4A248EHFBK L 2 ERDA - B
AREIHEEZENB AR

per cent
B

China Oriented International Holdings Limited e Annual Report 2021



GLOSSARY OF TECHNICAL TERMS

This glossary contains explanations of certain terms used in
this annual report in connection with us and our business.
These terminologies and their given meanings may not

DEFINITIONS AND GLOSSARY OF TECHNICAL TERMS (CONTINUED)
BaRamaAR (&)

s RG]

AEMFAREENFHRAFAE B RN
REMEBHNETAERE ZFAE
REBRBERVEEITERERELRE

correspond to those standard meanings and usage adopted in~ —%§ »

the industry.
“A1 Vehicles”
[AM1EEH ]
“A2 Vehicles”
[A2EEH ]
“A3 Vehicles”
[ASEEH ]
“B1 Vehicles”
[B1EEHR
“B2 Vehicles”
[B2EEH ]
“C1 Vehicles”
[C1EEH]
“C2 Vehicles”

[C2EEH ]

large vehicles of 6m or longer; or with a capacity for 20 or more passengers, also commonly
known as “Large Buses”;

BROKFER  HHFTEBR0AFTA LOARER  BEIALTE]:

large and medium full-trailers or half-trailer vehicles, also commonly known as “Towing
Vehicles”;

AP FHE  RE[ESIE]

vehicles for carrying 10 or more passengers as city buses, also commonly known as “City
Buses”;

ERBMAREZFI0LI N ERENER BB HTLRE]

medium sized vehicles shorter than 6m; and with a capacity for 10-19 passengers, also
commonly known as “Medium Buses”;

BR/NRGK  RERTEAI0Z1OANPA BN  RiE[FARE]

large and medium sized trucks and large and medium sized working vehicles, also commonly
known as “Large Trucks”;

AP RERARPRERE - RBIARE]

small manual vehicles, light-goods manual vehicles and light-duty manual working vehicles,
also commonly known as “Small Manual Cars”;

NEFHE BUFHEEREDFHERE - BRI EFHE]

small automatic vehicles, light-goods automatic vehicles and light-duty automatic working
vehicles, also commonly known as “Small Automatic Cars”;

NESE BUAPHEENENEHERE BRI EFE]

ARERZERERARE o —FT— —FFH
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DEFINITIONS AND GLOSSARY OF TECHNICAL TERMS (CONTINUED)
BERaM=A% (&)

“Driving Training
Curriculum”

[BESEINHEAA]

“Large Vehicles”
[KEHH ]

“qualified level |
driving school”

[REK-RER]

“qualified level Il
driving school”

[RER-RER]

“Small Vehicles”

[N |

the Driving Training Curriculum (1 8) 8 % §¢ 5 I 202 X #), being a part of the Outline of the
Motor Vehicle Driver Training, Education and Examination ({4 )5 & 5 5 3| 2 22 1 £ 50 K 48))
issued by the Ministry of Transport and the Ministry of Public Security on 18 August 2016
specifying, among others, the minimum training hours required for preparation of each of the
driving tests for driving training for various vehicle types in the PRC
BBBEREIHEAARRDERR RN HBEZAKRMN -0 ARBEHBLL
201668 F18A R« ST (HhaF) S HsBERAN R EIEELBREH
PR EEIIRE

A1 Vehicles, A2 Vehicles, A3 Venhicles, B1 Vehicles and B2 Vehicles, which are generally used
as commercial vehicles;

AVIBEEE - ACSEEER ASMEEEH  BIEEHRBEEH  EEARMHAE:

a driving school possessing, among others, more than 80 training vehicles, and is qualified
under the Qualifications of Motor Vehicle Driving Training Institutions (1 % & & & 8 % 3| # 18
& 1 & 15) to provide driving training services in the PRC;

A (EPBE)80MN LIRET A ERIBERB BEREFIIRBEERGEEPEREHE
EREIRBOHER

a driving school possessing, among others, more than 40 driving vehicles, and is qualified
under the Qualifications of Motor Vehicle Driving Training Institutions (1 % & & & 8 % 3| # 18
& 1 {5 15) to provide driving training services in the PRC; and

A (ERERE) MU LERERI S ERBERDERRSEIIMBEERBEHERERE
HERFIRBEOHER &

C1 Vehicles and C2 Vehicles, which are generally used as private and/or commercial vehicles.

CUREHNCRER  FEALKE HEAE -
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